
HOBBY AREA 

MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

IS 

Agenda and Agenda Materials 
Meeting of the Board of Directors 

February 12, 2015 



HOBBY AREA DISTRICT 

HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER NINE 
(HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT MEETING) 

TO: THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT 
DISTRICT AND TO ALL OTHER INTERESTED PERSONS: 

Notice is hereby given that a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Hobby 
Area Management District will be held on Thursday, February 12, 2015, at 1:00 PM in the 
Doubletree Hilton Hobby - 8181 Airport Blvd, Houston, TX 77061, inside the boundaries of the 
District, open to the public, to consider, discuss and adopt such orders, resolutions or motions, 
and take other direct or indirect actions as may be necessary, convenient, or desirable with 
respect to the following matters: 

AGENDA 

I. Determine quorum; call to order. 
2. Receive public comments. 
3. Approve minutes of meeting held January 8, 2015. 
4. Receive update on fundraising efforts from Scenic Houston. 
5. Receive Bookkeeper's Report and approve invoices for payment. 
6. Accept bookkeeper/investment officer's annual disclosure under the Public Funds 

Investment Act. 
7. Approve Resolution Regarding Annual Review of Investment Policy and List of 

Qualified Broker/Dealers. 
8. Consider resolution, application, certificate of formation and bylaws pertaining to the 

creation of the Hobby Area Improvement Corporation. 
9. Consider Broadway Blvd. Funding Agreement by and between the City of Houston and 

Hobby Area Management District. 
I 0. Consider mobile security camera contract with S.E.A.L. Security. 
11. Consider FY 2015 Annual Operating District Budget. 
12. Receive Executive Director's monthly report on actions/initiatives in support of the 

District's Service Plan. 
13. Adjourn. ~,,,,,11111,,,,,,,. 

~'" .. 1.~NAGe.A• 11
~ ~ ~-b."' •••••• '"&. ~ § ·A_v_.• •• ~,;. ~ 

~ ~. • c::>.~ ,~'If'/·~..,.. \~t ~ ~ ::ta: ~-4:: "6)~ r'>,o>..DC' = m. l • ~ = '"""-- v,...v~ 
:: O• '"' . "" •fi: :is• T ..Q • = 
~ •• s; : ...., ;:: 
~ .. , .. ~ 
~ •. • • § Executive Director ~ ...... ~ 

~,,. lfcm •' ~,,~ 1,,,,,,,,."'''''" 

Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and would like to request auxiliary aids or services are 
requested to contact the District's Executive Director at (713) 595-1200 at least three business days prior to the 
meeting so that the appropriate arrangements can be made. 



TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

3. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER 9) 

CITY OF HOUSTON 
HARRISCOUNTY, TEXAS 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

Hobby Area Management District Board of Directors 

Executive Director 

Agenda Item Materials 

Approve minutes of the meeting held January 8, 2015. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER NINE) 

c/o Hawes Hill Calder6n LLP 
P.O. Box 22167 

Houston TX 77227-2167 
713-595-1200 or FAX 281-888-6314 



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 
HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

January 8, 2015 

DETERMINE QUORUM; CALL TO ORDER. 

The Board of Directors of the Hobby Area Management District held a regular meeting on Thursday, 
January 8, 2015, at 1:00 p.m. in the Doubletree Hilton Hobby, 8181 Airport Blvd., Houston, Texas 77061, 
inside the boundaries of the District, open to the public, and the roll was called of the duly appointed 
members of the Board, to-wit: 

Position 1 -
Position 2 -
Position 3 -
Position 4 -
Position 5 -
Position 6 -

Danny Perkins, Chairman 
Helen Bonsall, Vice-Chair 
Todd Szilagyi 
Perry J. Miller 
Ann Collum 
Sue De Haven, Secretary 

Position 7 -
Position 8 -
Position 9 -
Position 1 O -
Position 11 -

Marjorie Evans 
vacant 
Darryl Bailey 
Vic J. Zachary 
Alberto Cardenas 

and all were present, with the exception of Directors Szilagyi and De Haven, thus constituting a quorum. 
Also present were David Hawes, Susan Hill, Josh Hawes, Gretchen Larson, Eoles Whitaker and Tony 
Allender, all with Hawes Hill Calderon, LLP; Clark Lord, Bracewell & Giuliani; Jack Roland, Roland Fry & 
Warren; and Jeff Sonnheim, Equi-Tax, Inc. Others attending the meeting were Councilman Robert 
Gallegos, District I; Daniel Santamaria, Deputy Chief of Staff, District I; and Randy Pennington, business 
owner. Chairman Perkins called the meeting to order at 1 :05 p.m. 

RECEIVE PUBLIC COMMENTS. 

There were no public comments. 

APPROVE MINUTES OF MEETING HELD DECEMBER 11, 2014. 

Upon a motion duly made by Director Cardenas, and being seconded by Director Bailey, the Board 
voted unanimously to approve the Minutes of the December 1, 2014, Board meeting, as presented. 

RECEIVE BOOKKEEPER'S REPORT AND APPROVE INVOICES FOR PAYMENT. 

Mr. Roland presented the Bookkeeper's Report and went over invoices, included in the Board 
agenda materials, and answered questions. Mr. Hawes requested Mr. Roland provide an end-of-year 
statement once the bank statement was received. Upon a motion duly made by Director Bonsall, and being 
seconded by Director Collum, the Board voted unanimously to accept the Bookkeeper's Report and 
approved payment of invoices, as presented. 

RECEIVE AND CONSIDER PROPOSALS TO PREPARE END-OF-YEAR FINANCIAL REPORTS. 

The board reviewed the two proposals received back from requests for qualifications and estimates 
of costs for preparation of the District's end-of-year financial reports. Upon a motion duly made by Director 
Cardenas, and being seconded by Director Miller, the Board voted unanimously to accept the proposal 
received from Roland Fry & Warren, LLC to prepare the District's end-of-year financial reports. 

RECEIVE AND CONSIDER PROPOSALS FOR DISTRICT'S ANNUAL AUDIT REPORT. 

Ms. Hill distributed the proposal received from Belt Harris Pechacek, LLP. The Board reviewed all 
three proposals and discussed. Upon a motion duly made by Director Miller, and being seconded by 



Director Bonsall, the Board voted unanimously to accept the proposal from Belt Harris Pechacek, LLP on 
the condition that the price quoted in the proposal is firm. 

CONSIDER BRADWAY BLVD. MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE DISTRICT AND CITY 
OF HOUSTON FOR ENHANCED NON TYPICAL INFRASTRUCTURE. 

The Board reviewed and discussed the Maintenance Agreement, included in the Board agenda 
materials. Upon a motion duly made by Director Cardenas, and being seconded by Director Miller, the 
Board voted unanimously to approve the Maintenance Agreement between the District and City of Houston 
for enhanced non typical infrastructure, as presented. 

CONSIDER BROADWAY BLVD. FUNDING AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE DISTRICT AND CITY OF 
HOUSTON FOR ENHANCED NON TYPICAL INFRASTRUCTURE. 

Mr. Hawes reviewed the Agreement, included in the Board agenda materials, and answered 
questions. There was general discussion regarding the Agreement. Upon a motion duly made by Director 
Cardenas, and being seconded by Director Miller, the Board voted unanimously to approve the Agreement 
subject to the amount to reflect not to exceed $500,000, and authorize the Board Chairman to execute the 
Agreement with the reflected change. Mr. Hawes will meet with City staff regarding the requested change 
to amount, and if anything else changes will bring back to Board for approval. 

CONSIDER BROADWAY BLVD./HOBBY CORRIDOR AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE DISTRICT AND 
SCENIC HOUSTON. 

The Board reviewed and discussed the Agreement between the District and Scenic Houston, 
included in the Board agenda materials. Upon a motion duly made by Director Collum, and being seconded 
by Director Zachary, the Board voted unanimously to approve the Agreement between the District and 
Scenic Houston regarding the Broadway/Hobby Corridor Redevelopment Project, as presented. 

CONSIDER RESOLUTION, APPLICATION, CERTIFICATE OF FORMATION AND BYLAWS 
PERTAINING TO THE CREATION OF THE HOBBY AREA IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION. 

Mr. Lord reviewed the documents, including in the Board agenda materials, and answered 
questions. Director Cardenas pointed out some issues in the documents that needed clarification. Director 
Cardenas, Chairman Perkins and Mr. Lord will work on the issues and bring back to the Board. No action 
from the Board was taken. 

RECEIVE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S MONTHLY REPORT ON ACTIONS/INITIATIVES IN SUPPORT OF 
THE DISTRICT'S SERVICE PLAN. 

Councilman Gallegos updated the Board regarding the TIRZ expansion. He discussed the plan for 
the Botanic Garden at Glenbrook. 

Mr. Hawes discussed the Gulfgate TIRZ expansion. He reported HGAC wants to provide more 
dollars for the Livable Centers Grant than was requested in the District's application. He reported they were 
looking at granting $215,000, and it would be on HGAC's agenda this month. Mr. Lord provided information 
on how the grant works. There was general discussion regarding Hobby Fest, and State of District 
functions. 

Mr. Pennington had several questions he directed to the Board. Mr. Hawes requested Mr. 
Pennington to send him his questions and that he would provide him with the information. 

2 



ADJOURN. 

There being no further business to come before the Board, Chairman Perkins adjourned the 
meeting at 2:15 p.m. 

Secretary 

3 



TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

5. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

(HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER 9) 
CITY OF HOUSTON 

HARRISCOUNTY,TEXAS 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

Hobby Area Management District Board of Directors 

Executive Director 

Agenda Item Materials 

Receive the bookkeeper's report and approve invoices for payment. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER NINE) 

c/o Hawes Hill Calder6n LLP 
P.O. Box 22167 

Houston TX 77227-2167 
713-595-1200 or FAX281-888-6314 



HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT 

OCT0BER20l4 



Hobby Area Management District 
Balance Sheet 

ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Checking/Savings 
Amegy Bank 
Wells Fargo Bank 
Plains State Bank 
TexSTAR 

As of October 2014 

Total Checking/Savings 

Other Current Assets 
Assessment Receivable 
Federal Tax Withheld 

Total Other Current Assets 

Total Current Assets 

TOT AL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES & EQUITY 
Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts Payable 

Accounts Payable 
Total Accounts Payable 

Other Current Liabilities 

Assessment Refunds Payable 
Deferred Assessment Revenue 

Total Other Current Liabilities 

Total Current Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Equity 
Retained Earnings 
Net Income 

Total Equity 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 

Restricted for management's use only 

Oct 31, 14 

36,819.50 
339,634.06 
245,000.00 
280,050.93 
901,504.49 

24,539.58 
19.76 

24,559.34 

926,063.83 

926,063.83 

228,594.42 
228,594.42 

1,510.52 
299,873.03 
301,383.55 

529,977.97 

529,977.97 

(17.64) 
396,103.50 
396,085.86 

926,063.83 

Page 1 



Hobby Area Management District 
Statement of Sources & Uses - Budget vs Actual 

October 2014 

Oct14 Budget 
SOURCES OF FUNDS 

Jan - Oct 14 YTD Budget Annual Budget 

District Assessments 115,608.07 108,333.33 1,165,815.02 1,083,333.30 1,300,000.00 
Penalty & Interest Revenue 1,005.04 2,000.00 16,894.63 20,000.00 24,000.00 
Overpayments 0.00 2,666.67 12,922.82 26,666.70 32,000.00 
Assessment Refunds -3,694.17 -2,666.67 -20,097.60 -26,666.70 -32,000.00 
Street Light Reimbursement 0.00 11,223.17 0.00 112,231.66 134,678.00 
Interest Revenue 3.40 4.17 258.02 41.70 50.00 

Total SOURCES OF FUNDS 112,922.34 121,560.67 1,175,792.89 1,215,606.66 1,458,728.00 

USES OF FUNDS 
Public Safety 

Contract Public Safety 14,229.00 16,848.33 126,636.75 168,483.30 202,180.00 
Apartment Life Initiatives 1,586.50 2,083.33 9,272.00 20,833.30 25,000.00 
Mobile Cameras 0.00 2,400.00 0.00 24,000.00 28,800.00 
Street Light Outage Survey 0.00 175.00 1,050.00 1,750.00 2,100.00 
Graffitti Abatement 3,200.00 2,791.67 22,240.00 27,916.70 33,500.00 

Total Public Safety 19,015.50 24,298.33 159,198.75 242,983.30 291,580.00 

Mobility, Environ, Urban Design 
Porter Service 5,416.67 4,375.00 10,833.34 43,750.00 52,500.00 

Total Mobility, Environ, Urban Design 5,416.67 4,375.00 10,833.34 43,750.00 52,500.00 

Business & Economic Development 
Economic Developmt Programs 199.50 8,583.33 14,878.13 85,833.30 103,000.00 
Events, Festivals, Comm. Proj. 0.00 3,083.33 0.00 30,833.30 37,000.00 
Creative ED Support 6,865.00 3,875.00 33,666.50 38,750.00 46,500.00 
Marketing Mtls & Promo Items 0.00 1,125.00 1,147.40 11,250.00 13,500.00 

Total Business & Economic Development 7,064.50 16,666.66 49,692.03 166,666.60 200,000.00 

Administration 
Exec & Board Support Services 

Administration & Management 8,843.18 8,833.33 76,059.08 88,333.30 106,000.00 
Meeting Expense 661.02 291.67 3,408.66 2,916.70 3,500.00 
Reimbursable Expenses 1,384.70 1,200.00 6,858.95 12,000.00 14,400.00 
Postage 13.75 75.00 55.93 750.00 900.00 
Office Supplies 386.10 158.33 850.15 1,583.30 1,900.00 
Public Notices, Advertising 977.00 66.67 1,031.00 666.70 800.00 

Total Exec & Board Support Services 12,265.75 10,625.00 88,263.77 106,250.00 127,500.00 

Legal Services 6,512.18 800.00 20,719.90 8,000.00 9,600.00 
Audit Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 
Bookkeeping 600.00 600.00 4,800.00 6,000.00 7,200.00 
Assessment Billing 1,999.08 1,875.00 15,992.64 18,750.00 22,500.00 
Assessmt Database Mgmt 0.00 300.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,600.00 
Office Equipment 0.00 250.00 0.00 2,500.00 3,000.00 
Insurance 0.00 333.33 1,230.24 3,333.30 4,000.00 
Other 13.00 208.34 600.07 2,083.32 2,500.00 

Total Administration 21,390.01 14,991.67 131,606.62 157,416.62 187,400.00 

Creation and Start Up 0.00 0.00 108,167.21 108,167.00 108,167.00 

Total USES OF FUNDS - General Fund 52,886.68 60,331.66 459,497.95 718,983.52 839,647.00 

Restricted for management's use only Page2 



Hobby Area Management District 
Statement of Sources & Uses - Budget vs Actual 

October 2014 
Oct14 Budget Jan - Oct 14 YTD Budget Annual Budget 

Excess (Deficiency) of Sources over Uses-GF 60,035.66 61,229.01 716,294.94 496,623.14 619,081.00 

Capital Projects 
Comprehensive Landscape Plan 0.00 6,625.00 88,612.05 66,250.00 79,500.00 
Broadway Corridor Design Development 40,678.70 7,708.34 73,703.70 77,083.32 92,500.00 
Broadway Corridor Engineering Enhcmnts 32,350.80 4,493.17 36,191.53 44,931.66 53,918.00 
LED Decorative Street Lights 0.00 0.00 134,678.00 134,678.00 134,678.00 

Total Capital Projects 73,029.50 18,826.51 333,185.28 322,942.98 360,596.00 

Total Excess (Deficiency) of Sources over Uses -12,993.84 42,402.50 383,109.66 173,680.16 258,485.00 

Restricted for management's use only Page3 



Hobby Area Management District 

Bank Account Registers 
As of December 11, 2014 

Type Date Num Name Memo Amount Balance 

AmegyBank 16,658.71 
Check 11/14/2014 Debit Amegy Bank Wire transaction fee (13.00) 16,645.71 
Bill Pm.t -Check 11/14/2014 1141 Bracewell & Giuliani LLP General Counsel (6.512.18) 10,133.53 
Bill Pmt -Check 11/14/2014 1142 Clark Condon Associates Project# 113-098 (40.678.70) (30,545.17) 
Bill Pmt -Check 11/14/2014 1143 SEAL Security Solutions LLC Security Patrol (3,510.00) (34,055.17) 
Bill Pmt -Check 11/14/2014 1144 SMC Logistics Liter abatement-right-of-way (5,416.67) (39,471.84} 
Bill Pmt -Check 11/14/2014 1145 Glenbrook United Methodist Space for Town Hall meeting (500.00) (39,971.84) 
Transfer 11/14/2014 Trf Transfer Transfer from TexSTAR 75,000.00 35,028.16 
Check 11/14/2014 Debit AmegyBank Wire transaction fee {13.00) 35,015.16 
Bill Pmt -Check 12/08/2014 1146 Amcgy Visa Credit Card XXXX 0683 (325.09) 34,690.07 
Check 12/11/2014 1147 John S. Beeson Refund: 7701 Monroe Rd (95.48) 34,594.59 
Bill Pmt -Check 12/11/2014 1148 Chris Labod Website Maintenance (700.00) 33,894.59 
Bill Pmt -Check 12/11/2014 1149 Core Logic Safe Rent Apartment Life Initiatives (1.619.50) 32,275.09 
Bill Pmt -Check 12/11/2014 1150 Equi-tax Inc. Assessment Billing (1,999.08) 30,276.01 
Bill Pmt -Check 12/11/2014 1151 Greater East End Mgmt Dist November (2,560.00) 27,716.01 
Bill Pmt -Check 12/11/2014 1152 Roland Fry & Warren, LLC November Bookkeeping {605.39) 27,110.62 
Bill Pmt -Check 12/11/2014 1153 SEAL Security Solutions LLC Security Patrol (3,753.00) 23,357.62 
Bill Pmt-Check 12/11/2014 1154 SMC Logistics Litter Abatement (5,766.67) 17,590.95 
Bill Pmt -Check 12/11/2014 1155 United Graphics March 2014 - Hobby Brochure (107.00) 17,483.95 
Bill Pmt-Check 12/11/2014 1156 Hawes Hill Calderon LLC Management {10,523.04) 6,960.91 
Bill Pmt -Check 12/11/2014 1157 Bracewell & Giuliani LLP General Counsel (3,860.95) 3,099.96 

Total Amegy Bank (13,558.75) 3,099.96 

Restricted for management's use only Page4 



Hobby Area Management District 

Bank Account Registers 
As of December 11, 2014 

Type Date Num Name Memo Amount Balance 

Wells Fargo Bank 139,634.06 
Total Wells Fargo Bank 0.00 139,634.06 

Plains State Bank 245,000.00 
Total Plains State Bank 0.00 245,000.00 

TexSTAR-Operating 180,054.33 
Transfer 11/13/2014 Transfer to Operating Transfer to Operating (75,000.00) 105,054.33 

Total TexST AR~Operating (75,000.00) 105,054.33 

TOTAL (88,558. 75/ 492,788.35 

Restricted for management's use only Pages 



---- ··-·· - ··------·-·--·~---- . -- --·-··--------------- --· ---·----~ ----------------·--,-----·----·----------·--- --···-------------·--------------- - ---·-- ·--··· -----·---- -- ·---··, 

Bracewell & Giuliani LLP 
ATTOR.>.,"£YSATLAW 

Hobby AfCol. Mnruigcmrnt Distrkl 
ii 1 Loui,W,~ 
Snile 2300 
Houston,. TX 7:1002 

fanutcy !3,2015 
~,voi<;C: 2!604609 

B/A: 04674 

Our M:at!er#: 069002.000001 forS..-,.·ices Through D=mbci- 31, 2014 
Grnetnl C-0unscl 

!2/01114 Continue drafting the hurini:: """''l'lincrs Odx,.-.h Rnrn:ll 
repm: email toJ H;i.w,,s~IIlgthe 
:rttenda11ce Ii» for the ~S 

12JOll!4 Reviewthe,m,,ndtt,""li<t fi'Otll Ill,, hc>ringon Ocbonh Russell 
tho.mppkment:tl roll: imp!="'1tl'l!<rision<ro 
th" hearing =~ report in =tttion 
with=-ie 

12/03/14 Tdephooe 0011forc,1c.- with G Colcm!.11 Oa,k S1,>ci;1on Lord 
reprdtlls fo'lUlle cent°" IIJ)p!kali"" 

12/03{]4 Rniew a:,d ftn.:tHm lire Ofllei ~upp!cm:nting 
the roll and the order lovring =simm; 

Debarah R11Sscl! 

discu.«ion, with C Lord ~il>g """"; 
prep.w, tht :,mer><lmenl to infomution f= 
fur2014 

]2/04/]4 R.,:,.,iew the order mppkmetiting th:, roll and Dcl>cuh Rus.sd) 
Ille order l<"'}·in11 the ancssrnmt an rcqu."Stod 
cy O Pcrklns; prep;.n:, email 10 S Hjl) 
ll'alJSmittmg u,,. revi.ed documents 

12/0&/]4 P"'I'Me fot ond :,m,,d meeting eori=ing 
LMhJeC..,=~ 

Cli<O< Stod:tQfl Lord 

121]0/]4 Pn,,are for and ~uend meeting n:ttrudL~g 
=ni<: }ll)llsi<:>n; r,,vicw !lltd revi:«:~mc,,1 

Clark Stod1on Ulrd 

12/ll/14 Prepare for aod •!tend B=d mtctillg Cl:irk Stock',on lord 
12115114 f'rq,are ttan,rc.itW Jetter lo th~ H:llra County 

C!eik to =ord th<: ~mended information form; 
di,~ rqµnling calcnbtion oflhe ti!Ulg 
foeforwn<: 

Deborah Ru;,;~ll 

H= Riti,,.'Ht 

LOO 315.00 

02' 315.&J 

1.00 4S{LOil 

0.75 315.00 

02S 315.00 

1.50 4SO.OO 

1.50 4$0.00 

150 450.00 

"·" 315.0-0 

STATaoleNTFOOl'l10Fi:SSlOWU.SeR=51:lPAYASl.EUPONPREGf.""TATICN 

Hol>by N.., Mon•= Oi,<n<t 
9610 looil'<>int Rd. Ste ISO 
HooncnTX noH 

Invoice 

11,"IIQICeAl<IOIJNT OUl1.!N Ull1TEOS1AT!:S 00UAAs 

r:H~lp,rico 

Chris Labod 
25020.,..,r,,,.."o,. 

5~r\og. TX 77373 
2SI.GSB.07il 

$700.!)(I 

~b<=l UCO.CO 

Tc<>l duo l>f f@ 15.1011 $700.00 

Pas,, I 

Amount 

315.0{J 

16.75 

450.00 

'""' 

18.15 

61S.OO 

67.5.0-0 

675.00 

78.iS 

Bracewell & Giuliani LLP 
ATTOR."IEYS AT LAW 

Jm:,wyl3,:201S 
Ulvoloo: Jl6046U9 

12/Jt,114 Re\·iew invoic,, from TSO Reporring fcr1~.c Debo.a.ah R,me!l 
emirt n,p;,rter and ttan,cripe p~!lon; "'110 

Hours Rate/Hr 

0.25 3]5.00 

=ne ind ~n: email to S Hill fof payment 

fijjr,nftt« 
JWJ/14 
12131114 

"""' 12/31/14 

R9P"'d"rlil'"! 
1Ul9/l4 

Surnm,ry of fees 

ClatJ.; Stockton L,ml 
DcOOr=hRu=ll 

lto11r, Ratcllfr Amount 
S.50 4SO.OD 1,41S.OO 

~..........1liQ!~._21 
TOW US JSl.50 3,34!,2$ 

Lc.s Dlsro:rnt 

Filing F«s • Cmwy Clerk - Harris Filing feo 
Filing Fees - Ccomy Ck:rk- Han-ii FilIDg frt 

Tm"/; Filitig Fee~ 

P=t;.cOl 010215~674 POSTAGE tla1"1! 753 

R"Prod»ciions EQUITRAC COPIES 6 pagesBATCH2S8!Ho 

····~·-··--·-·.$ 2,920.SO 

'"·-···-··-·--··59.D 

Total Current BIU!t,gfor 1his M:atter 

Amount 

7!.75 

(420.75) 

s2,no.so 

Amoun( 

2.38 

""' 

CLARK CONDON 
A$$0C'!ATE• ,.,,,,.=.,.,~,u"< 

O,,;i!.1-

llol,by AIH Ma~m-~I Olt.tric! 
P0Bo•221~~ 

Do.lo: O..C.,,,t,v 31, 20M 

lrwokenutnbor. 3\1847 

~. lX71227•21!;7 Pr<>Jo><;tNu.otbor: 11a-09fl 

¾ ~-Phaoor.,. C-plol* r-Eo,oc,1 "'""' 

~mbu1$ltles 

l!J41mt,iePtlr<t~ 
Mros 

S7pGOOO 

,e.s.00000 
$92.500,00 

-~ 
~s•FH 

1C<I.OO 

,0000 

100.00 

To!!olRoin'l<,r>-

,0401 S1•ik> Uoli A=d Hou<t""- To,c, 770•5 
nc mS1>.'4"14 r,oc :r,3.8:r, 0808 
,.,,,,.,:1,:,,1,,.,n,;1""e""' 

$7.500.00 S7.500hl 
m.000.00 sas.coo.oo 
m.soo.oo S9~,S00.00 

-·· ,_ 
,0.00 ,,oo 
rooo 

== 
~00 

~ 

"'00 
~ 



Cl""'Con<IMM$0da!c• 
1c.«l1S1<1$o.tin!!!¼,d 
i¾l""'.00.·"TX 7TC:25 

Activity Summary Report 

DateR3°"G'l': 1112s1201410 n.13112014 
ProjcctfMe<llat P.!QO S~ / Ccst 

113-0118 - Bro~dway Blvd Airport Corridor 
6&Wl.m;w-ec,st1>.11cil 

a.00x11.oa 

Color Laser -cust ea,;:h 
11.00~17.00 

Unit Cost 

8.S0x1LOO 
U,.~C<J,i: 

S0.25 

''"' 
$2.00 

o" 

,.oo 

112.00 

,.oo 

01/02f201512:00 pm 

• I 

>>~>>>>>>>>>i~>~~~>~>>~~> ll ll <l <l 11 ;J <JS.;;; !t ll ~~ti°'" .. "11 .. i!l lll'", 

Sqft TPla!Cost 

LOO S0.25 

224.00 $3%.00 

"' so.oo 

~43o!79 

Bill To: 

heJ!o! you have an invoice from: 

Cracked Fox 
14715 Carriage Park Or. Humble. TX 77395 

">OC'CSIC ~,.::C,,:n\,c,=o"'· 
Sc,:;,,:,..,-«1,,_-·.,·a=",-,,1e.1:»·1,w,··-.cs.,qc:J,.,., 

Pagel 

IJ~c\ UH 

·oo.w 

:o;: .. m 



hello! you have an involce from: 

Cracked Fox 
14715 Carr;nge Park Or, Humble, TX 77396 
R~;,s c:G,c,c<c"J''" cc,,,., ! s::~ 36< "0,1 : ,,.,.. ~,,._· 3~-- _ .w,, 

,, .. ,.. ···- ' 
!W!To; ' ' " 

C,t~"c.S:,,~. 
it;· ;! i } 
Jiant_yort f''";)f!f.J't ouJi11e.H-._ 

tlill To: 

Tctnl 

Page 2 

hello! you have an invoice from: 

Cracked Fox 
14715 Carri.::ige Park Dr. Humble. TX 77395 
Rll1"1\Krac,o~fo, c'"" : ~;;~.'..!64 40\C I wr:i, Gr,,c,o~t<;, wm 

Page 2 

heHo! you have an invoice f'ron-1: 

Cracked Fox 
14715 Carriago Park Or. Humble, TX i7296 
Rcu~".?C,ncsMrm, cc;,, I f'"2.;,,:,.r;u12 ! ·~"«w.C1~,,~cfcu.crs 

Bill To: 

"'"'~ :H'(J v;s'il b-Joo0 <',~.,ic,. fo• f~ St~!~ d 1N 

i c,,1,:c.: '·"•'* :,,., cc.1~ r·,oe 

Equi-Tax Inc. 
Suite200 
17111 Rolling Creek Drive 
Hous1on Texas 77090 
281-444-4866 

Bill TO 

Hn:rls County Improvement District No. 9 
Hnwes Hill Calderon LLP 
10103 Fondren Roed, Suite 300 
Housloo TX 77096 

DESCRIPTION 

Roi! Management 
Mo11thly Foe per Contract for Assessment Collection 

Page. l 

Total 

""' 
211/2015 

Invoice 
INVOICEt 

47650 

'"""" 
300.00 

1,958.00 

Total s2,2ss.ooj 



Invoice 

~ .. --~~~-
_1..,..11llH1•1 

!l.o\~ ; -~~ 
. ,ffiO'li:ioifC.iiit'oti"" -

i--... 
! 

om11101s;i;,\\lf11.1 
i~ 

~t,5/l!>!)'(A/fltl -01rn1:ion~uu 
i""'-

. !~--.=~ .... ; -~, 
1r.o-..u:im1i..4™1t11~ 

1
1 

l~ondf'llfflll--..= 
~,11 ~-.. -~ jr-<1?-,11<.«ttl~ 
~-F,flll~Sim 

i~mtU.-«iU<ct1<1,>, 
!r..-.1:11>1o1U.vrllffill"1ontifiW:lon, 1~-smflt!ot>ol-.Slt(s 
:~.wu.-~ 
;~-..i:ri,muldmtu-. i.-.p«\....,_!l'lrifl.l~= 
1=.:! >'fflU. -ctmalal, 
'~.-M::l, cn,t!IU ~ 
],.,p,0/U<IJ.Ol>:!W•!nttlb.o-.~ :-~I~ 

P:ig~ 1 ofl 

-~-~-·'-~ 
\:l,';l,(IJJl 

. -·- ·------·-- _,,,-__ ,· ,-,:------
·- .Fr~·~ 

ht1ps:l/con.1ttt.int11i1.c,.m1'port.aL'lib/[)(lff ron!l . 7.1/htm15/Rcad~7Comro!.html 2/5/2015 

PERDUE, BRANDON, FIELDER, COLLINS & MOTT LLP 
Attorneys at Law 
1235 North Loop West, Suite 600 
Houston, Texas nooa 

amto: 

Hanfa County 10 #9 (Hobby Araa Mallagemnnt Dk 
do Equl.Ta:,, Inc. 

111:m. ',.,, •• , 

-~.--..:!'n!ll(lt<>llo<lio-1"1~<>!18:<n,p«\OW..OMO
lcf°'=mber:!f)j4, 

INVOICE ·I NC00024348 

' O:it••.,,,·,, I 12/30/2014 
p "' ·!1 

' ! 
'! $1,272.41 

! 

Nathdy:1c A. Kcnm,dy & Af,""'1ui r;,.,1& R<i)<nry~~~T""'" 
Sl,""""'1 MillS,.."l'D,i.,,1,;,U,J~,; 

c,,,.,,;"ll !!°"'""" T== 
r_._.,...., Hl/;>l'-1Ul!4.l '13,tlJS,~l'l?l 1h,l 

Jsaca,yl5,:.0,5 

Mc.D>Mdmv,-.. 
E>:0:1,ti,.,eC;,oct,;, 
Hol:b)lhwD:.~i<I 
P.O. a~~Ul67 
Hw~:cs,, txnn1-2,a7 

D""'<lw"Y $trcet ~~: !ll-4! lo A,ij>,o<1 ll<olt!ev;>rc1 
WBS N<,. UOOC!S73-00(!1-:I; Ccouoct Numbot a,aw 
Rev1sion No. t: LEO SUN! LJtjht1 ond t.arn!,~poJ 
tt..-.l=pe fniwteu:n,,nb 
NAKProjectr,,,,.1403-01 

for ENGllJEffi!NG SERVICES n:o~e:l <m 11\e Rtt•·"''~ Pfe-')'ot 
In 1?!<, per>Od ~ o-mi,.,, 1, 2014 11\t~ Oo,comher J1, 2014. 

Woter .....t Sanftary SeMtr O.,,.!gn 

T<>to\Fea 
Po.ce<nl c,,,r4H<le 
To!•!F.,.,B~d 
u,n P10,ioU$ !~e>l?aym,,,,ts 
C,m•n1!""""'§Am<><IS\ 

Total Foe 
P«oo<l!Corr;,lllt<> 
T<l(n!Foeeilieo 
l<><o P,.,,!w; :a~~>IPll)'mO,ilS 
Currcntlll\'Or.l!Amo,Jr;t 

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE THJS INVOICE 

ROLAND, FRY & WARREN, L.L.C. 

S ~.~ll.W 
S $!Z/2.10 
S 2,ffl5.W 

$ 2,695.90 .._-· 

Ccnificd Public AcCOlllllfilltS 1525 Lakevi1te Dfive-, Sutte 121 
Kingwood, TX 77339 

{281)346-9151 
FAX(281)346-9199 

2/612015 

Hobby Arc::1. Management District 
P.O. Box 22167 
Houston, TX 77227-2167 

for Profcssionul Services R.:mdcted: 

Bookkeeping Sl:T\'ie<:s pro,·idcd duriog Jl!llua.ry 2015 for tlic 
rnomh ofDeccm~r 20!4 

One LollC St:rr Delivery 

600.00 

10.13 

41.40 

$651.53 



-- ----- ------------------------- ------------ ---------- ---~-- --------------r--------------------------------------- ---- ------------------- -- ----------------, 

! 

T~l>l i5,~HiW ' ---------- -- - -,====-:=::; .__,/ 
""'i"~"'""""'"''"'"" I 

SEAL Security Solutions LLC 
15::!5 Blalock Road 
Houston, TX 77080-7318 

BIil To 
i Hob'bi· Arca Ma.n:ig~~m District 
:96J0UlngPoint,Ste.150 
'HoUS1on, TX 77055 

Description 

Tiiroe Cumrni~ion<:<.1 Officers 1•1ith Vehicles and 
Occasion:1! K-9 

Three Commisoionl!d Officers with Vchicks and 
Ck=ional K-9. New Year's Holiday 
"•Holiday !four,; :ire billed m 13 Times r.he regular 
ratcH 

Patrol Period 12/29/1014 through Ol/0~/20!5 

T'Jtrols are bi!kd ,:vc:ry Monday for the hours 
patrolled the week pr«eding the ab,;,ve im·oicc dale. 

This invoke is M,:onday ihm11gh Sunday inc!usi,·e. 

Thnnk you for allowing us to earn ., 

Hours 

91 

15 

_, 

Invoice 

115/2015 2538S 

Ratel Hour Amount 

27.00 2,457.00 

4050 60750 

Sa11111 Tn(S.. %) SO.ml 

i Total I SJ,064.50 

SEAL Security Solutions LLC 
1525 Blalock Road 
Houston. TX 77080-7318 

BIii To 
Hobby Arc:i Management Oistrict 
96l0LongP0im,S1e. !50 
Houston, TX 77055 

Description 

Three Commis,ioncd OJliccn; with Vehicles and 
Occasiorui! K-9 

f>aLNl Pcrill-0 0!/26/2015 through 02/01/2015 

Patrols are billed CWT)' ~fonday for 1hc hours 
patro!kd the week preceding the above in\•oicc dale. 

'nlis invoice is Monday through SW1day indusirc. 

Hours 

93 

' Thank you for allowing us to earn your business. 

' 

SEAL Security Solutions LLC 
1525 Blalock Road 
Houston, TX 77080-73 J 8 

Bill To ·--·--. -· ... _, ____ _ 
i Hobby Arca Management District 
%10 Long Point, Ste. 1.50 
Houston. TX 77055 

Oe$crlp:tlon 

'Three Commissioned Officers with Vehicles nnd 
Occasioru,.! K-9 

Patrol Period 01/05/2015 through 01111/2015 

Patrols are billed every Monday for the hours 
patrolled Lhcv."tek preceding the above in111icc d.1te. 

This invoice is \.fond3y through Sund:.t.y inclusi\·c. 

Hours 

'° 

Thank you for allowing us to earn your business. 

Invoice 

2/2fl015 !56-16 

Ratel Hour Amount 

27.00 2,511.01) 

Sales T:u (11.2 '/4) S0.00 

I 
Total I $2,511.00 

Invoice 

!fl2/20l5 

Rate/Hour Amount 

27.UO 2.160.00 

Sa11111Tax(8.2 %) S0.00 

! 
Total I 52,160,00 



SEAL Security Solutions LLC 
1525 Blalock Road 
Houston, TX 77080-7318 

BIIITo 
!lobby Area Management District 
9610 Long Point, S1c. 150 
Houston, TX 77055 

Description 

111rec Commis.sioncd omc~'l'S with Vchides and 
O.:casiona! K-9 

Pau-ol Period 01/1212015 through Olil8'2015 

l'atrol5 arc billed ewry Monday for the hours 
pa1roH~d the wo::I,: prt.'Ccling \l)c aOOvc invoice date. 

This in\x,k,: is Monday through Sunday inclus1\"c. 

Hours 

101 

. Tl for allowing us to earn your business, 

Invoice 
, , 

Ratel Hour Amount 

27.00 2,727.00 

~--+-----l 
Sales Tax (6.2 •A;J SO.O(l 

, Total l S2,727.0ll 

. 

··-- ··--·-··-······~---··1 
SEAL Security Solutions LLC 
1525 Blalock Road 
Houston, TX 77080-73I8 

BIil To 
· llobhy Area Mnnagtmenl District 
:96!0LongPoint, Sh:. ISO 
! Houston,. TX 77055 

Description 
TIITTc Commissioned Ofi1ccrs \1i1h Vehicles and 
Occn;.i1mal K-9 

Patrol Period OJ/! 9120! 5 through O ! 125/20! 5 

Patrols arebi!kd every Monday for the hmm; 
patrolkd the week preceding the ahr.l\"c i11,11icc daie. 

TI1is invoice is !>londay through Sunday inclusive-. 

Hours 

97 

Thank you for allowing us to earn your business. 

Invoice 

J/261201 5 25557 

Rate/ Hour Amount 
27.00 2,619.00 

Sall!$ Tu (8,2 %) :S0.00 

Total I :Sl,619.06 



Hawes Hill Calderon LLP 
P.O. Box 22167 
Houston TX 77227-2167 

Bill To: 

MD-HCID # 9 (Hobby) 
P.O. Box 22167 
Houston, TX 77227 

DATE 

I I 
I ' 

12/22/2014 
1/512015 

i 
I 
I 

I 

I 

I 
I 
I 
' 

I 

I 

DESCRIPTION 

Professional Consulting & Administration Januaiy 2015 

GIS Mapping, P. Horton Dec 2014 

Reimbursable Expenses 

City ofHouston l of8 
Harris County Clerk 118/2015 
Verizon J. Hawes 12/20-1-19, 2015 (45%) 
Verizon 1. Hawes 12/20- 1-19, 2015 (45%) 
Verizon J. Hawes 12/20- 1-19, 2015 (45%) 
Verizon J. Hawes 1120-2/19, 2015 (45%) 
Verizon J. Hawes 1/20 -2/-19, 2015 (45%) 
Verizon J. Hawes 1120-2/19, 2015 (45%) 
Mileage, R. Hill Jan 2015 
Mileage, R. Hill Dec2014 
Mileage, L. Cla.yton Dec 2014 
Mileage, G. Larson Jan 2015 

In house copies 3164 @.15 each+ 26 sets@$1.00 each 
In house postnge 
In house color copies 56 @ .50 each 

Terms: C.O.D. 

Invoice#: 43014927 
Date: 2/1/2015 

Page: 

~ Sales Tax; 

Total Amount: 

Amount Applied: 

Balance Due: 

Invoice 

AMOUNT 

$8,843.18 

~-r 
$0.19 
$9.00 >-

$58.~ 
$22.45 
$24.40 
$60.03 Q...,1 \ 
$22.45 

$2i:f' 
$14. 9 
$41.44 ,. 2.: 
$26.88 ) $167.~ 

$50().60 
$1.88 >S 

$28.00 l) 
'--

I 

__ I 
$0.00 

$9,920.28 

$0.00 

$9,920.28 ! 



rzl Equi-Tax Inc. l.!:::!J Ad Valon,n Tar Assessors I Collectors 

17111 R.olllilg Cr,:dd.lrive, Sullc :200. lkllmai, T~ 77'1JO 
P.O. lk>,, 73109, tkM\Qn, Tew 1727l 

Cll:lwmtrSenh:clBIM4.3946 fu 2SU40.8304 

HARJUS COt1NTY IMP DIST 9 
DATE: 01/22/201.5 
TAX ¥SAR, 20U. 

QVERPAYMSNT: $72 15 
DEPOSIT BATCH NO.: 91-129 
RECEIPT NUMBER: nuoo29 

OWNER NAME:: WINDEMERE STREET PROPERTIES LL CRRCK NO.: 501000714 

ACC01JNT NUMBER, 91/028/293/000/0005 

PAID BY:970693 

AI»!O TI:TLE COMPANY 
1800 BERIN'G SOI'l'Jl 150 
HOUSTON TX 77057 

DATI! OP PAYMEll<"T: 01/22/2015 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

LTS 2 J & 4 & 5 BLK 21 
PA!Ui: PLACE 

4131 DOVER ST 32 ..,,,-· 

NOTICE OP OVRlU:'7,nmH'l' OF TAX 

DISTRICT NA."IE OVERPAYMENT AMO!JN'l' &"\RR.IS COUNTY IMP DIST 9 $72 .15 ../' 

**********************"""'*****•********************"***•••·--••••********" 

AMOUNT OF CHECK, 

AMOUNT APPLn:m: 

DIFFSRENcs: 

COMPLETED BY: 

$1,102.86 

$1,030.71 

$72.15 

CHECK NO: 501.000714 

Ref No.: PD FEB 14045376 

DATE, \-"2:Z.. 
Make refund payable to:, _____________________ _ 

Addl:'ess, ___________________________ _ 

City: __ ~----------;State,_~ ___ zip:=-~~~--If you need more infonnation, call customer Service at 281.444 3946 .. 

rz1 Equi-Tax Inc. l.!:::!J Ad Valonm TaxAs.re.s.rors I Calkcttm 

DATE: 01/06/2015 

CENTER J\MERICA PROPERTY 
c/o Popp Hutcheson PUC / 
1301 S.. MoPae Expressway, Ste 430 
Austin. !X 78746 

lDlRIUS COUNTY IMP DIST 9 

ACCOONT NUMBER, 91/125/493/001/0001 
TAX 'lEAR: 2013 
R.l?F No., 0886748 

LEGAL DESCIUPTI:ON 

RBS A BLIC 1 
OlU\NGB GllOVE SHOPPUIG ClmTBR 

10225 ALMEDA GENOA RD _,,..-

DATE PROCBSSBD: 01/06/2015 
RBCBIP'l' lfOMBER: 91131394 
DEl'OSI7 BATCH No.: RF150106 

NOTICB Ol' CHllHGe: lll 'J!lUC LIABILI'J:'1 

_ We have been notified by the 11ppraisal District of a change in the 
apPraisal of your property that bas reeulted in a change in your tax liability for the 2013 tax yeax-. 

The explanation of the change is, 

f l Decreaae in Appraised Value 
[ J Exemption.Ce) Added 

[ J Homestead 
t J aver s5 
[ J Disabled Person 
r l Disabled veteran 

[ ) Account Prorated 
[ ] ACCOUD.t Deleted 
!,J Re•di<lr>,, -.iei,, .. lwd 
y..i otberq_:n/LSt ;;m:,.5qt.J?;J 

This action has resulted in a decrease in the amount of tax you owe. 
Accordingly, we are issuing you a refund in the lll!IOUllt of $1,578.45,_,,-, 

Note1 Queetion.s regar.:Ung changes in value llhould be directed to the Appraisal Dietrict, 

If you need moi:-e information, call CU111torner Service at 281,444..394.6. 

rzl Equi-Tax Inc. l.!:::!J Ad Valorem Tar Asaenon I Collecton 

17111 RdliugCra:k Ori~ SolrolOO, lbistoo, T=:, 77090 
P,O.Bfll m09, Boo;too, Tew. mn 

OluoMtSeoic:c1H.444.3946 W: 281.440.&304 

HARRIS COUNTY IMP DIST 9 
DATB: Ol/09/2015 
T.AX YEAR: 2014 

Om.ER NAME: G H REID ENTERPRISES UC 

ACCOUNT NOMEER: 91/064/061/001/0001 

PAID B'l:611041 

CAPI'l'J\l, TITLE OF TEXAS tu: 
:~~ LOOETTA rm s~ ~~~79 __ _,, 

OVERPAYMENT: $64 .19 
DEPOSIT BATCH NO.; 91-124 
RBCBI1?T Nl.lMllBR: 91140795 

CHECK NO.: 7076 

DA'ra OF PAYMENT: 01/09/2015 

ur...AL DZSCRIPT!ON 

I.TS1&2BLK1 
FAIRLlllm PUCE 

6300 DIXIE DR _,,-, 

NO'l":ICB OF OVBRPAYMKBT OF TAX 

DISTRICT N.!U'2 
HARRIS COUNTY IMP DIST 9 

....................... ,. .............. ,. .............. ,.,. ........ ,. .. ,. ........ **'***********••••••*••• 

AMOONT OF CHECK: $268 .. 51 CHECK NO: 7076 

AMOUNT APl.'LtBD, $204.32 Ref No., 14202353 

DIFFERENCE, $64 .19 

COMPLETED BY, q, DATE: 

Make refund. payable to: 

Address, 

City, __ ~=~~====-=,state,=~==~Zip,=~~==-If you need more i..nformation, call customer Service at 281.444 .. 3946. 

rzl Equi-Tax Inc. l.!:::!J Ad Valorem Tax As.remm I Collectors 

l71l1Rolling0ffi<Dm-e,Sllilc200, Jbuton.. T~ 77000 
P, 0. Jlw;73l09, lbmoo. Tai:, 77273 

Onrom«Serncc2S!.444.3946 fax 281M0.8roi 

DATB, 01/13/2015 

ClID v:n:.LAGE GREBN LI.' 
FO BOX 741739 
HOUSTON TX 77274-1739 ___,. 

H1I.R.Rl'.S COUN'lT IMP DIST 9 

ACCOONT NUMBER., 91/040/239/000/0067 
TAX YEAR~ 2013 
REF No.: 0885801 

LEGAL D&SClUPTION 

TR 183 
ABST 2 7 J lt HlOOUS 

7550 DROUET ST 117 

DATE PROCESSB!lt 01/13/2015 
REC31:PT HUMBER, 91130310 
DBPOO!T BATCH No.: RF150113 

HO'l'!CB OF CHA9GB DI TAX LIABn.rtt 

We have been notified by the Appraisal District of a change in the 
appraisal of your property that has reaulted in a change in your 
tax liability for the 2013 tax year. 

The explanation of the change is: 

[ ] Decrease in llppraised Value 
[ J E.lrenlption {a) Added 

I I Homestead 
[ l Over 65 
[ ] Disabled Person 
[ J Disabled Veteran 

( ] Account Prorated 
[ l Aocou.nt Deleted u, Renditisin Ptmaltl': W"aive4-c1 "(J .. B 
.,... Other: cJ)USe !DI"?- ':)71P1) 

Thia action baa reaulted. in a decrease in the amount of tax you owe. 
Accordingly, we are issuing you a refund in the amount ofi $159. 78. \.,'"""'"' 

Note, Questions. regarding changes in value should be directed to the 
Appraisal District .. 

If you need more information, call Cua.tomer Service a.t 2Sl.444.394EL 



-- - --------------- ---------------- ----------------·--·-------------------·--------·-·----------------·-·-----··-------, 

~ Equi-Tax Inc. L!:::!J Ad Valornn Tax Asseuon: I Colhctors -- 17111 RclllntO=:Dlite. Suit 200, Hr:iuuoo, T~ 77090 
P. 0. &:t. 731®, tkwl(!D:, TClllS m73 

C\mo<nerScnk,:,281."44..3946 W. 2&1.440.s304 

DATB, Ol/06/2015 

COnn's Appftancesand CA!, u> .._,,/ 
c/o Wi!5Qn & Franco 
11000 Richmon.ti Ave, Suite 3.SO 
How.ton, Texas 71042 

ACCOUNT NUMBSR: 91/104/827/000/0001 
TAX. YEAR: 2013 
REF No., 0886746 

LEG.AL DBSCRIPTION 

RESERVE B 
'l'R 1A~l BI.I{ A 

""""' EOOBBROOK DINELOPMENT PHASE 1 
10900 GULF FWY ,_,.---

DA'l'B PROCESSED: 01/06/2015 
RECBlP'l' N!JMBER: 91131297 
OBP0Sl'.T BATCH Ro.: Rl"l.50106 

NOl'ICH OF CKANGK DI TAX LDIBILI'lY 

We ha~ been notified by the Appraisal District of a change in the 
apprns.al of your prcperty that has resulted in a change in yom: 
tax liability for the 2013 tax yeiU". 

The e:icplanation of the change is: 

( J Decrease in Appraised Value 
[ J &xemption (sl Added 

[ l H=stead 
[ l over 65 
( J Dbabled Peraon 
[ ] Disabled Veteran 

[ ] AcCQUnt Prorated 
[ J Account Deleted [ A Renditiqp, Penalty Waived 
'(' oebe" GQJJf,t :lDl?,- '.'Vifiqq 

Thia action hai; resulted in a decre!l.l;le in the amount of tax you Olll(l. • .• 
Accordingly, we are issuing you a refund in the =-.mt of $2!10.60, ,_.,., 

Note: Questions regarding changes in value shcr.ild be directed. to the Appraisal District. 

If you need more information, call CU8tomer Service at 281,444.3!141i, 

~ Equi-Taxlnc. L!:!J Ad Valorem Tax Anes.son I ColkcJon· 

171ltRo!liD1lCm:kD!Ml.Suite200. Hoo!1.on. Tcus 17090 
P.O. Bo,. 73109, Hou$lon, Te:w 77273 

Cu:stOlllccSl:MCe'281.444,3946 &I 28!.44M304 

HAR..'US COtlNTY IMP DIST 9 
DATE: 01/22/2015 
TAX YEAR: 2013 

OWNER NAME: HUTTON HOWARD L 

ACCOUNT NUMBER.: 91/063/033/022/0022 

PAID BY, 

HOT'l'O.'"l HOWARD L 
3202 LUELLA AVE 
DEER PARK TX 77536-5218 .._,,.,. 

OVERPAYMENT: $25.32 
DE.POSIT BATCH NO., 91El5122 
RECEIPT h"UMSER: 91130723 

CHECK NO.: 

DATE' OF PAYMENT: 01/22/2015 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

LTS 22 & 23 BLK 22 
EAS'OO.VEN 

8825 DEXTER ST _,,..,,. 

NOTICE OP OVBllPAYMBHT OP 'l'.IIX 

DISTRICT NAME 
HARRIS COUNTY IMP DIST 9 

OVERPAYMBN'.r AMOUNT 
$25.32 ..,,,.... 

IIBJ\.SON: _Qw!l>,"1.f(X);a,.~i"""Ol!l:r,Utc_ _____________ _ 

................................................. ,. ........................................ . 
l\MOONT OF CHECK: 

AMOUNT APPLIED, 

DIFl'ERENCE: 

$326.00 

$300.68 

$25 .32 

COMPLETED BY, ___ ;,,ai,~----

CHECK NO: 

Ref No.: I-ECHK-218901540 

DATE: __ £)-~2~-,_,,,_ __ _ 
Make refund payable to,, _____________________ _ 
AddreBa:, ____________________________ _ 

City:, __ ~----------State, _____ zip,, ______ _ 
If you need more information, call customer Service at 281.444.3946. 

~ Equi-Taxlnc. L!:!J Ad Valonm Tax Assessors I Collectors 

11lll Rollt:ogC.W:Dml!!.S~ite200, ~. Te:tni; 77090 
P.0.Bo:t13109, U::,n100,Te..as 77273 

Cusloma:Seni.:c281A#J!l46 flu 2'1!.440.SJ04 

DATE: 01/05/2015 

~:~~:mm/ 
!'RI!ml')SW00D TX 77546-6120 

ACCOUNT NUKBE.R: 91/062/031/00S/0004 
TAX YEAR: 2013 
RBF No,, 0886744 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

TR 4AE 1/2 OF LT 4 BtK S 
DIXIBACRBS 

DATB PROCESSED: 01/06/2015 
RSClilPT L'OKBER: 911306:71 
DEPOSIT BATCH No.: lU'150101i 

NOTI:C8 OF OlAJRm n, TAX LlAmLtn 

We have been notified by the Appraisal District of a change in the 
appraisal of your prcperty that has resulted in a chil!lge in your 
tax liability for the. 2013 tax- year. 

The explanation of the ciJangE! is: 

[ l Decrease in Appraised Value 
C I Exemption {s) Added 

{ ] HO:llestead 
{ l over 65 
[ J Di.Gabled J:>erson 
[ J Disabled veteran 

{ J Account Prorated 
{ l Account Deleted 
t; Retlditi.An._Penalt}( Waive,d 
~ other, muse ;.itJ13-11:1q731-

This action has resulted in a decrease in the amount of tax you o,.,-e. 
Accordingly, we are issuing you a refund in the ar.!Ollllt of $34. 74. ,__,,..-

Note, Questions regarding changes in value ehoald be directed to the Appraisal Dist:dct. 

If you need more infonoation, call CUstc:nner Service at 28L4U.3946. 

~ Equi-Tax Inc. L!:!J Ad Valorem Tax Assestors I Collec«Jn 

17111Rcllln:Cim;Drivc.,Sllill:200, fbaloo,TCJ.#S 770'JO 
P.O. Sol 73100, lmgJoo, Tm!!. 77273 

c.'u$tooiaSer.k:e2l!l.444.3946 W: 281.440.8~ 

DATE: Ol./09/2015 

REWOLDS TONY REX & JANICE 
2016 MA.IN ST APT 1814 
HOUSTON TX 77002-8895 ...,,..-

HARRIS COUNTY !MP DIST 9 

ACCOONT NUMBER, 91/0'.M/203/002/0192 
TAX YSAR, 2013 
REF No.: 0886783 

I.,EGAI, OESCRn>T!ON 

TR 62B 
soont HOUSTON GARDENS SEC 6 

8681 SCRAN'l'mi AVE ,_., 

DATE Pl'!OCESSED: 01/09/2015 
RECEIPT NIDIBER, 91130184 
DEPOSIT BATCH No.: RF150109 

NDTICB OP CHANGB IN TAX LtABILXTY 

We have been notified by the Appraisal Diatdct of a change in the 
appraisal of your property that haa resulted in a change in your 
tax liability for the 2013 tax year. 

The explanation of the change is: 

! J Decrease in Appraised value 
[ J :sxemption{s) Added 

[ l Homestead 
[ J over 65 
[ J Disabled Person 
[ I Disabled Veteran 

{ J Account Prorated 
[ } Account Deleted 

( ,! Rendief,~ 'fs"''v Wai=r, /", "fJ Other:jljt'.. 701':7- d:!Z 

This action has resulted in a decrease in i!.he amount of tax you owe. 
Aceordingly, we are iBsuing you a refund in the runount of $64.68,._.........--

Note: Questions regarding- changes in value sl=Jld be directed to the 
Appraisal District. ,. 

If you 'need i:nore iclo:nnation, call CuetOl!ler 'sei:-,rice at 281,444.3946. 



r.,;J Equi-Tax Inc. l!::!f Ad Valorem Tax Assessors I Collecton 

17111 Rollms C'nd::Dril'll.S*:ZOO. ~. Tc:w 77090 
P.O.lki~73100, Homtotl,Teiu71Z73 

Ontoow: Strric1l281.#4jll4(j tu 28"440.!304 

DATB: 01/06/2015 

TRIANGLE SHOPPING CTR LP 
S004 CEDAR ST 
BELLAIRE . 

ID\RR.!S cotlH'rY IMP DIST 9 

ACCOUNT NUMBER, 91/070/072/028/0001 
TAA YEAR: 2013 
REP No.: 0866745 

LEGAL DESCRin'!ON 

LTS 1 TKRO 6 BL!< 22 
SANTA ROSA SEC 5 

6115 TELBPHONE RD __..... 

DATE PROCESSS:O: 01/05/2015 
RECBIP'l' NCMBRR: 911309!,J 
DBFOSIT BATCH No.: RF150106 

OOl"ICR OF CllAllGR :IN TAX LilIBI:L:tTY 

We have been notified by the Appraisal Dist:rict of a change in the 
appraisal of your property that has resulted in a chnns;e in your 
tax liability for the 2013 tax year. 

The explanation of the change iB: 

[ J Decrease in Appraised value 
[ J Exemption(s) Added 

[ 1 Homestead 
[ J over 65 
[ J Disabled Person 
[ l Disabled Veteran 

[ J Account Pi:-o:rated 
[ ] Account Deleted 
/). Renditl,Qq ,..,.,,,, ••A.VO<! 
}0 Other: (!,llilbf .J..DD: 5SqO(p 

Thie action bas resulted in a decreaae in the a=unt of tax you owe. 
Accordingly, we are issuing you a refund in the amount of $300.00,,.__......... 

Note: Questions regarding changes in value ehould be directed to the 
Appraisal. Oiatrict. 

If you need more information, call CU.8tomer Service at 281.444,3946. 

r.,;J Equi-Tax Inc. l!::!f Ad Valorem Tax Assesso:rs I Collectors 

11111:RclllngCred:1>ri,;.,,s~200. lbulrin, Ti=i; nooo 
P.O. Bm 73100, lloo!lm. Tew mn 

Ouwmcr-Sen-k.e:!.lil.#t.3946 ra.,, :m.440.3304 

DATE: 01/06/2015 

W2007 EQUITY INNS RElU,TY LP 
6011 CONNECTION DR. 
IR.V!NG TX 75039~2607 ~ 

HARR.lS comttY IMP DIST 9 

ACCOUNT NUMBER.1 91/118/450/001/0001 
TAX YEAR: 2013 
REF No., 0886747 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

RES A BLK l 
SOUTH HOUSTON SHONE¥$ CENTER 

Il11.TE P!t0C$SED; 01/06/2015 
RECEIPT utlMBE'll, 91131337 
DBl:'OSIT BATCH No.: RF150106 

NOT:ICB OP CllJUiGB nt TAX LIABU.rtt 

We have been notified by the Appraisal District of a change in the 
appraisal of your property that baa resulted in a change in you:t" 
tax liability for the 2013 tax year. 

The explanation of the change is: 

[ 1 Decrease in Appraised Value 
r l Bxemption(s) Added 

[ l Homestead 
[ J over 65 
{ J Di!lal;lled Parson 
[ J Disabled Veteran 

{ J Account Pro:rated 
( J Account Deleted 

,kl ~~;~'1'.!a'u"A!ty.:1'b~t;-w10 

This action has :t"esulted in a decrease in the !llllOllllt of tax you Ol,/e. 
Accordingly, we are issuing you a :t"efund in the amount of $1,390.50 . ...........-

Note: Questions regarding changes in value should be directed to the 
Appraisal District. 

If you need mo:t"e information, call customer service at 281.444.3946. 

I 
------------------------+------··-··- -···-·-·---- ----------------··- ------ ___ J 

r.,;J Equi-Tax Inc. l!::!f Ad Valonm Tax Auesson I Collectors 

DATE: 01/09/2015 

WOIIAN R E' lllC 
PO BOX 1163 
BAn'OWN 'l'X 77522·1163 

ACCOUNT NUMBER: 91/034/203/003/0170 
TAX YEAR: 2013 
REF No. 1 0886784 

LEGAL DE'SOU.PTION' 

LT 170 
SOOTH HOOS!ON GARDENS SBC 6 

8501 MOSIB¥ RD 

DATE PROCBSSED: 01/09/2015 
RBCI!IPT NtJMBEA: 91130199 
DEPOSIT BATCH No., RF150109 

NOTIC'.R OF CH1INGli: DI TAX LillBlLn'Y 

We have been notified by the Appraisal Dist:rfot of a change in the 
app:raiaal of your property that has :resulted in a change in your 
tax liability for the 2013 tax year. 

'l'he explamitiOil of the change is: 

[ J Decrease in 1,ppraieed Value 
[ l Bxel!lptioo (a) Added 

[ J H0tnestead 
[ J over 65 
t l Disabled Person 
[ J Disabled Veteran 

! J Account P:rorated 
[ J Acccunt Deleted 

[ l """'ti'frf=lty "''~II;./ q ,, cV Other,IJ St' l-Q p 1'15' 

This action has resulted in ~ decrease in tl:e amount of tax you owe. 
Accordingly, we are isGUing you a refund in the amoW'.lt of $333.00. 

Note: Questions regarding changes in value Er.ould be !l,irected to the 
Appraisal District. ,. ,. 

If you need m0re info:rmation, Call customer Service at 281.444 .3946: 



! 
i 

Invoie<' 

,..."""~ ... -... --.... - .. 

SEAL Security Solutions LLC 
1525 Blalock Road 
Houston, Tx.77080*73!8 

i em To ·---------, 

I Hobby An:a. Management D~trkt 
,9610longPoint,Ste.1SO 
inou5lon. TX770S5 

I 

Deseliptlon 

Three Commissioned Officers w!lh Vehicles md 
Oeeusional K--9 

Patrol l>,:rktd 12/!5/2014 through 12121/2014 

Patrols are billed every Mondi(',· for the hours 
patrolled Ihe "'..:,:\; pn=ding the above invoice dale. 

This invoice is Monday through Sunday iadusive. 

Hours 

157 

Thank you for allowing us to earn your business. 
I 

Pagel ofl 

,nnlH( 

Invoice 

~-"-=_,_,_,~! _2s.:::_J 

Ratel Hour Amount 

27.00 4,239.00 

SalosTuJ8.l %1 so.oo 

Total 
I 

S4.239.UO i 
l 

SEAL Security Solutions LLC 
1525 Blalock Road 
Houston, TX 77080-7318 

I Bil!To 
I Hobby Area Mar:u,ge,nent District 1 
j9610LongPoiat,Stc.l50 ] 

l"'-n"'"' I 
_, --·-·-----------_] 

Description 

Three Commii;sioned Officas with Vehk!es ,iml 
O=ionsl K--9 

Patrol Period 12/08/2014 \hrough 12/!412014 

Patrols are billed every M011day for the hours 
p.;.tro\led the we,:k in-e=!ing the above invoice d.rte. 

This in mice is Mondzythmugh Sunday indusi,..:. 

Hours ,. 

! Thank yon for allowing u~ to earn your business. 
I 

SEAL Security Solutions LLC 
l 525 Blalock Road 
Houston, TX 77080*7318 

Bill To 
!Hobey Arcs Management District 
!9610 Long Point, Ste. ISO 
IHousion, TX 17055 1 

\L __________ J 

Description 

TIITT:c Commissioned Offit<:rs with Vehic1~ 311d 
O=sionslK--9 

PijlfO! P¢riod 12/22/2014 through 1212812014 

Patrols are bit!cd evuy Monday for the hours 
palru!led !he w~k preca:ding the above lnvoiet: -· 

Th~ invoice is Monday \hrough Sunday inc!wive. 

Hours 

70 

Thank you for allowing us to eam your business. 

Invoice 

Ratel Hour Amount 

27.00 2,673.00 

S.loaTu(B..2 ., S0.00 

I 
! 

Total I Sl,673.00 

Invoice 
Date ! lnvaiee# 

12/2912014 25293 

Rate/Hour Amount 

27.00 1.890.00 

&alesTu{fl.2 !'> ,0.00 

l Total I Sl,890.00 

I 



I 

',H'*<>1Aiu~mo,,!O\olf.ct 
,J¢G~~i 
'POBm<221G7 
)Hx•!Dn,1X7n2.'I 

·---------

1ofS..""'1'ol-<>"1•lrMl"'10to ]Deoomt~,201, 

I 'TI 

L _____ L_ ____________ , _______ ,J_ _____ .i.... .... -----, ' Wo ;r~,e<:la'_, )°"' prcm;,t paym..-,t 
Totot ~5(1J)O j L.... 

7076/i()()D(;XlQU\Wl.6 
1'0TAl, ~0{;83 · S1Mil-

lJANNf F.0\ICINS 
Ql/12 111/12 , l4H$74oPX'(7A2l'HH 
DJ/1.l 01/)3 24Q:Snwt!o:SWn'l1(W oill3 01m 2tlf.l!l$&1'1rnr~JF:WY 
O!J!.0 DJ/14 24!4'07QE!IUl¼1'HII 
01/14 OIIH 'lt7<,!~7of5J;TQLMVl 
1·01& xxxxxxxx:~xxxrm12 s1n.27 

, .... u,. Pa«•••• ·u n ....... nur .....,.,., '"' 

f"'""''"l''"""'·"''"-'""""'"'····-·M..., l'>),_,, ...... f> "'' -1.,,,,..,, -=,«~~o,,.-,.,.~ ""-A"< ti;_"'-.. ~ ,i.;,,...,,,,. "'""'""' ;. ,.;,1, i,- r'I""""' ,.,...,.,.,r,.,,..,. ,:,.Ji, 

l Mah g..&. 1',pt,k ,~, 
;tAUl(CARfl CElfTER 
PO SOX 308ll 
SALT LAKE CTV OT 84130•6833 
lplf•1111iJl1uJ!h,,f di llhuuJ!f ~~ 1ull~ /dpl p 11p1,r1 

ISi-,,,ll .. ll~• 
N"'ll,l""• 

~'""""''""""""'n,,, 
fSHlJ .. ,..,..•o! 
-~ol,f,.,J-.1 

To,,!r,:r,-.,A""""'' $ 

COIITROL ACC011ITT 
HOIIIV ARtA l!D 
PO IOX 22167 
H0115TOH TX 77227·2167 

ommi 
$14,.)7 
H~.<O -~ 

Jld11•Jh11"1"11•ur1!!•1'1'llufl1•IIJtl/lJ!ld!J•'d'ilu 

,:sass 00001: 53qaoooao:10 rn&B3n• 



Hobby Area Management District 
Bank Accounts Register 

As of February 12, 2015 
Type Date Num Name Memo 

AmegyBank 
Bill Pmt -Check 01/09/2015 1171 Greater East End Management District December 
Bill Pmt -Check 01/09/2015 1172 SEAL Security Solutions LLC 
Bill Pmt -Check 01/09/2015 1173 SMC Logistics Survey of burned out street lights 
Bill Pmt -Check 01/30/2015 1174 Amegy Visa Credit Card XXXX0683 
Bill Pmt -Check 02/12/2015 1175 Bracewell & Giuliani LLP General Counsel 
Bill Pmt -Check 02/12/2015 1176 Chris Labod Website Maintenance 
Bill Pmt -Check 02/12/2015 1177 Clark Condon Associates Project# 113-098 
Bill Pmt -Check 02/12/2015 1178 Core Logic Safe Rent Dec. &Jan. 
Bill Pmt -Check 02/12/2015 1179 Cracked Fox 
Bill Pmt -Check 02/12/2015 1180 Equi-tax Inc. Inv. # 47650 
Bill Pmt -Check 02/12/2015 1181 Greater East End Management District January 
Bill Pmt -Check 02/12/2015 1182 Hawes Hill Calderon LLC January 
Bill Pmt -Check 02/12/2015 1183 Nathelyne A. Kennedy & Associates Broadway St Reconstruct/LED St Lights/ 
Bill Pmt -Check 02/12/2015 1184 Perdue, Brandon, Fielder, Collins & Mott Delinquent collections 
Bill Pmt -Check 02/12/2015 1185 Roland Fry & Warren, LLC January Bookkeeping 
Bill Pmt -Check 02/12/2015 1186 SMC Logistics Liter abatement of right-of-way 
Check 02/12/2015 1187 Alamo Title Company Refund: 4137 Dover St 32 
Check 02/12/2015 1188 Capital Title of Texas LLC Refund: 6300 Dixie Drive 
Check 02/12/2015 1189 Center America Property Refund: 10225 Almeda Genoa Rd 
Check 02/12/2015 1190 CND Village Green LP Refund: 7550 Dronet St, 117 
Check 02/12/2015 1191 Conn's Appliances and CAI, LP Refund: 10900 Gulf Freeway 
Check 02/12/2015 1192 Stephen Dercole Refund: 6824 Lindbergh Street 
Check 02/12/2015 1193 Howard L. Hutton Refund: 8825 Dexter St 
Check 02/12/2015 1194 Tony Rex & Janice Reynolds Refund: 8681 Scranton Ave 
Check 02/12/2015 1195 Triangle Shopping Center LP Refund: 6115 Telephone Rd 
Check 02/12/2015 1196 W2007 Equity Inns Realty LP Refund: 7922 Mosley Rd, 122 
Check 02/12/2015 1197 Wodan RE Inc. Refund: 8501 Mosley Rd 
Bill Pmt -Check 02/12/2015 1198 SEAL Security Solutions LLC Inv.# 25646 

Total Amegy Bank 

Wells Fargo Bank 

Page 1 of 4 



Total Wells Fargo Bank 

Plains State Bank 
Total Plains State Bank 

TexSTAR-Operating 
Total TexSTAR-Operating 

TOTAL 

T]Jpe 

Hobby Area Management District 
Bank Accounts Register 

As of February 12, 2015 
Date Num Name - Memo 

Page 2 of4 



AmegyBank 

Total Amegy Bank 

Wells Fargo Bank 

Amount 

(3,200.00) 

(8,802.00) 

(350.00) 

(141.27) 

(2,979.73) 

(700.00) 

(347.85) 

(3,239.00) 

(3,050.00) 

(2,258.00) 

(2,560.00) 

(9,920.28) 

(2,695.90) 

(1,272.41) 

(651.53) 

(5,416.67) 

(72.15) 

(64.19) 

(1,578.45) 

(159.78) 

(290.60) 

(34.74) 

(25.32) 

(64.68) 

(300.00) 

(1,390.50) 

(333.00) 

(2,511.00) 

(54,409.05) 

Hobby Area Management District 
Bank Accounts Register 

As of February 12, 2015 
Balance 

31,777.91 
28,577.91 

19,775.91 

19,425.91 

19,284.64 

16,304.91 

15,604.91 

15,257.06 

12,018.06 

8,968.06 

6,710.06 

4,150.06 

(5,770.22) 

(8,466.12) 

(9,738.53) 

(10,390.06) 

(15,806.73) 

(15,878.88) 

(15,943.07) 

(17,521.52) 

(17,681.30) 

(17,971.90) 

(18,006.64) 

(18,031.96) 

(18,096.64) 

(18,396.64) 

(19,787.14) 

(20,120.14) 

(22,631.14) 

(22,631.14) 

422,476.34 

Page 3 of 4 



Total Wells Fargo Bank 

Plains State Bank 
Total Plains State Bank 

TexSTAR-Operating 
Total TexSTAR-Operating 

TOTAL 

Amount 

(54,409.05) 

Hobby Area Management District 
Bank Accounts Register 

As of February 12, 2015 
Balance 

422,476.34 

245,000.00 
245,000.00 

30,062.19 
30,062.19 

674,907.39 

Page 4 of 4 



TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

6. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER 9) 

CITY OF HOUSTON 
HARRISCOUNTY, TEXAS 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

Hobby Area Management District Board of Directors 

Executive Director 

Agenda Item Materials 

Accept the bookkeeper/investment officer's annual Disclosure under the Public Funds 
Investment act. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
{HARRls COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NmmER NINE) 

c/o Hawes Hill Calder6n LLP 
P.O. Box 22167 

Houston TX 77227-2l67 
7l3-595-l200 or FAX 28l-888-63l4 



Date: 

To: 

Copy: 

From: 

MEMORANDUM 

February 12, 2015 

Board of Directors 
Harris County Improvement District #9 (the "District") 

Board of Directors 
Attorney for the District 
Bookkeeper for the District 
Texas Ethics Commission 

,McK... Lo t-Apm 
Investment Officer for the District 

Subject: DISCLOSURE UNDER THE PUBLIC FUNDS INVESTMENT ACT 

As Investment Officer for the District, I submit this disclosure of my relationships with 
entities or individuals who are offering, have offered, or may offer to engage in an investment 
transaction with the District as of the date of this memorandum, in compliance with the Public 
Funds Investment Act and with the District's Investment Policy. 

I. I have the following "personal business relationships" with individuals or entities 
who are offering to engage, have offered to engage or may offer to engage in an investment 
transaction with the District. 

(a) 

(b) 

I own (i) ten per cent (10%) or more of the voting stock or shares or (b) $5,000 or 
more of the fair market value of the following business organizations: 

I have received from the following business organizations funds that exceed ten 
percent (10%) of my gross income for the previous year: 

(c) I acquired from the following business organizations during the previous year 
investments with a book value of $2,500 or more for my personal account: 

D -! ,,.,. 

Bookkeeper- Investment Officer Disclosure Fonn.doc 



2. I am related within the second degree of affinity (marriage) or consanguinity 
(blood) as determined by Chapter 573, Government Code, to the following individuals who are 
seeking, have sought or may seek to sell an investment to the District: 

3. I acknowledge that this disclosure will be filed with the Board of Directors of the 
District and the Texas Ethics Commission by the istrict. 

1~ 

Bookkeeper ~ Investment Ollicer Disclosure Form.doc 



MEMORANDUM 

Date: February 12, 2015 

To: Board of Directors 

Copy: 

From: 

Subject: 

Harris County Improvement District #9 (the "District") 

Board of Directors 
Attorney for the District 
Bookkeeper for the District 
Texas Ethics Commission 

J:q 4<.- f_P Mr/ p 
Bookkeeper for the District 

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE PUBLIC FUNDS INVESTMENT ACT 

As bookkeeper for the District, I submit this disclosure of my relationships with entities or 
individuals who are offering, have offered, or may offer to engage in an investment transaction 
with the District as of the date of this memorandum, in compliance with the Public Funds 
Investment Act and with the District's Investment Policy. 

I . I have the following "personal business relationships" with individuals or entities 
who are offering to engage, have offered to engage or may offer to engage in an investment 
transaction with the District. 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

I own (i) ten per cent (10%) or more of the voting stock or shares or (b) $5,000 or 
more of the fair market value of the following business organizations: 

I have received from the following business organizations funds that exceed ten 
percent ( 10%) of my gross income for the previous year: 

I acquired from the following business organizations during the previous year 
investments with a book value of $2,500 or more for my personal accom1t: 

Bookkeeper - Investment Officer Disclosure Form.doc 



2. I am related within the second degree of affinity (marriage) or consanguinity 
(blood) as determined by Chapter 573, Government Code, to the following individuals who are 
seeking, have sought or may seek to sell an investment to the District: 

(\) [) 

3. I acknowledge that this disclosure will be filed with the Board of Directors of the 
District and the Texas Ethics Commission by th istrict. 

Bookkeeper~ Investment Officer Disclosure Form.doc 



Date: 

To: 

Copy: 

From: 

Subject: 

MEMORANDUM 

February 12, 2015 

Board of Directors 
Harris County Improvement District #9 (the "District") 

Board of Directors 
Attorney for the District 
Bookkeeper for the District 
Texas Ethics Commission 

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE PUBLIC FUNDS INVESTMENT ACT 

As bookkeeper for the District, I submit this disclosure of my relationships with entities or 
individuals who are offering, have offered, or may offer to engage in an investtnent transaction 
with the District as of the date of this memorandum, in compliance with the Public Funds 
Investment Act and with the District's Investment Policy. 

1. I have the following "personal business relationships" with individuals or entities 
who are offering to engage, have offered to engage or may offer to engage in an investment 
transaction with the District. 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

I own (i) ten per cent (10%) or more of the voting stock or shares or (b) $5,000 or 
more of the fair market value of the following business organizations: 

I have received from the following business organizations funds that exceed ten 
percent (10%) of my gross income for the previous year: 

\N 'NL, 

I acquired from the following business organizations during the previous year 
investtnents with a book value of $2,500 or more for my personal account: 

B0<..1kkeeper - Investment Officer Disclosure Form.doc 



2. I am related within the second degree of affinity (marriage) or consanguinity 
(blood) as determined by Chapter 573, Government Code, to the following individuals who are 
seeking, have sought or may seek to sell an investment to the District: 

·f'\f'.JL.._ 

3. I acknowledge that this disclosure will be filed with the Board of Directors of the 
District and the Texas Ethics Commission by the District. 

C'iuillf~ C,M)~ 
(SIONA ) 

Bookkeeper - Investment Officer Disclosure Fonn.doc 



TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

7. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER 9) 

CITY OF HOUSTON 
HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

Hobby Area Management District Board of Directors 

Executive Director 

Agenda Item Materials 

Approve the Resolution Regarding the Annual Review of Investment Policy and List of 
Qualified Broker/Dealers. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
{HARR.IS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER NINE) 

c/o Hawes Hill Calderon LLP 
P.O. Box 22167 

Houston TX 77227-2167 
713-595-1200 or FAX 281-888-6314 



RESOLUTION REGARDING ANNUAL REVIEW OF 
INVESTMENT POLICY AND LIST OF QUALIFIED BROKER/DEALERS 

OF HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 9 

WHEREAS, Harris County Improvement District No. 9 (the "District"), has been legally 
created and operates pursuant to the general laws of the State applicable to municipal 
management districts; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Government Code, as 
amended, requires the Board of Directors of the District to, at least annually, review its 
investment policy; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has convened on this date at a meeting open to the 
public to conduct the District's annual review of its Investment Policy, which includes an 
amended list of qualified broker/dealers attached to the policy; Now, Therefore, 

WHEREAS, the District has determined not to amend the District's Investment Policy or 
list of qualified broker/dealers that are authorized to engage in investment transactions with the 
District dated July 24, 2013; Now, therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF HARRIS COUNTY 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 9 THAT: 

Section 1: The Board hereby conducted the annual review of the District's Amended 
Investment Policy, containing a list of qualified broker/dealers, dated July 24, 2013, attached 
hereto as Exhibit A and confirms that same shall remain in effect until modified by action of the 
Board of Directors. 

Section 2: The provisions of this Resolution shall be effective as of the date of adoption 
and shall remain in effect until modified by action of the Board of Directors. 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 12th day of February 2015. 

Chair 

ATTEST: 

1 
#4806620.J 



CERTIFICATE FOR RESOLUTION 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
§ 

COUNTY OF HARRIS § 

I, the undersigned officer of the Board of Directors of Harris County Improvement District No. 9, 
hereby certify as follows: 

1. The Board of Directors of Harris County Improvement District No. 9 convened in regular 
session on the 12th day of February, 2015, at the regular meeting place thereof, inside the boundaries of 
the District, and the roll was called of the duly constituted officers and members of the Board to-wit: 

Danny R. Perkins President 
Helen Bonsall Vice President 
Sue DeHaven Secretary 
Perry Miller Director 
Ann Collum Director 
Marjorie Evans Director 
Jo Ann Lemon Director 
Darryl Bailey Director 
Todd Szilagyi Director 
Vic Zachary Director 
Alberto P. Cardenas Director 

and all of said persons were present, except Director(s) ------------'' thus constituting a 
quorum. Whereupon, among other business, the following was transacted at the meeting: a written 

RESOLUTION REGARDING ANNUAL REVIEW OF 
INVESTMENT POLICY AND LIST OF QUALIFIED BROKER/DEALERS 

OF HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 9 

was introduced for the consideration of the Board. It was then duly moved and seconded that the 
Resolution be adopted, and, after due discussion, the motion, carrying with it the adoption of the 
Resolution, prevailed and carried unanimously. 

2. That a true, full and correct copy of the aforesaid Resolution adopted at the meeting described in 
the above and foregoing paragraph is attached to and follows this certificate; that the Resolution has been 
duly recorded in the Board's minutes of the meeting; that the persons named in the above and foregoing 
paragraph are the duly chosen, qualified and acting officers and members of the Board as indicated 
therein; that each of the officers and members of the Board was duly and sufficiently notified officially 
and personally, in advance, of the time, place and purpose of the aforesaid meeting, and that the 
Resolution would be introduced and considered for adoption at the meeting, and each of the officers and 
members consented, in advance, to the holding of the meeting for such purpose; that the meeting was 
open to the public as required by law; and that public notice of the time, place and subject of the meeting 
was given as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, and Section 49.063, Texas Water Code. 

2 
#4806620.1 



SIGNED AND SEALED the 12th day of February, 2015. 

Secretary, Board of Directors 

3 
#4806620.1 



EXHIBIT A 

AMENDED INVESTMENT POLICY -April 8, 2013 

A-1 
#4806620.1 



INVESTMENT POLICY 

This Investment Policy (the "Policy") is adopted by the Board of Directors of Harris 
County Improvement District No. 9 (the "District'') pursuant to Chapter 2256 of the Texas 
Government Code, effective as of July 24, 2013. 

ARTICLE I 
PURPOSE 

Section 1.01. Purpose. This Policy with respect to District investments has been 
adopted to establish the principles and criteria by which the funds of the District should be 
invested and secured and to comply with various provisions of Texas law relating to the 
investment and security of funds of local government corporations (the "Investment Laws"). As 
of the date of the adoption of this Policy, the following laws are applicable to the investment of 
the District's funds: Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code; Chapter 791, Texas Government 
Code; Chapter 2257, Texas Government Code; and Section 404.101 et seq., Texas Government 
Code. The Investment Laws generally provide the minimum criteria for the authorized 
investment and security of the District's funds and require the District to adopt rules to ensure 
the investment ofDi~irict funds in accordance with such laws. This Policy will specify the scope 
of district of District Officials who are responsible for the investment of District funds. 

ARTICLE II 
DEFINITIONS 

Section 2.01. Definitions. Unless the context requires otherwise, the following terms 
and phrases used in this Policy shall mean the following: 

(a) "Authorized Collateral" means any means or method of securing the deposit of 
District funds authorized by Chapter 2257, Texas Government Code. 

(b) "Authorized Investment" means any security in which the District is authorized to 
invest under Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code. 

( c) "Board" means the Board of Directors of the District. 

(d) "Collateral" means any means or method of securing the deposit of District funds 
under Article rv hereof 

( e) "Collateral Act" means Chapter 2257, Texas Government Code, as amended from 
time to time. 

(f) "Director" means a person appointed to serve on the Board of Directors of the 
District. 

(g) "District Officials" means the Investment Officer, Directors, Employees, and 
persons and business entities engaged in handling the investment of District 
funds. 

US 1047915vl 
#4199737.1 



(h) "Employee" means any person employed by the District, but does not include 
independent contractors or professionals hired by the District as outside 
consultants, such as the District's financial advisor, accountant or general counsel. 

(i) "FDIC" means the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or any successor entity. 

G) "Investment Act" means Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code, as amended 
from time to time. 

(k) "Investment Officer(s)" means the Director(s) or Employee(s) of the District 
appointed from time to time by the Board to invest and reinvest the funds of the 
District held in its various accounts 

(1) "State" means the State of Texas. 

ARTICLE III 
INVESTMENT OFFICER 

Section 3.01. Investment Officer. 

From time to time, the District shall appoint one or more of its Directors or Employees to 
serve as Investment Officer(s) to handle the investment of District funds. The Investment 
Officer( s) shall be responsible for investing District funds in accordance with this Policy. The 
Investment Officer(s) shall invest the District's funds, not for speculation, but for investment, 
considering the probable safety of capital and the probable income to be derived, with all 
investment decisions to be governed by the objectives set forth in Section 7.01 hereof. 

Section 3.02. Training. The Investment Officer(s) shall attend training sessions and 
receive the number of hours of instruction as required by the Investment Act. 

Section 3.03. Reporting by the Investment Officer and District Officials. Not less than 
quarterly and within a reasonable time after the end of the period reported, the Investment 
Officer and District Officials shall prepare and submit to the Board a written report of the 
investment transactions for all funds of the District for the preceding reporting period. The 
report must (1) describe in detail the investment position of the District on the date of the report, 
(2) be prepared jointly by all the Investment Officers of the District, if the District appoints more 
than one, (3) be signed by all Investment Officers and District Officials who prepare the report, 
(4) contain a summary statement of each pooled fund group that states the beginning market 
value for the reporting period; ending market value for the period; and fully accrued interest for 
the reporting period; (5) state the book value and the market value of each separately invested 
asset at the beginning and end of the reporting period by the type of asset and fund type invested, 
(6) state the maturity date of each separately invested asset that has a maturity date, (7) state the 
District fund for which each individual investment was acquired, and (8) state the compliance of 
the investment portfolio as it relates to this Policy and the Investment Act. 

Section 3. 04. Assistance with Certain Duties of the Investment Officer. The Board 
hereby authorizes and directs the District Officials requested by the Investment Officer to assist 
the Investment Officer(s) with any of his/her duties, including but not limited to the fol!O\ving: 

#4199737.1 2 



( a) Presenting a copy of this Policy to any person or business organization seeking to 
sell an investment to the District and obtaining the necessary written certification 
from such seller referred to in this section; 

(b) Handling investment transactions; 

( c) Preparing and submitting to the Board the written report of all investment 
transactions for the District as required by this section; 

( d) Researching investment options and opportunities; 

( e) Obtaining written depository pledge agreements as required herein; 

(f) Obtaining safe-keeping receipts from the Texas financial institution which serves 
as a depository for pledged Collateral; and 

(g) Reviewing the market value of the District's investments and of the Collateral 
pledged to secure the District's funds. 

ARTICLE IV 
PROCEDURES FOR INVESTMENT OF DISTRICT MONIES 

Section 4.01. Qualified Broker/Dealers. The list of qualified broker/dealers with whom 
the District may engage in investment transactions is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

Section 4.02. Disclosures of Relationships with Entities Offering to Enter into 
Investment Transactions with the District. The Investment Officer(s) and the District Officials 
shall disclose in writing (a) any "personal business relationship" with a business organization 
offering to engage in an investment transaction with the District and (b) any relationship within 
the second degree by affinity or consanguinity, as determined by Chapter 573, Texas 
Government Code, to any individual seeking to sell an investment to the District, as required by 
the Investment Act. The existence of a "personal business relationship" shall be determined in 
accordance with the Investment Act. Such disclosure statement shall be filed with the Board and 
the Texas Ethics Commission. 

Section 4.03. Certifications from Sellers of Investments. The Investment Officer(s) or 
the District Officials shall present this Policy to any person or business organization offering to 
engage in an investment transaction with the District and obtain a certificate stating that such 
potential seller has reviewed the Policy as provided in the Investment Act. This certificate shall 
be in a form acceptable to the District and shall state that the potential seller has received and 
reviewed the Policy and has acknowledged that the potential seller has implemented reasonable 
procedures and controls in an effort to preclude investment transactions with the District that are 
not authorized by this Policy, except to the extent that this authorization is dependent on an 
analysis of the makeup of the District's entire portfolio or requires an interpretation of subjective 
investment standards. Neither the Investment Officer nor the District Officials shall purchase or 
malce any investment from a potential seller that has not delivered to the District this required 
certification. A form of certificate acceptable to the District is attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

#4199737.1 3 



Section 4.04. Solicitation of Bids for Certificates of Deposit. Bids for certificates of 
deposit may be solicited orally, in writing, electronically or in any combination of those 
methods. 

Section 4.05. Settlement Basis. All purchases of investments, except investment in 
investment pools or in mutnal funds, shall be made on a delivery versus payment basis. The 
safekeeping entity for all District investments and for all Collateral pledged to secure District 
funds shall be one approved by the Investment Officer(s). 

Section4.06. Monitoring of the Market Value of Investments and Collateral. The 
Investment Officer(s), with the help of such District Officials as needed, shall determine the 
market value of each investment and of all Collateral pledged to secure deposits of District funds 
at least quarterly and at a time as close as practicable to the closing of the reporting period for 
investments. Such values shall be included on the investment report. The following methods 
shall be used: 

(a) Certificates of deposit shall be valued at their face value plus any accrued but 
unpaid interest. 

(b) Shares in money market mutnal funds and investment pools shall be valued at par 
plus any accrued but unpaid interest. 

( c) Other investment securities with a remaining maturity of one year or less may be 
valued in any of the following ways: 

(1) the lower of two bids obtained from securities broker/dealers for such 
security; 

(2) the average of the bid and asked prices for such investment security as 
published in The Wall Street Journal or The New York Times; 

(3) the bid price published by any nationally recognized security pricing 
service; or 

(4) the market value quoted by the seller of the security or the owner of such 
Collateral. 

( d) Other investment securities with a remaining maturity greater than one year shall 
be valued at the lower of two bids obtained from securities broker/dealers for such 
security, unless two bids are not available, in which case the securities may be 
valued in any manner provided in 4.06(c) hereof. 

Section 4.07. Monitoring the Rating Changes in Investments. Consistent with Section 
2256.021, Texas Government Code, as amended, the Investment Officer shall monitor all 
investments that require a minimum rating under subchapter A of Chapter 2256, Texas 
Government Code, as amended, such that any such investment that does not have the minimum 
rating shall no longer constitnte an authorized investment. Such investments that do not have the 

#4199737.1 4 



required minimum rating shall be liquidated within 30 days of the investment's failure to 
maintain its required minimum rating. 

ARTICLEV 
PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL FUNDS 

Section 5.01. Provisions Applicable to All Fund Groups. 

(a) All funds of the District shall be invested only in accordance with this Policy and 
shall comply with any additional requirements imposed by bond resolutions or 
trust indentures of the District and applicable state law or federal tax law, 
including the Investment Laws. 

(b) The Board, by separate resolution, may provide that a designated officer or agent 
of the District may withdraw or transfer funds from and to accounts of the District 
only in compliance with this Policy. 

(c) No fund groups shall be pooled for the purposes of investment, e.g. the funds in 
the Operating Account and in the Project Account shall not be commingled or 
pooled for purposes of investment. 

Section 5.02. Policy of Securing Deposits of District Funds - Applicable to All 
Deposited District Funds. 

(a) The District recognizes that FDIC (or its successor) insurance is available for 
District funds deposited at any one Texas Financial Institution (including branch 
banks) only up to a maximum of $250,000 (including accrued interest) for each of 
the following: (i) demand deposits, (ii) time and savings deposits, and (iii) 
deposits made pursuant to an indenture or pursuant to law in order to pay 
bondholders or noteholders. 1 It is the policy of the District that all deposited 
funds in each of the District's accounts shall be insured by 1he FDIC, or its 
successor, and to the extent 1he deposit surpasses the FDIC Deposit Insurance 
Coverage limit at any given time, shall be secured by Collateral pledged to the 
extent of the fair market value of the principal amount deposited plus accrued 
interest as required by the Collateral Act. 

(b) If it is necessary for the District's depositories to pledge Collateral to secure 1he 
District's deposits, (1) the Collateral pledge agreement must be in writing, (2) the 
Collateral pledge agreement must be approved by the depository's board of 
directors or Joan committee, (3) the depository's approval of the Collateral pledge 
agreement must be reflected in 1he minutes of 1he meeting of the depository's 
board or loan committee approving same, and (4) 1he Collateral pledge agreement 
must be kept in the official records of the depository. The depository must 
provide to the Investment Officer or District Officials with written proof of the 
depository's approval of the pledge agreement as required herein in a form 
acceptable to the District. A signed or certified copy of 1he minutes of the 

1 The $250,000 limit is temporary and may change from time to time under applicable law. 

#4199737.1 5 



meeting of the depository's board or loan committee reflecting the approval of the 
Collateral pledge agreement or other written documentation of such approval 
acceptable to the Investment Officer will be accepted. It is the preference of the 
Board that all requirements of this section be met prior to the deposit of any 
District funds in such financial institution when a pledge of Collateral is required; 
however, the Board recognizes that compliance with this preference might not be 
practicable due to time constraints for making a deposit. In such event, the Board 
directs the Investment Officer and District Officials to proceed diligently to have 
such agreement approved and documented to assure protection of the District's 
funds. If the decision is made to forego the protection of a Collateral pledge 
agreement with any depository, the District's Executive Director shall be 
responsible for maintaining the balance of deposit(s) in such depository plus any 
accrued but unpaid interest at or below FDIC insurance levels. 

( c) Collateral pledged by a depository shall be held in safekeeping at an independent 
third party institution, and the District's Executive Director shall obtain safe
keeping receipts from the Texas financial institution or the safekeeping institution 
that reflect that Collateral as allowed by this Investment Policy and in the amount 
required was pledged to the District Principal and accrued interest on deposits in 
a financial institution shall not exceed the FDIC's, or its successor's, insurance 
limits or the market value of the Collateral pledged as security for the District's 
deposits. It shall be acceptable for the District's Executive Director to 
periodically receive interest on deposits to be deposited to the credit of the 
District if needed to keep the amount of the funds under the insurance or 
Collateral limits. It is the preference of this Board that there be no sharing, 
splitting or cotenancy of Collateral with other secured parties or entities; however, 
in the event that a depository cannot accommodate this preference due to the 
denominations of the securities to be pledged, the Board directs the Investment 
Officer and District Officials to obtain appropriate protections in the pledge 
agreement with the depository to assure that the Collateral is liquidated and the 
funds distributed appropriately to all parties with a security interest in such 
Collateral. The District's Executive Director shall monitor the pledged Collateral 
to assure that it is pledged only to the District, review the fair market value of the 
Collateral to ensure that the District's funds are fully secured, and report 
periodically to the Investment Officer and the Board regarding the Collateral. 

( d) The District's funds deposited in any Texas financial institution, to the extent that 
they are not insured, may be secured by the pledge of any of the following: 

#4199737.1 

(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

Surety bonds; 

An obligation that in the opinion of the Attorney General of the United 
States is a general obligation of the United States and backed by its full 
fuith and credit; 

A general or special obligation that is (a) payable from taxes, revenues, or 
a combination of taxes and revenues and (b) issued by a state or political 

6 



or governmental entity, agency, instrumentality or subdivision of the state, 
including a municipality, an institution of higher education as defined by 
Section 61.003, Texas Education Code, a junior college, a district created 
under Article XVI, Section 59, of the Texas Constitution, and a public 
hospital; 

( 4) A fixed-rate collateralized mortgage obligation that has an expected 
weighted average life of 10 years or less and does not constitute a "high
risk mortgage security" under the Collateral Act; 

(5) A floating-rate collateralized mortgage obligation that does not constitute 
a "high-risk mortgage security" under the Collateral Act; 

( 6) A letter of credit issued by a federal home loan bank; or 

(7) A security in which a public entity may invest under the Investment Act. 
As of the date of this Policy, the following are the securities in which a 
public entity may invest under the Investment Act and, therefore, may be 
used as Collateral: 

(i) Obligations, including letters of credit, of the United States or its 
agencies and instrumentalities; 

(ii) Direct obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies and 
instrumentalities; 

(iii) Collateralized mortgage obligations directly issued by a federal 
agency or instrumentality or the United States, the underlying 
security for which is guaranteed by an agency or instrumentality of 
the United States; 

(iv) Other obligations, the principal and interest of which are 
unconditionally guaranteed or insured by or backed by the full 
faith and credit of the United States or the State of Texas or their 
respective agencies and instrumentalities, including obligations 
that are fully guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation or by the explicit full faith and credit of the 
United States; 

(v) Obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities, and other political 
subdivisions of any state rated as to investment quality by a 
nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than A or its 
equivalent; 

(vi) Certificates of deposit issued by a depository institution that has its 
main office or a branch office in the State of Texas that are (1) 
guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or its 
successor or the National Credit Union Share Insurance Fund or its 

#4199737.l 7 



successor, (2) secured by the obligations in which the District may 
invest under the Investment Act, or (3) secured in any other 
manner and amount provided by law for deposits of the District; 

(vii) Certificates of deposit made in accordance with the following 
conditions: (1) a broker that has its main office or a branch office 
in this state and is selected from a list adopted by the District; (2) 
the funds are invested by the District through a depository 
institution that has its main office or a branch office in the State of 
Texas and that is selected by the District; (3) the broker or the 
depository institution selected by the District under Subdivision (2) 
arranges for the deposit of the funds in certificates of deposit in 
one or more federally insured depository institutions, wherever 
located, for the account of the District; (4) the full amount of the 
principal and accrued interest of each of the certificates of deposit 
is insured by the United States or an instrumentality of the United 
States; and (5) the depository institution selected by the District 
under Subdivision (2), an entity described by Section 2257.04l(d), 
or a clearing broker dealer registered with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission and operating pursuant to Security and 
Exchange Commission Rule 15c3-3 (17C.F.R. Section 240.15c3-3) 
as custodian for the District with respect to the certificates of 
deposit issued for the account of the District; 

(viii) Repurchase agreements that comply with the Investment Act; 

(ix) Bankers' acceptances that comply with the Investment Act; 

(x) Commercial paper that complies with the Investment Act; 

(xi) No-load money market mutual funds that comply with the 
Investment Act; 

(xii) No-load mutual funds that comply with the Investment Act; and 

(xiii) Guaranteed investment contracts that comply with the Investment 
Act 

(e) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary provided above, the following may not 
be used as Collateral and are not authorized as investments for the District under 
the Investment Act: 

(1) 

#4199737.1 

Obligations whose payment represents the coupon payments on the 
outstanding principal balance of the underlying mortgage-backed security 
collateral and pays no principal; 

8 



(2) Obligations whose payment represents the principal stream of cash flow 
from the underlying mortgage-backed security collateral and bears no 
interest; 

(3) Collateralized mortgage obligations that have a final stated maturity date 
of greater than 10 years other than those listed in Sections 5.02(d)(4) and 
5.02(d)(5) above; or 

(4) Collateralized mortgage obligations the interest rate of which is 
determined by an index that adjusts opposite to the changes in a market 
index. 

Section 5.03. Diversification. The Investment Officer may invest up to 100% of the 
funds of the District in any investment instrument authorized in this Policy. 

ARTICLE VI 
AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS 

Section 6.01. Authorized Investments. Unless specifically prohibited by law or 
elsewhere by this Policy, District funds may be invested and reinvested only in the following 
types of investments: 

(a) Obligations, including letters of credit, of the United States or its agencies and 
instrumentalities; 

(b) Direct obligations of the State or its agencies and instrumentalities; 

( c) Collateralized mortgage obligations directly issued by a federal agency or 
instrumentality of the United States, the underlying security for which is 
guaranteed by an agency or instrumentality of the United States; 

(d) Other obligations, the principal and interest of which are unconditionally 
guaranteed or insured by or backed by the full faith and credit of the State or the 
United States or their respective agencies and instrumentalities; 

( e) Obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities, and other political subdivisions of 
any state rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized investment 
rating firm not less than A or its equivalent; 

(f) Certificates of deposit issued by a depository institution that has its main office or 
a branch office in the State of Texas that are (I) guaranteed by the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation or its successor or the National Credit Union Share 
Insurance Fund or its successor, (2) secured by the obligations in which the 
District may invest under the Investment Act, or (3) secured in any other manner 
and amount provided by law for deposits of the District; 

(g) Certificates of deposit made in accordance with the following conditions: (1) a 
broker that has its main office or a branch office in this state and is selected from 

#4199737.1 9 



a list adopted by the District; (2) the funds are invested by the District through a 
depository institution that has its main office or a branch office in the State of 
Texas and that is selected by the District; (3) the broker or the depository 
institution selected by the District under Subdivision (4) arranges for the deposit 
of the funds in certificates of deposit in one or more federally insured depository 
institutions, wherever located, for the account of the District; (5) the full amount 
of the principal and accrued interest of each of the certificates of deposit is 
insured by the United States or an instrumentality of the United States; and (6) the 
depository institution selected by the District under Subdivision (1 ), an entity 
described by Section 2257.04l(d), or a clearing broker dealer registered with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission and operating pursuant to Security and 
Exchange Commission Rule 15c3-3 (17C.F.R. Section 240.I5c3-3) as custodian 
for the District with respect to the certificates of deposit issued for the account of 
the District; 

(h) Repurchase agreements that comply with the Investment Act; 

(i) Bankers' acceptances that comply with the Investment Act; 

(j) Commercial paper that complies with the Investment Act; 

(k) No-load money market mutual funds that comply with the Investment Act; 

(1) No-load mutual funds that comply with the Investment Act; 

(m) Investment Pools which meet the requirements set forth in Section 2256.016 and 
Section 2256.019 of the Texas Government Code, as amended, and which are 
specifically authorized by a resolution that is approved by the Board; and 

(n) With respect to bond proceeds, guaranteed investment contracts that comply with 
the Investment Act. 

Section 6.02. Prohibited Investments. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary stated 
herein, no funds of the District may be invested in the following or in any other type of 
investment prohibited by the Investment Act or other applicable law: 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

#4199737.1 

Obligations whose payment represents the coupon payments on the outstanding 
principal balance of the underlying mortgage-backed security collateral and pays 
no principal (!O's); 

Obligations whose payment represents the principal stream of cash flow from the 
underlying mortgage-backed security collateral and bears no interest (PO's); 

Collateralized mortgage obligations that have a stated fmal maturity date of 
greater than 10 years; and 

10 



( d) Collateralized mortgage obligations the interest rate of which are determined by 
an index that adjusts opposite to the changes in the market index (inverse 
floaters). 

Section 6.03. Investment of Funds Held Under Trust Indentures. Anything in this 
Policy to the contrary notwithstanding, to the extent that any funds are held by a trustee under a 
trust indenture relating to the District's bonds, such funds may be invested as provided by the 
resolution authorizing the issuance of the bonds or the trust indenture. 

ARTICLE VII 
INVESTMENT STRATEGIBS 

Section 7.01. Strategy Applicable to All Funds. The District's general investment 
strategy for all fund groups shall be to invest such monies from such fund groups so as to 
accomplish the following objectives, which are listed in the order of importance: 

(a) Understanding of the suitability of the investment to the financial requirements of 
the District; 

(b) Preservation and safety of principal; 

(c) Liquidity; 

( d) Marketability of the investment if the need arises to liquidate the investment 
before maturity; 

(e) Diversification of the investment portfolio; and 

(f) Yield. 

Section 7.02. Investment Strategy for the Operating Account. Funds in the Operating 
Account shall be invested to meet the operating and cash flow requirements of the District as 
determined by the annual operating budget adopted by the Board. Operating funds shall not be 
invested for longer than three years. 

ARTICLE VIII 
MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 8.0 l. Annual Review. The District shall review this Investment Policy at least 
annually and adopt a resolution confirming the continuance of the Investment Policy without 
amendment or adopt an Amended Investment Policy. 

Section 8.02. Superseding Clause. This Policy supersedes any prior policies adopted by 
the Board of Directors regarding investment or securitization of District funds. 

#4199737.1 II 



Section 8.03. Open Meeting. The Board officially finds, determines and declares that 
this Policy was reviewed, carefully considered, and adopted at a regular meeting of the Board, 
and that a sufficient written notice of the date, hour, place and subject of this meeting was posted 
at a place readily accessible and convenient to the public within the District and on a bulletin 
board located at a place convenient to the public in the City of Houston, Texas for the time 
required by law preceding this meeting, as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, 
Texas Government Code, and that this meeting had been open to the public as required by law at 
all times during which this Policy was discussed, considered and acted upon. The Board further 
ratifies, approves and confirms such v.,ritten notice and the contents and posting thereof. 

[Execution page follows] 

#4199737.1 12 



on the 24th of July 2013. 

D yR.Pe . 

!I/Jii/Jrlfll(f 
Helen Bonsall . ' 

#4199737.1 

~{/~rile:~ 
SueDeHaven 

Mary Case 

Signature Page of 
Investment Policy 



EXHIBIT A 

List of Qualified Broker/Dealers 

Allegiance Bank of Texas 

Trustmark National Bank 

A.megy Bank, N.A. 

Bank of America, N .A. 

Bank of Houston 

Bank of Texas, N.A. 

BBVA Compass Bank 

Beal Bank, s.s.b. 

Capital Bank 

Capital Markets Group, Inc. 

Capital One Financial Corp. 

Central Bank 

Chase Investments Services Corp. 

Chasewood Bank (Inc) 

Coastal Securities, Inc. 

Comerica Bank 

Commercial State Bank 

Community State Bank 

Crosby State Bank 

Edward Jones 

Encore Bank 

Enterprise Bank 

First Bank 

First Bank of Conroe 

First Bank of Texas 

First Bank & Trust Company (Inc) 

First Choice Bank 

First Community Bank 

First National Bank Bastrop 

First Southwest Company 

First National Bank 

First National Bank of Texas 

FiServ Investor Services, Inc. 

Frost Bank 

#4199737.1 

Metro Bank, N .A. 

Midkiff & Stone Capital Group, Inc. 

MidSouth Bancorp, Inc. 

Moody National Bank 

Morgan Keegan & Co., Inc. 

Morgan Stanley 

New First National Bank 

Northwest Investment Services, Inc. 

Omni Bank, N.A. 

Patriot Bank 

Plains State Bank 

Post Oak Bank 

Preferred Bank 

Prosperity Bank/Prosperity Bancshares, Inc. 

Prudential Securities Group, Inc. 

Raymond James & Associates, Inc. 

RBC Capital Markets 

Regions Bank 

Morgan Stanley Smith Barney 

Security State Bank 

Southwest Securities, Inc. 

State Bank of Texas 

State Street Bank & Trust Co. 

Sterling Bank/Sterling Bancshares, Inc. 

Sun America Securities, Inc. 

Tex Star Investment Pool 

Texas Capital Bank, N.A. 

Texas CLASS 

Texas Citizens Bank 

Texas Community Bank 

Texas First Bank 

Texas Independent Bank 

Texas Savings Bank, s.s.b. 

Texas State Bank 

A-1 



Green Bank 

Herring National Bank 

Hometown Bank, N .A. 

Houston Community Bank, N.A. 

International Bank of Commerce 

Ironstone Bank 

JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. 

JP Morgan Securities Inc. 

Legacy Texas Bank 

Legg Mason 

LOGIC (Local Gov't. Investment Cooperative) 

Lone Star Bank, s.s.b. 

Lone Star Investment Pool 

LPL Financial Services 

Main Street Bank 

Memorial City Bank 

Merchants Bank, N.A. 

Merrill Lynch & Co., Inc. 

#4199737.1 

Texpool/TexpoolPrime 

The Bank of River Oaks 

Tradition Bank 

Tri-Star Financial 

Trustmark National Bank 

UBS Financial Services, Inc. 

Union Planters Bank 

Unity National Bank 

Wachovia Bank, N.A. 

Wallis State Bank 

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. 

Wells Fargo Brokerage Services, LLC 

Westbound Bank 

Whitney National Bank 

Woodforest National Bank 

A-2 



EXIDBITB 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE FROM SELLERS OF 
INVESTMENTS AS REQUIRED BY THE PUBLIC FUNDS lNVESTMENT ACT 

To: Harris County Improvement District No. 9 (the "District") 

From: -----------------
[Name of the person offering or the "qualified [Office such person holds] 
representative of the business organization" 
offering to engage in an investment transaction 
with the District] 

of ____________________ (the "Business Organization") 
[name of financial institution, business organization or investment pool] 

Date: ________ ,,20_ 

In accordance with the provisions of Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code, I 
hereby certify that: 

1. I am an individual offering to enter into an investment transaction with the 
District or a "qualified representative" of the Business Organization offering to 
enter an investment transaction with the District, as applicable, as such terms are 
used in the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code, 
and that I meet all requirements under such act to sign this Certificate. 

2. I or the Business Organization, as applicable, anticipate selling to the District 
investments that comply with the District's Investment Policy and the Investment 
Act ( collectively referred to herein as the "Investments") dated 
________ (the "Investment Policy"). 

3. I or a registered investment professional that services the District's account, as 
applicable, have received and reviewed the Investment Policy, which the District 
has represented is the complete Investment Policy of the District now in full force 
and effect. The District has further acknowledged that I or the Business 
Organization, as applicable, may rely upon the Investment Policy until the District 
provides me or the Business Organization, as applicable, with any amendments to 
or any newly adopted form of the Investment Policy. 

4. I or the Business Organization, as applicable, have/has implemented reasonable 
procedures and controls in an effort to preclude investment transactions between 
the District and me or the Business Organization, as applicable, that are not 
authorized by the Investment Policy, except to the extent that this authorization is 
dependent upon an analysis of the District's entire portfolio or requires an 
interpretation of subjective investment standards. 



5. I or the Business Organization, as applicable, have/has reviewed or will review 
prior to sale, the terms, conditions and characteristics of the investments to be 
sold to the District and determined (i) that each of the Investments is an 
authorized investment for local governments under the Investment Act and (ii) 
each of the Investments is an authorized investment under the Investment Policy. 
The Business Organization makes no representation as to whether any limits on 
the amount of District monies to be invested in the Investments exceeds or in any 
way violates the Investment Policy. 

6. The Business Organization makes no representations or guarantees regarding the 
prudence, reasonableness or adequacy of the Investment Policy. 

7. The Business Organization has attached hereto, for return to the District, or will 
provide a prospectus or disclosure document for each of the Investments other 
than certificates of deposit and direct obligations of the United States. 

By: _____________ _ 

Name: ______________ _ 

Title: ______________ _ 



CERTIFICATE FOR RESOLUTION 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
§ 

COUNTY OF HARRIS § 

I, the undersigned officer of the Board of Directors of Harris County Improvement District No. 9, 
hereby certify as follows: 

I. The Board of Directors of Harris County Improvement District No. 9 convened in regular 
session on the 24th day of July, 2013, at the regular meeting place thereof, inside the boundaries of the 
District, and the roll was called of the duly constituted officers and members of the Board to-wit: 

Danny R. Perkins 
Helen Bonsall 
George Y eiter 
SueDeHaven 
Ann Collum 
Marjorie Evans 
JoAnn Lemon 
Darryl Bailey 

President 
Vice President 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 

and all of said persons were present, except Director(s) .-- thus constituting a 
quorum. Whereupon, among other business, the following was transacted at the meeting: a written 

INVESTMENT POLICY 

was introduced for the consideration of the Board. It was then duly moved and seconded that the 
resolution be adopted, and, after due discussion, the _motion, carrying with it the adoption of the 
resolution, prevailed and carried unanimously. 

2. That a true, full and cmTect copy of the aforesaid Resolution adopted at the meeting described in 
the above and foregoing paragraph is attached to and follows this certificate; that the Resolution has been 
duly recorded in the Board's minutes of the meeting; that the persons named in the above and foregoing 
paragraph are the duly chosen, qualified and acting officers and members of the Board as indicated 
therein; that each of the officers and members of the Board was duly and sufficiently notified officially 
and personally, in advance, of the time, place and purpose of the aforesaid meeting, and that the 
Resolution would be introduced and considered for adoption at the meeting, and each of the officers and 
members consented, in advance, to the holding of the meeting for such purpose; that the meeting was 
open to the public as required by law; and that public notice of the time, place and subject of the meeting 
was given as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, and Section 49.063, Texas Water Code. 

SIGNED AND SEALED the 24th day of July, 2013. 



TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

8. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER 9) 

CITY OF HOUSTON 
HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

Hobby Area Management District Board of Directors 

Executive Director 

Agenda Item Materials 

Consider a resolution, application, certificate of formation, and bylaws pertaining to the 
creation of the Hobby Area Improvement Corporation. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISfRICT 
{HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISfRICT NUMBER NINE) 

c/o Hawes Hill Calder6n LLP 
P.O. Box 22167 

Houston TX 77227-2167 
713-595-1200 or FAX281-888-6314 



HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE CREATION OF HOBBY AREA IMPROVEMENT 
CORPORATION; APPROVING THE ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION AND THE 
BYLAWS THEREOF; CONFIRMING THE APPOINTMENT OF THE INITIAL 
DIRECTORS AND CHAIRPERSON; AND CONTAINING FINDINGS AND OTHER 
PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE SUBJECT. 

WHEREAS, Chapter 3859, Special District Local Laws Code, authorizes the District to 

create a public nonprofit corporation under Subchapter D, Transportation Code; 

WHEREAS, Subchapter D of Chapter 431, Texas Transportation Code (the "Act"), 

authorizes the creation and organization of a public non-profit local government corporation to act 

as a duly constituted authority of a local government to aid and assist the local government in the 

performance of one or more governmental functions; and 

WHEREAS, the Act requires a local government corporation to be created pursuant to the 

provisions of Chapter 394, Texas Local Government Code ("Chapter 394"), and requires the local 

government corporation's articles of incorporation and bylaws to be in the form, and to be 

executed, approved, and filed in the manner prescribed by Chapter 394; and 

WHEREAS, a local government corporation may have and exercise all of the powers 

prescribed by the Act and Article 1396, TEX. REv. Civ. STAT. ANN. (Vernon Supp. 1999) 

( collectively, the "Acts"); and 

WHEREAS, Chapter 394 requires as a condition to the creation of a local government 

corporation that at least three residents of the local government who are citizens of the state and at 

least eighteen (18) years of age submit a written application for the incorporation of the local 

government corporation; and 

WHEREAS, there has been presented to and filed with the Hobby Area Management 



District (the "District") an application executed by three residents of the District who meet the 

requirements of Chapter 394 requesting the incorporation of the Hobby Area Improvement 

Corporation (the "Corporation") pursuant to the Act; and 

WHEREAS, Board of Directors of the District (the "Board") desires to grant the 

application for incorporation of the Corporation, authorize its Articles of Incorporation, approve 

its Bylaws, appoint the board of directors of the Corporation, and take other action with respect to 

the Corporation; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF THE HOBBY 

AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT: 

Section 1. The Board hereby finds, determines, and declares that the application for 

the incorporation of the Corporation is executed and filed in the manner required by Chapter 394 

and the Board therefore has authority to consider and act on the application for incorporation of 

the Corporation. 

Section 2. The Board hereby finds, determines, recites and declares that it is wise, 

expedient, necessary, and advisable that the Corporation be formed, the creation and organization 

of the Corporation under the provisions of the Acts and Chapter 394 as a duly constituted 

corporation of the District is hereby approved, and the Corporation is hereby authorized to aid, 

assist, and act on behalf of the District in the performance of its governmental functions to promote 

the common good and general welfare of the District; and to perform the other purposes described 

in the Articles oflncorporation. 

Section 3. The Board hereby approves the Articles oflncorporation of the Corporation 

in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A and authorizes the incorporators of the 

Corporation to file such Articles of Incorporation with the Secretary of State of the State of Texas 

in the manner provided by law. 

#4745230.1 



Section 4. The Board hereby approves the Bylaws of the Corporation in substantially 

the form attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

Section S. The Board hereby confirms the appointment of the directors listed in the 

Articles of Incorporation attached hereto. 

The Board hereby confirms the appointment of '-------------' as the 

initial Chairperson of the Board of Directors. Subsequent chairpersons shall be designated as 

provided by the Bylaws. 

Section 6. The Board hereby finds, determines, recites, and declares that it is the 

purpose, intent, and desire of the city in approving the creation of the Corporation and its Article 

oflncorporation and Bylaws, that such actions and the Corporation hereby authorized comply with 

the requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Treasury Regulations 

and Internal Revenue Service rulings promulgated thereunder and the rulings issued pursuant 

thereto, such that the Corporation shall be deemed to be a constituted authority acting on behalf of 

the District pursuant to the provisions of the Acts of Chapter 394, Local Government Code. 

#4745230.I 



PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this the __ day of ______ _ 

2015. 

Chair 
Hobby Area Management District 

ATTEST: 

Secretary 
Hobby Area Management District 

#4745230.l 



#4745230.1 

Exhibit A 
Articles oflncorporation 



APPLICATION TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF HOBBY AREA 
MANAGEMENT DISTRICT FOR CREATION OF HOBBY AREA 
IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION, AND THE APPROVAL OF THE 
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION AND BYLAWS THEREOF 

RECITALS 

Chapter 3815, Special District Local Laws Code, authorizes the District to create a public 
nonprofit corporation under Subchapter D, Transportation Code . 

D of Chapter 431, Texas Transportation Code (the "Act"), authorizes the creation and 
organization of public non-profit local government corporations to act as a duly constituted 
authority of a local government to aid and assist the city in the performance of one or more 
governmental or proprietary functions. 

The Act provides that a local government corporation is to be created and organized 
pursuant to certain of the provisions of Chapter 394, Texas Local Government Code (the 
"Code"). The Act further provides that a local government corporation may have and exercise 
the powers prescribed by Article 1396, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes (the "Statutes"). A local 
government corporation's articles of incorporation and bylaws shall be in the form and be 
executed, approved, and filed in the manner prescribed by the Statutes. 

The Statutes requires as a condition to the creation of a local government corporation that 
at least three (3) residents of the district who are citizens of the state and at least eighteen (18) 
years of age submit a written application for the incorporation of the local government 
corporation. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the undersigned petition and make application to the Board of 
Directors of Hobby Area Management District (the "District") and represent to the District as 
follows: 

I. Pursuant to and in accordance with the Statutes, the undersigned three (3) 
individuals, each of whom is a citizen of the State of Texas, a resident of the District and over 
the age of eighteen (18) years, make application to and request the Board of Directors of the 
District, to approve and authorize the creation of a public non-profit local government 
corporation to be designated and known as the Hobby Area Improvement Corporation (the 
"Corporation"). The Corporation shall have and exercise all of the powers prescribed by the 
Code and the Act. 

II. The undersigned further request the Board of Directors of the District to approve 
the incorporation of the Corporation with Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws in substantially 
the form attached hereto as Exhibits "A" and "B" respectively. 

III. The undersigned further represent that duly executed original counterparts of this 
Application have been presented to and filed with the Secretary of the District in proper and due 
time, form, and manner; that this Application constitutes a proper and sufficient application to 
the Board of Directors of the District for approval and authorization of the creation of a public 

- 1 -
#4745245.1 



non-profit local government corporation as required by the Statutes; and that the Board of 
Directors of the District may properly consider and act upon this Application. 

-2-
#4745245.1 



WHEREFORE, the undersigned respectfully request the Board of Directors of the 
District to approve this Application in all respects and to grant the relief herein requested and to 
take such further and additional actions and proceedings as may be deemed necessary and proper 
in connection therewith. 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED this __ day of ______ , 2015. 

B-3 
#4745245.I 



THE STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF HARRIS 

§ 
§ 
§ 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally 
appeared. _________ __., known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed 
to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purposes 
and consideration therein expressed. 

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE, this the _ day of 
-----' 2015. 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF HARRIS 

§ 
§ 
§ 

Notary Public 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared 
____________ ,, known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the 
foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purposes and 
consideration therein expressed. 

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE, this the _ day of 
-----' 2015. 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF HARRIS 

§ 
§ 
§ 

Notary Public 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared 
__________ ,, known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the 
foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purposes and 
consideration therein expressed. 

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE, this the _ day of 
----~2015. 

Notary Public 

B-4 
#4745245,l 



CERTIFICATE OF FORMATION 

OF 

HOBBY AREA IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION 

The undersigned natural persons, each of whom is at least eighteen (18) years of 
age or more, a resident of Harris County Improvement District No. 9 (dba Brays Oaks 
Management District) (the "District"), and a citizen of the State of Texas, acting as 
incorporators of a corporation under the provisions of Subchapter D of Chapter 431, 
Texas Transportation Code (the "LGC Act"), Chapter 3859, Texas Special District Local 
Laws Code (the "District Act"), Chapter 394, Texas Local Government Code (the "THFC 
Act"), and the Texas Business Organization Code (the "TBOC") do hereby adopt the 
following Certificate of Formation for such corporation: 

ARTICLE I 

The name of the corporation is the HOBBY AREA IMPROVEMENT 
CORPORATION (the "Corporation"). 

ARTICLE II 

The Authority is a public, non-profit corporation. 

ARTICLE III 

The period of duration of the Corporation is perpetual. 

ARTICLE IV 

A. The Corporation is organized exclusively for charitable, scientific, literary 
and educational purposes within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the U.S. Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), or within corresponding provisions of 
any subsequent federal tax laws. Specifically, the purpose of the Corporation is to aid, 
assist, and act on behalf of the District in the performance of its governmental functions, 
to construct, acquire, operate, maintain and finance parks,. green space, landscaping, 
beautification and recreational improvements to benefit the District; to construct, 
acquire, maintain, operate, maintain and finance public works and improvements; to 
advance the civic, social, commercial, industrial and economic interests of the District 
and to raise, administer and distribute funds necessary for the active promotion and 
benefit of these interests; and to aid, assist and act on behalf of the District in the 

Draft Certificate of Formation Hobby Area Imp Corp 



administration and operation of a tax increment reinvestment zone created by, for, or in 
the area of the District (the "Zone") or in tax increment financing if the District serves as 
a tax increment reinvestment zone or engages in tax increment financing, including: 

(1) the preparation and implementation of a project plan and reinvestment 
zone financing plan of the Zone, and the preparation and implementation of 
amendments thereto; 

(2) the development of a policy to finance development of residential, 
commercial and public properties in the Zone, including development of a policy to 
finance redevelopment of properties and development and redevelopment of parks, 
green space and recreational improvements to benefit the Zone; and 

(3) the development and implementation of a redevelopment policy for the 
Zone including the acquisition of land for redevelopment purposes and parks, green 
space and recreational purposes. 

The Corporation is formed pursuant to the provisions of the LGC Act and the 
District Act as they now or may hereafter be amended, and the THFC Act, which 
authorize the Corporation to assist and act on behalf of the District and to engage in 
activities in the furtherance of the purposes for which the Corporation was created, 
provided that the Corporation shall not be authorized to make or acquire home 
mortgages, or to make loans to lending institutions, the proceeds of which are to be 
used to make home mortgages or to make loans on residential developments. 

The Corporation shall have and exercise all of the rights, powers, privileges, 
authority, and functions given by the general laws of Texas to non-profit corporations 
including, without limitation, the TBOC. 

The Corporation shall have all other powers of a like or different nature not 
prohibited by law that are available to non-profit corporations in Texas and which are 
necessary or useful to enable the Corporation to perform the purposes for which it is 
created, including the power to issue bonds, notes or other obligations, and otherwise 
exercise its borrowing power to accomplish the purposes for which it was created, 
provided that the Corporation shall not issue bonds without the consent of the Board of 
Directors of the District. 

The Corporation is created as a local government corporation pursuant to the 
LGC Act and shall be a governmental unit within the meaning of Subdivision (2), 
Section 101.001, Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code. The operations of the 
Corporation are governmental and not proprietary functions for purposes of the Texas 
Tort Claims Act, Section 101.001 et seq., Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code. The 

Certificate of Formation 

2 



Corporation shall have the power to acquire land in accordance with the Act as 
amended from time to time. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of these Articles, the Corporation shall 
pledge its assets for use in performing its charitable functions and shall not carry on any 
other activities not permitted to be carried on (i) by a corporation exempt from income 
tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the 
"Code"), or corresponding provisions of any subsequent federal tax laws, or (ii) by a 
corporation, contributions to which are deductible under Section 170(c)(2) of the Code, 
or corresponding provisions of any subsequent federal tax laws. 

B. Nothing in this Article shall be construed as authorizing the Corporation 
to transact any business expressly prohibited by any law of the State of Texas, or to 
engage in any activity that cannot lawfully be engaged in by a non-profit corporation 
incorporated under the Texas Code, or to take any action in violation of any of the laws 
referred to in Sections B or C of Article 2.02 of the TBOC. 

Regardless of any other provisions of this Certificate of Formation or the laws of 
the State of Texas to the contrary, the Corporation shall not: 

(1) permit any part of the net earnings of the Corporation to inure to the benefit 
of any private individual (except that reasonable compensation may be paid for 
personal services rendered to or for the Corporation in effecting one or more of its 
purposes); 

(2) devote more than an insubstantial part of its activities to attempting to 
influence legislation by propaganda or otherwise; 

(3) participate in, or intervene in (including the publication or distribution of 
statements), any political campaign on behalf of any candidate for public office; and 

(4) attempt to influence the outcome of any election for public office or to carry 
on, directly or indirectly, any voter registration drives. 

ARTICLEV 

The Corporation shall have no "members" within the meaning of the TBOC. 

ARTICLE VI 

The street address of the initial registered office of the Corporation, which is 
located within the District, is 9610 Longpoint Road, Suite 150, Houston, Texas 77055, 
and the name of its initial registered agent at such address is David W. Hawes. 

Certificate of Formation 

3 



ARTICLE VII 

A. The number and qualifications of directors constituting the Board of 
Directors of the Corporation shall be fixed from time to time in the manner provided in 
the Bylaws of the Corporation. The number of directors may be increased or decreased 
from time to time in the manner provided in the Bylaws, except that no decrease shall 
have the effect of shortening the term of any incumbent director. 

B. The number of directors constituting the initial board of directors is six (6), 
and the names and addresses of the persons who are to serve as directors, a majority of 
whom reside within the District, are: 

POS.NO. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

NAME ADDRESS 

The initial Chairperson shall be _________ . The Board of Directors 
of the District shall designate each subsequent Chairperson of the Board. 

ARTICLE VlII 

The initial Bylaws of the Corporation shall be approved by the Board of Directors 
of the District and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Corporation. The power to 
alter, amend or repeal the Bylaws of the Corporation is vested in the Board of Directors 
of the Corporation, subject to approval of the Board of Directors of the District. 

ARTICLE IX 

No director of the Corporation shall be personally liable to the Corporation for 
monetary damages for any act or omission in the director's capacity as a director, except 

Certificate of Formation 

4 



that the provisions of this Article IX do not eliminate or limit the liability of a director to 
the extent the director is found liable for: 

A. a breach of the director's duty of loyalty to the Corporation; 

B. an act or omission not in good faith that constitutes a breach of duty of the 
director to the Corporation or an act or omission that involves intentional misconduct 
or a knowing violation of the law; 

C. a transaction from which a director received an improper benefit, whether 
or not the benefit resulted from an action taken within the scope of the director's office; 

D. an act or omission for which the liability of a director is expressly 
provided by an applicable statute; or 

E. an act related to an unlawful distribution of the assets of the Corporation. 

If the TBOC or the Texas Miscellaneous Corporation Laws Act (collectively, the 
"Acts") are hereafter amended to authorize the further limitation of the liability of 
directors or trustees, then the limitation on personal liability provided in this Article IX 
shall, without the necessity of further action by the Corporation or the Board of 
Directors, be modified to provide such limitation to the fullest extent permitted by the 
amended Acts. No amendment to or repeal of this Article IX shall apply to or have any 
effect on the liability or alleged liability of any director of the Corporation for or with 
respect to any acts or omissions of such director occurring prior to such amendment or 
repeal. 

ARTICLEX 

The Corporation may provide in the Bylaws for the indemnification of directors, 
officers, employees and agents of the Corporation and other persons, or any of them, to 
the fullest extent provided by law or to such lesser extent as may be provided in such 
Bylaws. 

ARTICLE XI 

In the event of the dissolution of the Corporation, its assets and properties shall 
first be used to pay all existing debts, obligations and liabilities of the Corporation. Any 
remaining assets shall be distributed exclusively to the District, or, if the District no 
longer exists or is no longer an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code, 
exclusively to one or more charitable organizations as described in Section 501(c)(3) of 
the Code, or corresponding provisions of any subsequent federal laws, such 
organization or organizations to be selected by the Board of Directors. 

Certificate of Formation 

5 



ARTICLE XII 

The names and street addresses of the incorporators, each of whom resides 
within the District, are: 

NAME 

Albert P. Cardenas, Jr. 

Ann Collum 

Darryl Bailey 

ADDRESS 

ARTICLE XIII 

A Resolution approving the form of this Certificate of Formation has been 
adopted by the Board of Directors of the District on February 12, 2015. 

ARTICLE XIV 

The District shall, at all times, have an unrestricted right to receive any income 
earned by the Corporation, exclusive of amounts needed to cover reasonable 
expenditures and reasonable reserves for future activities. 

ARTICLE XV 

The Board of Directors of the District may at any time consider and approve a 
resolution directing the Board of Directors of the Corporation to proceed with the 
dissolution of the Corporation, at which time the Board shall proceed with the 
dissolution of the Corporation in accordance with applicable state law. The failure of 
the Board of Directors of the Corporation to proceed with the dissolution of the 
Corporation in accordance with this Section shall be deemed a cause for the removal 
from office of any or all of the Directors as permitted by the Bylaws. 

If the Board of Directors of the Corporation determines by resolution that the 
purposes for which the Corporation was formed have been substai;i.tially met and all 
bonds issued by and all obligations incurred by the Corporation have been fully paid, 
the Board of Directors of the Corporation shall execute a certificate of dissolution which 
states those facts and declares the Corporation dissolved in accordance with the 
requirements of Section 394.026 of the THFC Act, or with applicable law then in 
existence. In the event of dissolution or liquidation of the Corporation, all assets will be 
turned over to the District. 

Certificate of Formation 

6 



ARTICLE XVI 

These Articles may not be changed or amended unless approved by the Board of 
Directors of the District. 

(EXECUTION PAGE FOLLOWS) 

Certificate of Formation 

7 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands this ____ _ 
day of __________ _,2015. 

THE ST ATE OF TEXAS § 

§ 

COUNTY OF HARRIS § 

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on 
this 12th day of February, 2015, by ALBERTO P. CARDENAS, JR. 

(NOTARY SEAL) 

Certificate of Formation 

8 

Notary Public in and for 
The State of Texas 



THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

§ 

COUNTY OF HARRIS § 

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on 
this 12th day of February 2015, by ANN COLLUM. 

(NOTARY SEAL) 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

§ 

COUNTY OF HARRIS § 

Notary Public in and for 
The State of Texas 

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on 
this 12th day of February, 2015, by DARRYL BAILEY. 

(NOTARY SEAL) 

Certificate of Formation 

9 

Notary Public in and for 
The State of Texas 



#4745230.1 

ExhibitB 
Bylaws 



BYLAWS 

OF 

HOBBY AREA IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION 

A Texas Local Government Corporation 

Date of Adoption: _________ _ 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

ARTICLE I: FORMATION; POWERS ........................................................................................ I 

ARTICLE II: BOARD OF DIRECTORS ...................................................................................... 2 

Section 1. Powers, Number, Appointment, Term of Office, Resignation and Removal ...... 2 
Section 2. Meetings of Directors ......................................................................................... 2 
Section 3. Annual Meetings ................................................................................................. 3 
Section 4. Regular Meetings ............................................................................................... 3 
Section 5. Special and Emergency Meetings ...................................................................... 3 
Section 6. Quorum ............................................................................................................... 3 
Section 7. Conduct of Business ........................................................................................... 3 
Section 8. Committees ......................................................................................................... 4 
Section 9. Compensation of Directors ................................................................................ 4 
Section 10. Board of Advisory Directors ............................................................................ 4 
Section 11. Director's Reliance on Consultant Iriformation ............................................... 4 

ARTICLE III: OFFICERS ............................................................................................................. 5 

Section 1. Titles and Term of Office .................................................................................... 5 
Section 2. Chairperson ............................................... , ........................................................ 5 
Section 3. Vice Chairpersons .............................................................................................. 5 
Section 4. President ............................................................................................................. 6 
Section 5. Vice Presidents ................................................................................................... 6 
Section 6. Treasurer ............................................................................................................ 6 
Section 7. Secretary ............................................................................................................. 6 
Section 8. Assistant Secretaries .......................................................................................... 7 
Section 9. Investment Officers ............................................................................................. 7 
Section 10. Compensation ................................................................................................... 7 
Section 11. Officer's Reliance on Consultant Information ................................................. 7 
Section 12. Delegation ........................................................................................................ 8 

ARTICLE IV: MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS ...................................................................... 8 

Section 1. Fiscal Year ......................................................................................................... 8 
Section 2. Seal ..................................................................................................................... 8 
Section 3. Notice and Waiver of Notice .............................................................................. 8 
Section 4. Resignations ....................................................................................................... 8 
Section 5. Gender ................................................................................................................ 8 
Section 6. Appropriations and Grants ................................................................................ 8 
Section 7. Contracts ............................................................................................................ 8 
Section 8. Checks, Drafts, Etc ............................................................................................. 9 
Section 9. Depositories ........................................................................................................ 9 
Section 10. Books and Records ............................................................................................ 9 
Section 11. Use of Assets .................................................................................................... 9 

ARTICLE V: INDEMNIFICATION ............................................................................................. 9 

Section 1. Indemnification .................................................................................................. 9 
Section 2. Limitations on Indemnity ................................................................................ 10 

Draft Bylaws Hobby Area Imp Corp -i-



Section 3. Wiren Person is Liable ...................................................................................... I 0 
Section 4. Indemnification Coverage ................................................................................ 11 
Section 5. Determination of Right to Indemnity .............................................................. 11 
Section 6. Other Determinations ...................................................................................... 11 
Section 7. Expenses ........................................................................................................... 11 
Section 8. Insurance .......................................................................................................... 11 
Section 9. Modifications ................................................................................................... 12 
Section 10. Non-Exclusive Rights .................................................................................... 12 
Section 11. Limitation on Indemnification of a Private Corporation ............................... 12 
Section 12. Interpretation ................................................................................................. 12 

ARTICLE VI: CODE OF ETHICS AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY ...................... 12 

Section 1. Policy and Purpose ........................................................................................ 12 
Section 2. Definitions ..................................................................................................... 13 
Section 4. Records of Proceedings ................................................................................. 15 
Section 5. Compensation ................................................................................................ 15 
Section 6. Annual Statements ......................................................................................... 15 
Section 7. Periodic Reviews ........................................................................................... 16 
Section 8. Outside Advisors ............................................................................................ 16 
Section 9. Applicability of State Law .............................................................................. 16 

ARTICLE VII: AMENDMENTS ................................................................................................ 16 

Bylaws - Hobby Area Improvement Corporation -ii-



BYLAWS 

OF 

HOBBY AREA IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION 

ARTICLE I 

FORMATION; POWERS 

The Hobby Area Improvement Corporation (the "Corporation") is formed 
pursuant to the provisions of Subchapter D of Chapter 431, Texas Transportation Code 
(the "LGC Act"), as it now or may hereafter be amended, and Chapter 394, Texas Local 
Government Code (the "THFC Act"). 

The Corporation shall have and exercise all of the rights, powers, privileges, 
Corporation, and functions given by the general laws of Texas to non-profit 
corporations incorporated under the Act including, without limitation, the Texas 
Business Organization Code (the "TBOC"). 

The Corporation shall have all other powers of a like or different nature not 
prohibited by law which are available to non-profit corporations in Texas and which are 
necessary or useful to enable the Corporation to perform the purposes for which it is 
created, including the power to issue bonds, notes or other obligations, and otherwise 
exercise its borrowing power to accomplish the purposes for which it was created, 
provided that the Corporation shall not issue bonds without the consent of the Board of 
Directors of the District. 

The Corporation is created as a local government corporation pursuant to the 
LGC Act and shall be a governmental unit within the meaning of Subdivision (2), 
Section 101.001, Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code. The operations of the 
Corporation are governmental and not proprietary functions for purposes of the Texas 
Tort Claims Act, Section 101.001 et seq., Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code. The 
Corporation shall have the power to acquire land in accordance with the Act as 
amended from time to time. 

Draft Bylaws Hobby Area Imp Corp -1-



Section 1. 
Removal. 

ARTICLE II 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Powers, Number, Appointment, Term of Office, Resignation, and 

(a) All powers of the Corporation shall be vested in the Board of Directors 
(the "Board"). The Board shall initially consist of three (3) persons. Directors of the 
Corporation ("Director" or "Directors") shall be appointed by position to the Board by 
the Board of Directors of the District. The number of Directors may only be increased 
or decreased (but not to a number fewer than three (3)) from time to time by an 
amendment to the Bylaws with the consent and approval of the Board of Directors of 
the District, but no decrease shall have the effect of shortening the term of any 
incumbent director. 

(b) Directors shall serve until they resign or until they are removed as 
provided herein. 

(c) Any Director may tender his or her resignation as a Director to the Board 
of Directors of the District at any time. Any such tender of resignation shall be made in 
writing and shall take effect at the time specified therein, or, if no time is so specified, at 
the time of receipt by the Board of Directors of the District. The acceptance of a 
resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective, unless expressly so provided in 
such resignation. 

(d) Any Director may be removed from office at any time, with or without 
cause, by the Board of Directors of the District. 

Section 2. Meetings of Directors. The Directors may hold their meetings and 
may have an office and keep the books of the Corporation at such place or places as the 
Board may from time to time determine; provided, however, in the absence of any such 
determination, such place shall be the registered office of the Corporation in the State of 
Texas. 

The Board shall meet in accordance with and file notice of each meeting of the 
Board for the same length of time and in the same manner and location as is required of 
the District under Texas law, including Chapter 551, Texas Government Code (the 
"Open Meetings Act"). 

The Corporation, the Board, and any committee of the Board exercising the 
powers of the Board are subject to Chapter 552, Texas Government Code (the "Open 
Records Act"). 

Bylaws - Hobby Area Improvement Corporation -2-



Section 3. Annual Meetings. The annual meeting of the Board shall be held at 
the time and at the location designated by the resolution of the Board for the purposes 
of transacting such business as may be brought before the meeting. 

Section 4. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board shall be held at 
such times and places as determined by the Board. Any and all business may be 
transacted at any regular meeting to the extent allowed by the Open Meetings Act. 

Section 5. Special and EmergenCIJ Meetings. Special and emergency meetings of 
the Board shall be held whenever called by the Chairperson of the Board or the 
Secretary or by a majority of the Directors who are serving duly appointed terms of 
office at the time the meeting is called. Any and all business may be transacted at any 
special or emergency meeting to the extent allowed by the Open Meetings Act. 

Section 6. Quorum. A majority of the Board then appointed and serving (not 
counting a board position vacant for any reason, including death, resignation, or 
disqualification) shall constitute a quorum for the consideration of matters pertaining to 
the purposes of the Corporation. If at any meeting of the Board there is less than a 
quorum present, a majority of those present may adjourn the meeting from time to 
time. The act of a majority of the Directors present and voting (not counting 
abstentions) at a meeting at which a quorum is in attendance shall constitute the act of 
the Board, unless the act of a greater number is required by law, by the Certificate of 
Formation, or by these Bylaws. 

A Director who is present at a meeting of the Board at which any corporate 
action is taken shall be presumed to have assented to such action unless his dissent or 
abstention shall be entered in the minutes of the meeting or unless he shall file his 
written dissent or abstention to such action with the person acting as the secretary of 
the meeting before the adjournment thereof or shall forward such dissent or abstention 
by registered mail to the Secretary of the Corporation immediately after the 
adjournment of the meeting. Such right to dissent or abstain shall not apply to a 
Director who voted in favor of the action. 

Section 7. Conduct of Business. At the meetings of the Board, matters 
pertaining to the purposes of the Corporation shall be considered in such order as from 
time to time the Board may determine. 

At all meetings of the Board, the Chairperson shall preside, and in the absence of 
the Chairperson, a Vice Chairperson shall preside. In the absence of the Chairperson 
and all Vice Chairpersons, a chairperson shall be chosen by the Board from among the 
Directors present. 

Bylaws - Hobby Area Improvement Corporation --3-



The Secretary of the Corporation shall act as secretary of all meetings of the 
Board, and in the absence of the Secretary, an Assistant Secretary shall act as secretary. 
In the absence of the Secretary and all Assistant Secretaries, the presiding officer may 
appoint any person to act as secretary of the meeting. 

Section 8. Committees. The Board may, by resolution, designate two (2) or 
more Directors or other individuals to constitute a committee. A committee shall act in 
the manner provided in the authorizing resolution. Committees consisting of a majority 
or more of the Directors or authorized to exercise the powers of the Board shall keep 
regular minutes of the transactions of its meetings and shall cause such minutes to be 
recorded in books kept for that purpose in the office of the Corporation, and shall report 
the same to the Board from time to time. Committees consisting of a majority or more 
of the Directors or authorized to exercise the powers of the Board shall give notice of 
any meeting in the manner required for a meeting of the Board. The majority of 
persons on any committee authorized to exercise the powers of the Board shall be 
Directors. 

Section 9. Compensation of Directors. Directors as such shall not receive any 
stated salary or compensation for their service, but by resolution of the Board of 
Directors may be reimbursed for reasonable expenses actually incurred in connection 
with their service; provided, however, that nothing herein shall preclude any director 
from serving the Corporation in any other capacity or receiving compensation therefor. 

Section 10. Board of Advison; Directors. The Board may establish a Board of 
Advisory Directors composed of members who are, in the judgment of the Board, 
qualified to advise with respect to the activities of the Corporation. Advisory Directors 
may be removed by the Board at any time with or without cause. The number of 
members of the Board of Advisory Directors shall be fixed from time to time by the 
Board. The officers and Directors of the Corporation may consult with the Board of 
Advisory Directors from time to time with respect to the activities of the Corporation, 
but the Board of Advisory Directors shall in no way restrict the powers of the Board nor 
limit its responsibilities or obligations. The Board of Advisory Directors shall have no 
responsibility for the management of the affairs of the Corporation. Advisory Directors 
as such shall not receive any stated salary or compensation for their service, but by 
resolution of the Board of Directors may be reimbursed for reasonable expenses actually 
incurred in connection with their service; provided, however, that nothing herein shall 
preclude any director from serving the Corporation in any other capacity or receiving 
compensation therefor. 

Section 11. Director's Reliance on Consultant Information. A Director shall not be 
liable if while acting in good faith and with ordinary care, he relies on information, 
opinions, reports, or statements, including financial statements and other financial data, 
concerning the Corporation or another person that were prepared or presented by: 

Bylaws - Hobby Area Improvement Corporation -4-



(a) one or more other officers or employees of the Corporation; 

(b) legal counsel, public accountants, or other persons as to matters the officer 
reasonably believes are within the person's professional or expert competence; or 

(c) a committee of the Board of which the Director is not a member. 

ARTICLE III 

OFFICERS 

Section 1. Titles and Tenn of Office. The officers of the Corporation shall be a 
chairperson of the Board, one or more vice chairpersons of the Board, a president, one 
or more vice presidents, a secretary, one or more assistant secretaries, a treasurer, one or 
more investment officers, and such other officers as the Board may from time to time 
elect or appoint. One person may hold more than one office, except that neither the 
Chairperson of the Board nor the President shall hold the office of Secretary. The term 
of office for each officer ( other than the Chairperson) shall commence on the date of 
such officer's election and terminate on the earlier of: the date that the officer is 
replaced by the board; or, if the officer is a member of the Board, the date that the officer 
is no longer a member of the Board. The Chairperson shall serve for the term 
designated by the Board of Directors of the District. 

All officers (other than the Chairperson) shall be subject to removal, with or 
without cause, at any time by a vote of a majority of the whole Board then appointed 
and serving. 

A vacancy in the office of any officer ( other than the Chairperson) shall be filled 
by the Board. 

Section 2. Chairperson. The Chairperson shall be a member of the Board and 
shall preside at all meetings of the Board. The Chairperson shall be designated by the 
Board of Directors of the District. He or she shall have such duties as are assigned by 
the Board. The Chairperson may call special or emergency meetings of the Board. 

Section 3. Vice Chairpersons. A Vice Chairperson shall be a member of the 
Board. A Vice Chairperson shall perform the duties and exercise the powers of the 
Chairperson upon the Chairperson's death, absence, disability, or resignation, or upon 
the Chairperson's inability to perform the duties of his or her office. Any action taken 
by a Vice Chairperson in the performance of the duties of the Chairperson shall be 

Bylaws - Hobby Area Improvement Corporation -5-



conclusive evidence of the absence or inability to act of the Chairperson at the time such 
action was taken. 

Section 4. President. The President shall be the principal executive officer of 
the Corporation and, subject to the Board, he or she shall be in general charge of the 
properties and affairs of the Corporation. In furtherance of the purposes of the 
Corporation and subject to the limitations contained in the Certificate of Formation, the 
President, Chairperson, or Vice Chairperson may sign and execute all bonds, notes, 
deeds, conveyances, franchises, assignments, mortgages, notes, contracts and other 
obligations in the name of the Corporation. 

Section 5. Vice Presidents. A Vice President shall have such powers and duties 
as may be assigned to him or her by the Board or the President, including the 
performance of the duties of the President upon the death, absence, disability, or 
resignation of the President, or upon the President's inability to perform the duties of 
his or her office. Any action taken by the Vice President in the performance of the 
duties of the President shall be conclusive evidence of the absence or inability to act of 
the President at the time such action was taken. 

Section 6. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have custody of all the funds and 
securities of the Corporation which come into his or her hands. When necessary or 
proper, he or she may endorse, on behalf of the Corporation, for collection, checks, 
notes and other obligations and shall deposit the same to the credit of the Corporation 
in such bank or banks or depositories as shall be designated in the manner prescribed 
by the Board; he or she may sign all receipts and vouchers for payments made to the 
Corporation, either alone or jointly with such other officer as is designated by the 
Board; whenever required by the Board, he or she shall render a statement of his or her 
case account; he or she shall enter or cause to be entered regularly in the books of the 
Corporation to be kept by him or her for that purpose full and accurate accounts of all 
moneys received and paid out on account of the Corporation; he or she shall perform all 
acts incident to the position of Treasurer subject to the control of the Board; and he or 
she shall, if required by the Board, give such bond for the faithful discharge of his or her 
duties in such form as the Board may require. 

Section 7. Secretan;. The Secretary shall be a member of the Board and shall 
keep the minutes of all meetings of the Board in books provided for that purpose; he or 
she shall attend to the giving and serving of all notices; in furtherance of the purposes of 
the Corporation and subject to the limitations contained in the Certificate of Formation, 
he or she may sign with the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, or President in the name of 
the Corporation and/ or attest the signatures thereof, all contracts, conveyances, 
franchises, bonds, deeds, assignments, mortgages, notes and other instruments of the 
Corporation; he or she shall have charge of the Corporation's books, records, documents 
and instruments, except the books of account and financial records and securities of 

Bylaws - Hobby Area Improvement Corporation -6-



which the Treasurer shall have custody and charge, and such other books and papers as 
the Board may direct, all of which shall at all reasonable times be open to the inspection 
of any Director upon application at the office of the Corporation during business hours; 
and, he or she shall in general perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary 
subject to the control of the Board. 

Section 8. Assistant Secretaries. An Assistant Secretary shall perform the 
duties and exercise the powers of the Secretary upon the Secretary's death, absence, 
disability, or resignation, or upon the Secretary's inability to perform the duties of his or 
her office. Any action taken by an Assistant Secretary in the performance of the duties 
of the Secretary shall be conclusive evidence of the absence or inability to act of the 
Secretary at the time such action was taken. 

Section 9. Investment Officers. An Investment Officer shall monitor 
compliance with the Texas Public Funds Investment Act and the Texas Public Funds 
Collateral Act, shall require the training and instruction required by such acts, and shall 
prepare, or cause to be prepared, and execute quarterly investment reports and other 
appropriate documentation pursuant to such acts. An Investment Officer is not 
required to be a member of the Board and may be a consultant to the Board. The 
Treasurer may be, but is not required to be, an Investment Officer. 

Section 10. Compensation. The salaries and other compensation of the officers 
of the Corporation, if any, shall be fixed from time to time by the Board of Directors. 
Board members, even in their capacity as officers, are not entitled to compensation 
except as otherwise provided in Article II, Section 9 of these Bylaws. Notwithstanding 
any other provision in these Bylaws, the Corporation shall not permit any part of the 
net earnings of the Corporation to inure to the benefit of any private individual, taking 
into account that reasonable compensation may be paid for personal services rendered 
to or for the Corporation if such services affect one or more of the Corporation's 
purposes. 

Section 11. Officer's Reliance on Consultant Information. In the discharge of a 
duty imposed or power conferred on an officer of the Corporation, the officer may in 
good faith and with ordinary care rely on information, opinions, reports, or statements, 
including financial statements and other financial data, concerning the Corporation or 
another person that were prepared or presented by: 

(a) one or more other officers or employees of the Corporation, including 
members of the Board; or 

(b) · legal counsel, public accountants, or other persons as to matters the officer 
reasonably believes are within the person's professional or expert competence. 

Bylaws - Hobby Area lmprovement Corporation -7-



Section 12. Delegation. The Board of Directors may delegate temporarily the 
powers and duties of any officer of the Corporation, in case of such officer's absence or 
for any other reason, to any other officer of the Corporation, and may authorize the 
delegation by any officer of the Corporation of any of such officer's powers and duties 
to any agent or employee of the Corporation, subject to the general supervision of such 
officer. 

Section 1. 
of each year. 

ARTICLE IV 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Corporation shall begin January 1 

Section 2. Seal. The seal of the Corporation shall be such as from time to time 
may be approved by the Board. 

Section 3. Notice and Waiver of Notice. Whenever any notice whatever, other 
than public notice of a meeting given to comply with the Open Meetings Act, is 
required to be given under the provisions of these Bylaws, such notice shall be deemed 
to be sufficient if given by depositing the same in a post office box in a sealed postpaid 
wrapper addressed to the person entitled thereto at his or her post office address, as it 
appears on the books of the Corporation, and such notice shall be deemed to have been 
given on the day of such mailing. A waiver of notice, signed by the person or persons 
entitled to said notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed 
equivalent thereto. 

Section 4. Resignations. Any officer or Advisory Director may resign at any 
time. Such resignations shall be made in writing and shall take effect at the time 
specified therein, or, if no time be specified, at the time of its receipt by the Chairperson 
or Secretary. The acceptance of a resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective, 
unless expressly so provided in the resignation. 

Section 5. Gender. References herein to the masculine gender shall also refer 
to the feminine in all appropriate cases and vice versa. 

Section 6. Appropriations and Grants. The Corporation shall have the power to 
request and accept any appropriation, grant, contribution, donation, or other form of 
aid from the federal government, the State, any political subdivision, or municipality in 
the State, or from any other source. 

Section 7. Contracts. The Chairperson, any Vice Chairperson, the President, or 
any Vice President may execute and deliver, in the name and on behalf of the 

Bylaws - Hobby Area Improvement Corporation -8-



Corporation, (i) contracts or other instruments and documents authorized by the Board, 
and (ii) contracts or instruments in the usual and regular course of business, except in 
cases when the execution or delivery thereof shall be expressly delegated or permitted 
by the Board or by these Bylaws to some other officer or agent of the Corporation. The 
Board may authorize any officer or officers, or any agent or agents, of the Corporation 
to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on 
behalf of the Corporation, and such Corporation may be general or confined to specific 
instances. Unless so authorized by the Board or by these Bylaws, no officer, agent or 
employee shall have any power or Corporation to bind the Corporation by any contract 
or engagement, or to pledge its credit or to render it pecuniarily liable for any purpose 
or in any amount. 

Section 8. Checks, Drafts, Etc. All checks, drafts or other orders for the 
payment of money, notes or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the 
Corporation shall be signed by such directors, officers, or employees of the Corporation 
as shall from time to time be authorized by the Board or these Bylaws. 

Section 9. Depositories. All funds of the Corporation shall be deposited from 
time to time to the credit of the Corporation in such banks or other depositories as the 
Board may from time to time designate and upon such terms and conditions as shall be 
fixed by the Board. The Board may from time to time authorize the opening and 
maintaining within any such depository as it may designate of general and special 
accounts and may make such special rules and regulations with respect thereto as it 
may deem expedient. 

Section 10. Books and Records. The Corporation shall keep correct and complete 
books and records of account and shall keep minutes of the proceedings of its Board. 

Section 11. Use of Assets. Notwithstanding any other provision of these 
Bylaws, the Corporation shall use its assets in performing its charitable functions and 
shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be carried on (i) by a corporation 
exempt from income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Code, or corresponding 
provisions of any subsequent federal tax laws, or (ii) by a corporation, contributions to 
which are deductible under Section 170(c)(2) of the Code, or corresponding provisions 
of any subsequent federal tax laws. 

ARTICLEV 

INDEMNIFICATION 

Section 1. Indemnification. The Corporation shall indemnify any person who 
was, is or is threatened to be made a named defendant or respondent in a proceeding 

Bylaws - Hobby Area Improvement Corporation -9-



because the person is or was a Director or, while a Director of the Corporation, is or was 
serving at the request of the Corporation as an officer of the Corporation or as a 
Director, officer, partner, venturer, proprietor, trustee, employee, administrator, agent 
or similar functionary of another foreign or domestic corporation, partnership, joint 
venture, sole proprietorship, trust, employee benefit plan or other enterprise only if it is 
determined in accordance with Section 5 below that the person: 

(a) conducted himself in good faith; 

(b) reasonably believed: 

(i) in the case of conduct in an official capacity as a Director of 
the Corporation, that such Director's conduct was in the Corporation's 
best interests; and 

(ii) in an other cases, that such Director's conduct was at least 
not opposed to the Corporation's best interests; and 

(c) in the case of any criminal proceeding, had no reasonable cause to 
believe such Director's conduct was unlawful. 

In addition, the Corporation may indemnify any other person who was, is or is 
threatened to be made a named defendant or respondent in a proceeding because the 
person is or was an officer, employee, committee member, Advisory Director, or agent 
of the Corporation to the same extent that it shall indemnify the Directors of the 
Corporation under this Section 1. 

Section 2. Limitations on Indemnity. Except to the extent permitted by 
Section 4 below, no person shall be indemnified under Section 1 above in respect of a 
proceeding: 

(a) in which the person is found liable on the basis that personal 
benefit was improperly received by such person, whether or not the benefit 
resulted from an action taken in the person's official capacity; or 

(b) in which the person is found liable to the Corporation. 

Section 3. When Person is Liable. The termination of a proceeding by 
judgment, order, settlement or conviction or on a plea of nolo contendere or its 
equivalent shall not be of itself determinative that the person did not meet the 
requirements set forth in Section 1 above. A person shall be deemed to have been found 
liable in respect of any claim, issue or matter only after the person shall have been so 
adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction after exhaustion of all appeals therefrom. 

By1aws- Hobby Area Improvement Corporation -10-



Section 4. Indemnification Coverage. A person may be indemnified under 
Section 1 above against judgments, penalties (including excise and similar taxes), fines, 
settlements and reasonable expenses actually incurred by the person in connection with 
the proceeding; but, if the person is found liable to the Corporation or is found liable on 
the basis that personal benefit was improperly received by the person, the 
indemnification (a) shall be limited to reasonable expenses actually incurred by the 
person in connection with the proceeding and (b) shall not be made in respect of any 
proceeding in which the person shall have been found liable for (i) willful or intentional 
misconduct in the performance of such person's duty to the Corporation; (ii) breach of 
the person's duty of loyalty owed to the Corporation; or (iii) an act or omission not 
committed in good faith that constitutes a breach of a duty owed by the person to the 
Corporation. 

Section 5. Determination of Right to Indemnity. A determination of 
indemnification under Section 1 above shall be made in the manner outlined in Section 
8.103 of the TBOC. 

Section 6. Other Determinations. Authorization of indemnification and 
determination as to reasonableness of expenses shall be made in the same manner as the 
determination that indemnification is permissible as provided in Section 8.103 of the 
TBOC. 

Section 7. Expenses. Reasonable expenses incurred by a person who was, is 
or is threatened to be made a named defendant or respondent in a proceeding may be 
paid or reimbursed by the Corporation in advance of the final disposition of the 
proceeding and without the determination specified in Section 5 above or the 
authorization or determination specified in Section 6 above, after the Corporation 
receives a written affirmation by the person of his good faith belief that such person has 
met the standard of conduct necessary for indemnification under this Article V and a 
written undertaking by or on behalf of the person to repay the amount paid or 
reimbursed if it is ultimately determined that he or she has not met that standard or if it 
is ultimately determined that indemnification of the person against expenses incurred 
by such person in connection with that proceeding is prohibited by Section 4 above. 

Section 8. Insurance. The Corporation may purchase and maintain insurance 
on behalf of any person who is or was a Director, officer, employee, Advisory Director, 
committee member, or agent of the Corporation or who is or was serving at the request 
of the Corporation as a Director, officer, Advisory Director, committee member, 
partner, venturer, proprietor, trustee, employee, administrator, agent or similar 
functionary of any other foreign or domestic corporation, partnership, joint venture, 
sole proprietorship, trust, employee benefit plan or other enterprise against any liability 
asserted against such person and incurred by such person in such a capacity or arising 
out of a status as such a person, whether or not the Corporation would have the power 

Bylaws - Hobby Area Improvement Corporation -11-



to indemnify such person against that liability under this Article V or any applicable 
law. 

Section 9. Modifications. The Corporation intends that this Article V provide 
for the indemnification of Directors, officers, Advisory Directors, committee members, 
employees, and agents of the Corporation and other persons to the fullest extent 
permissible by law. The provisions of this Article V shall be modified to the extent the 
TBOC may be amended in the future, but in the case of such amendment, only to the 
extent such amendment permits the Corporation to provide broader indemnification 
rights than such TBOC permitted the Corporation to provide prior to such amendment. 

Section 10. Non-Exclusive Rights. The right to indemnification and the 
advancement and payment of expenses conferred in this Article V shall not be exclusive 
of any other right that a person indemnified pursuant to this Article V may have or 
hereafter acquire under any law (common or statutory), provision of the Certificate of 
Formation or these Bylaws, agreement, vote of disinterested Directors or otherwise. 

Section 11. Limitation on Indemnification of a Private Corporation. 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Article V, if the Corporation is a private 

Corporation within the meaning of Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 
or corresponding provisions of any subsequent federal tax laws (the "Code"), the right 
to indemnification conferred in this Article V shall not include any rights to 
indemnification that would constitute a violation of Chapter 42 of the Code. 

Section 12. Interpretation. If this Article V or any portion hereof shall be 
invalidated on any ground by any court of competent jurisdiction, then the Corporation 
shall nevertheless indemnify each Director, and may indemnify any other person 
indemnified pursuant to this Article V, as to costs, charges, expenses (including 
attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement with respect to any 
proceeding to the fullest extent permitted by an applicable portion of this ArticleV that 
shall not have been invalidated and to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law. 

ARTICLE VI 

CODE OF ETHICS AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY 

Section 1. PoliC1J and Purpose. It is the policy of the Corporation that officers 
and directors of the Board conduct themselves in a manner consistent with sound 
business and ethical practices; that the public interest always be considered in 
conducting corporate business; that the appearance of impropriety be avoided to ensure 
and maintain public confidence in the Corporation; and that the Board establish policies 
to control and manage the affairs of the Corporation fairly, impartially, and without 
discrimination. 

Bylaws - Hobby Area Improvement Corporation -12-



The purpose of this Code of Ethics and Conflicts of Interest Policy is to protect 
the Corporation's interests when it contemplates entering into a transaction or 
arrangement that might benefit the private interest of an officer or director of the 
Corporation or might result in a possible excess benefit transaction. This policy is 
intended to supplement but not replace any applicable state and federal laws governing 
conflict of interest applicable to nonprofit and charitable authorities. 

Section 2. Definitions. The following definitions shall apply in this Article VI: 

(a) Interested Person. Any trustee, principal officer, or member of a committee 
with Board delegated powers, who has a direct or indirect Financial Interest, as defined 
below, is an Interested Person. 

(b) Financial Interest. A person has a Financial Interest if the person has, 
directly or indirectly, through business, investment, or family: 

1. An ownership or investment interest in any entity with which the 
Corporation has a transaction or arrangement; 

2. A compensation arrangement with the Corporation or with any 
entity or individual with which the Corporation has a transaction 
or arrangement; or 

3. A potential ownership or investment interest in, or compensation 
arrangement with, any entity or individual with which the 
Corporation is negotiating a transaction or arrangement. 

Compensation includes direct and indirect remuneration as well as gifts 
or favors that are not insubstantial. 

(A Financial Interest is not necessarily a conflict of interest. Under Article 
VI, Section 3(b), a person who has a Financial Interest may have a conflict 
of interest only if the appropriate Board or committee decides that a 
conflict of interest exists.) 

Section 3. Conflict of Interest Procedures. 

(a) Duty to Disclose. In connection with any actual or possible conflict of 
interest, an Interested Person must disclose the existence of the Financial Interest and be 
given the opportunity to disclose all material facts to the directors and members of 
committees with Board delegated powers considering the proposed transaction or 
arrangement. 

Bylaws - Hobby Area Improvement Corporation -13-



(b) Determining Whether a Conflict of Interest Exists. After disclosure of the 
Financial Interest and all material facts, and after any discussion with the Interested 
Person, he/she shall leave the Board or committee meeting while the determination of a 
conflict of interest is discussed and voted upon. The remaining Board or committee 
members shall decide if a conflict of interest exists. 

(c) Procedures for Addressing the Conflict of Interest. 

1. An Interested Person may make a presentation at the Board 
or committee meeting, but after the presentation, he/ she shall leave the 
meeting during the discussion of, and the vote on, the transaction or 
arrangement involving the possible conflict of interest. 

2. The chairperson of the Board or committee shall, if 
appropriate, appoint a disinterested person or committee to investigate 
alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement. 

3. After exercising due diligence, the Board or committee shall 
determine whether the Corporation can obtain with reasonable efforts a 
more advantageous transaction or arrangement from a person or entity 
that would not give rise to a conflict of interest. 

4. If a more advantageous transaction or arrangement is not 
reasonably possible under circumstances not producing a conflict of 
interest, the Board or committee shall determine by a majority vote of the 
disinterested directors whether the transaction or arrangement is in the 
Corporation's best interest, for its own benefit, and whether it is fair and 
reasonable. In conformity with the above determination it shall make its 
decision as to whether to enter into the transaction or arrangement. 

(d) Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy. 

1. If the Board or committee has reasonable cause to believe a 
member has failed to disclose actual or possible conflicts of interest, it 
shall inform the member of the basis for such belief and afford the 
member an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose. 

2. If, after hearing the member's response and after making 
further investigation as warranted by the circumstances, the Board or 
committee determines the member has failed to disclose an actual or 
possible conflict of interest, it shall take appropria~e disciplinary and 
corrective action. 

Bylaws - Hobby Area Improvement Corporation -14-



Section 4. Records of Proceedings. The minutes of the Board and all committees 
with board delegated powers shall contain: 

a. The names of the persons who disclosed or otherwise were found to have 
a Financial Interest in connection with an actual or possible conflict of interest, the 
nature of the Financial Interest, any action taken to determine whether a conflict of 
interest was present, and the Board's or committee's decision as to whether a conflict of 
interest in fact existed. 

b. The names of the persons who were present for discussions and votes 
relating to the transaction or arrangement, the content of the discussion, including any 
alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement, and a record of any votes 
taken in connection with the proceedings. 

Section 5. Compensation. 

(a) A voting member of the Board who receives compensation, directly or 
indirectly, from the Corporation for services is precluded from voting on matters 
pertaining to that member's compensation. 

(b) A voting member of any committee whose jurisdiction includes 
compensation matters and who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from the 
Corporation for services is precluded from voting on matters pertaining to that 
member's compensation. 

(c) No voting member of the Board or any committee whose jurisdiction 
includes compensation matters and who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, 
from the Corporation, either individually or collectively, is prohibited from providing 
information to any committee regarding compensation. 

Section 6. Annual Statements. 

Each director, principal officer and member of a committee with Board-delegated 
powers shall annually sign a statement, which affirms such person: 

a. Has received a copy of the Code of Ethics and Conflicts of Interest Policy; 
b. Has read and understands the Policy; 
c. Has agreed to comply with the Policy; and 
d. Understands the Corporation is charitable and in order to maintain its 

federal tax exemption it must engage primarily in activities that accomplish one or more 
of its tax-exempt purposes. 

Bylaws -Hobby Area Improvement Corporation -15-



Section 7. Periodic Reviews. To ensure the Corporation operates in a manner 
consistent with charitable purposes and does not engage in activities that could 
jeopardize its tax-exempt status, periodic reviews shall be conducted. The periodic 
reviews shall, at a minimum, include the following subjects: 

a. Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are reasonable, based 
on competent survey information, and the result of arm's length bargaining. 

b. Whether partnerships, joint ventures, and arrangements with 
management authorities conform to the Corporation's written policies, are properly 
recorded, reflect reasonable investment or payments for goods and services, further 
charitable purposes and do not result in inurement, impermissible private benefit or in 
an excess benefit transaction. 

Section 8. Outside Advisors. When conducting the periodic reviews as 
provided for in Article V1I, the Corporation may, but need not, use outside advisors. If 
outside experts are used, their use shall not relieve the Board of its responsibility for 
ensuring periodic reviews are conducted. 

Section 9. ApplicabilihJ of State Law. Chapters 171 and 176 of the Texas Local 
Government Code, Chapter 573 of the Government Code, and Chapter 36 of the Texas 
Penal Code shall apply to the Directors and officers of the Corporation. In the event of 
conflict between any of these State laws and any of the provisions set forth in Article V, 
Sections 2 through 8, above, the stricter provision shall apply. 

ARTICLE VII 

AMENDMENTS 

A proposal to alter, amend, or repeal these Bylaws shall be made by the 
affirmative vote of a majority of the full Board then appointed and serving at any 
meeting. However, any proposed change or amendment to the Bylaws must be 
approved by the Board of Directors of the District to be effective. 

By1aws- Hobby Area Improvement Corporation -16-



TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

9. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER 9) 

CITY OF HOUSTON 
HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

Hobby Area Management District Board of Directors 

Executive Director 

Agenda Item Materials 

Consider a Broadway Boulevard Funding Agreement by and between the City of 
Houston and the Hobby Area Management District. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER NINE) 

c/o Hawes Hill Calder6n LLP 
P.O. Box 22167 

Houston TX 77227-2167 
713-595-1200 or FAX 281-888-6314 



AGREEMENT FOR REIMBURSEMENT OF IMPROVEMENTS 
BROADWAY BOULEVARD: IH-45 TO AIRPORT BOULEVARD 

WBS No. N-000573-0001-4 

THESTATEOFTEXAS § 
§ 

COUNTY OF HARRIS § 

THIS AGREEMENT FOR REIMBURSEMENT OF IMPROVEMENTS ("Agreement") 
is made on the date countersigned by the City Controller ("Effective Date") by and between the 
CITY OF HOUSTON, TEXAS ("City"), a home-rule city of the State of Texas, and HARRIS 
COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 9 ("District"), a management district created by the 
Texas Legislature, pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act. TEX. Gov'TCODEANN. §§ 791.001-
791.030, as amended. 

The Parties agree as follows: 

I. FINDINGS AND DEFINITIONS 
I. 1. Recitals. 

1.1.1. It is to the mutual benefit of the City and District to improve the Broadway Boulevard 
from lli-45 to Airport Boulevard with all improvements as described in Exhibit A 
(the "Improvements"), hereinafter referred to as the "Project". 

1.1.2. The City and the District will enter a contract for the maintenance of certain 
improvements including the Improvements under this Agreement. 

1. 1.3. The City is willing to include the Improvements supplied by the District as part ofits 
construction of the Project, if the District will provide funding for the Improvements. 

1.1.4. The District is willing to fund up to $557,432.00 toward the construction costs of the 
Project for the inclusion of the Improvements, if the City will design and construct 
the Project in accordance with this Agreement. 

I .1.5. The City and the District wish to mutually develop the Project for their respective 
benefits. 

I .2. Determinations. The City and District find that the recitals set forth in Article I, Section 1. I. 
are determined to be true and correct for all purposes. 

1.3. Definitions. All terms used in this Agreement shall have the meanings given herein, unless 
otherwise specified. 

1.3.1. "Agreement" means this contract between the Parties, including all exhibits and any 
written amendments authorized by City Council and District. 



1.3.2. "City" is defined in the preamble of this Agreement and includes its successors and 
assigns. 

1.3.3. "District" is defined in the preamble of this Agreement and includes its successors 
and assigns. 

1.3.4. "Countersignature Date" means the date shown as the date countersigned on the 
signature page of this Agreement. 

1.3.5. "Director" means the Director of the City's Department of Public Works and 
Engineering, or the person he or she designates. 

1.3.6. "Improvements" are the specific items requested by the District to be incorporated 
into the Project and are further defined in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated 
herein. 

1.3.7. "Include" and "including", and words of similar import, shall be deemed to be 
followed by the words "without limitation". 

1.3.8. "Party" or "Parties" mean all the entities set out in the Preamble who are bound by 
this Agreement individually or collectively in the context in which it appears. 

1.3.9. "Project" means the construction project to improve Broadway Boulevard from IH-
45 to Airport Boulevard. 

II. DUTIES OF DISTRICT 

2.1. Reimbursement for Improvements. The District shall reimburse the City for the costs of 
the Improvements. The construction cost estimate for the Improvements is included in 
Exhibit A. 

2.2. Payment. 

2.2.1. Within IO calendar days of the Countersignature Date, the District shall deliver to the 
City at its address for notices in Article 5, Section 5.6.2., a check in the amount of 
$557,432.00 made payable to the "City of Houston". 

2.2.2. The District shall pay its obligations hereunder from current revenues or out of some 
other fund within the immediate control of the District. 

2.3. Additional Funds. If the City determines that additional funding is needed for the 
Improvements, the City shall notify the District in writing. The City may make this 
determination(s) during, at the completion, or at the termination of the Project. The City and 
District shall mutually agree to any cost increase(s) prior to authorizing the action(s) or 

2 



item(s) resulting in the cost increase. The District is responsible for the cost of any cost 
increase(s) and shall make payment within 30 days from receipt of the City's written request. 
The District shall deliver a check may payable to "the City of Houston" at its address for 
notices in Articles 5, Section 5.6.2. 

2.4. Coordinate Performance. The District shall coordinate its performance with the Director 
and other persons that the Director designates. The District shall promptly inform the 
Director and other person(s) of all significant events relating to the performance of this 
Agreement. 

2.5. Maintenance Agreement. The District shall enter into a contract for maintenance with the 
City that will include the maintenance obligations for the Improvements under this 
Agreement. 

2.6. Compliance with Laws. The District shall comply with all applicable state and federal laws 
and regulations and the City Charter and Code of Ordinances. 

III. DUTIES OF THE CITY 

3.1. Use of Fnnds. 

3.1.1. Upon receipt of the funds from the District, the City shall include the installation of 
the Improvements as part of its Capital Improvement Plan for the Project. The City 
shall award the contract to the responsible bidder who submits the lowest and best 
bid, in accordance with the usual and customary procedures of the City, subject to 
certification of the availability of funds for the Project by the City Controller. 

3 .1.2. The City shall cause the funds paid by the District to the City hereunder that are not 
needed to meet obligations due or contemplated to be due within 190 days to be 
invested in the same manner as similar funds are invested by the City in federal 
obligations or interest-bearing time deposits. The determination by the City of the 
portion of said funds needed to meet such obligations shall be conclusive. Upon 
completion of construction of the Project, the City shall perform or cause to be 
performed, a final accounting. If the amounts paid by the District to the City 
hereunder, including interest earnings thereon, exceed the actual costs of the design 
and construction ofbrick pavers for the Project, the City shall promptly reimburse the 
amount of such excess to the District. The City shall keep records of all deposits, 
earnings, and expenditures of District funds paid to the City pursuant to this 
Agreement and shall provide the District with detailed reports of all fund activity at 
least once a year until completion or termination of the Project. 

3 .2. Maintenance Agreement. The City shall send a copy of the fully executed contract for 
maintenance of the Improvements between the City and District within 30 days of the 
contract for maintenance countersignature date. 

3 



3.3. Taxes. The City is exempt from payment of Federal Excise and Transportation Tax and 
Texas Limited Sales and Use Tax. District's invoices to the City must not contain 
assessments of any of these taxes. The Director will furnish the City's exemption certificate 
and federal tax identification number to the District if requested. 

3.4. Limit of Appropriation, The District recognizes that under certain provisions of the 
Charter of the City of Houston, the City may not obligate itself by contract to an extent in 
excess of an amount therefor appropriated by the City Council and further recognizes that no 
funds have been appropriated by the City Council. 

IV. TERM AND TERMINATION 

4.1. Contract Term. This Agreement is effective on the Countersignature Date and remains in 
effect for five years or upon completion of the Project, whichever occurs first, unless sooner 
terminated under this Agreement. 

4.2. Termination by Either Party. Either the District or the City may terminate this Agreement, 
without cause, at any time prior to the letting of the contract for construction of the Project, 
by written notice to the other party. After termination, neither party shall have any further 
obligations hereunder, except as follows: The City shall return to the District any funds 
which the District has paid to the City hereunder and which the City has not expended in 
furtherance of installation of the Improvements for the Project. 

V. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

5.1. No Partnership. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed or construed by the 
parties, not by any third party, as creating the relationship of principal and agent, or of a 
partnership, or employer-employee, or of a joint-venture between the City and District it 
being understood and agreed that no provision contained in this Agreement, nor any acts of 
the City or District, shall be deemed to create any relationship between the City and District 
other than the contractual relationship established under this Agreement. 

5.2. Severability. If any part of this Agreement is for any reason found to be unenforceable, all 
other parts remain enforceable unless the result materially prejudices either party. 

5.3. Entire Agreement. This Agreement merges the prior negotiations and understandings of the 
Parties and embodies the entire agreement of the Parties. No other agreements, assurances, 
conditions, covenants (express or implied), or other terms of any kind, exist between the 
Parties regarding this Agreement. 

5.4. Written Amendment. Unless otherwise specified elsewhere in this Agreement, this 
Agreement may be amended only by written instrument executed on behalf of the City (by 
authority of an ordinance adopted by the City Council) and District. The Director is only 
authorized to perform the functions specifically delegated to him or her in this Agreement. 

4 



5.5. Applicable Laws. This Agreement is subject to the laws of the State of Texas, the City 
Charter and Ordinances, the laws of the federal government of the United States, and all rules 
and regulations of any regulatory body or officer having jurisdiction. Venue for any 
litigation relating to this Agreement is Harris County, Texas. 

5.6. Notices. 

5.8.1. All notices to either party to the Agreement must be in writing and must be delivered 
by hand, facsimile, United States registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, 
United States Express Mail, Federal Express, Airborne Express, UPS or any other 
national overnight express delivery service. The notice must be addressed to the 
party to whom the notice is given at its address set out in Section I of this Agreement 
or other address the receiving party has designated previously by proper notice to the 
sending party. Postage or delivery charges must be paid by the party giving the 
notice. 

5.8.2. The initial addresses of the Parties, which one Party may change by giving written 
notice to the other Party, are as follows: 

CITY DISTRICT 
Director of Public Works and Engineering Harris County Improvement District No. 9 
City of Houston Hawes Hill Calderon LLP 
P.O. Box 1562 ATTN: David Hawes 
Houston, TX 77251 P.O. Box 22167 

Houston, TX 77227-2167 

5. 7. Captions. Captions contained in this Agreement are for reference only, and therefore, have 
no effect in construing this Agreement. The captions are not restrictive of the subject matter 
of any section in this Agreement. 

5.8. Non-Waiver. 

5.8.1. If either party fails to require the other to perform a term of this Agreement, that 
failure does not prevent the party from later enforcing that term and all other terms. 
If either party waives the other's breach of a term, that waiver does not waive a later 
breach of this Agreement. 

5.8.2. An approval by the Director, or by any other employee or agent of the City, of any 
part of District's performance does not waive compliance with this Agreement or 
establish a standard of performance other than that required by this Agreement and by 
law. The Director is not authorized to vary the terms of this Agreement. 

5.9. Inspections and Audits. City representatives may perform, or have performed, (I) audits of 
District's books and records, and (2) inspections of all places where work is undertaken in 

5 



connection with this Agreement. The District shall keep its books and records available for 
this purpose for at least 4 years after this Agreement terminates. This provision does not 
affect the applicable statute oflimitations. 

5.10. Enforcement. The City Attorney or his or her designee may enforce all legal rights and 
obligations under this Agreement without further authorization. The District shall provide to 
the City Attorney all documents and records that the City Attorney requests to assist in 
determining the District's compliance with this Agreement, with the exception of those 
documents made confidential by federal or State law or regulation. 

5.11. Ambiguities. If any term of this Agreement is ambiguous, it shall not be construed for or 
against any party on the basis that the party did or did not write it. 

5 .12. Survival. The District shall remain obligated to the City under all clauses of this Agreement 
that expressly or by their nature extend beyond the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement. 

5. 13. Parties in Interest. This Agreement does not bestow any rights upon any third party, but 
binds and benefits the City and the District only. 

5.14. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement binds and benefits the Parties and their legal 
successors and permitted assigns; however, this provision does not alter the restrictions on 
assignment and disposal of assets set out in the following paragraph. This Agreement does 
not create any personal liability on the part of any officer or agent of the City or the District. 

5.15. Business Structure and Assignments. The District shall not assign this Agreement at law. 
The District shall not delegate any portion of its performance under this Agreement without 
the Director's prior written consent. 

5.16. Remedies Cumulative. Unless otherwise specified elsewhere in this Agreement, the rights 
and remedies contained in this Agreement are not exclusive, but are cumulative of all rights 
and remedies which exist now or in the future. Neither party may terminate its duties under 
this Agreement except in accordance with its provisions. 

(The rest of this page has been intentionally left blank). 

6 



The Parties have executed this Agreement in multiple copies, each of which is an original. 

DISTRICT: 

HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT NO. 9 

By: _________ _ 

Name: 
Title: 

WITNESS: 

Name: 

Tax ID No. 

7 

CITY: 

CITY OF HOUSTON, TEXAS 

By: _________ _ 

Annise Parker, Mayor 

ATTEST/SEAL: 

Anna Russell, City Secretary 

APPROVED: 

Director, Department of Public Works & Engineering 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lindsay Canning, Assistant City Attorney 
LDNo. 063-1400255-001 

COUNTERSIGNED BY: 

Ronald Green, City Controller 

COUNTERSIGNATURE DATE: 

("Effective Date") 



Broadway Street Reconstruction: IH-45 to Airport Blvd 
WBS No. N-000573-0001-4 
TxDOT Project No. C912-70-64 
CSJ 0912-70-064 

Document 00410B 

BID FORM - PART B 

BID FORM 
PARTB 

Broadway Street Landscape & Hardscape Enhancements from Airport Blvd to Santa Elena Street (STA 72i-OO} 

1.0 TOTAL BID PRICE HAS BEEN CALCULATED BY BIDDER, USING THE FOUOWING 

COMPONENT PRICES AND PROCESS {PRINT OR TYPE NUMERICAL AMOUNTS): 

A. STIPULATED PRICE: 
(Total Bid Price; minus Base Unit Prices, Extra Unit Prices, Cash Allowances and All Alternates) 

B. BASE UNIT PRICE TABLE 2: 

Item COH Spec Unit 
No. Ref Item Description Measure 

24 02922 Sodding SY 

64 02336 Lime for lime stabilized subgrade TON 

65 02336 lime stabilized subgrade, 8·inch (8% lime by dry weight) SY 

69 02751 6-inch reinforced concrete slab for METRO bus shelter SY 

70 02751 11-inch reinforced concrete pavement SY 

76 02771 6-inch concrete curb (6-inch height) LF 

82 02775 
41/2-inch thick reinforced concrete sidewalk {including 

SF 
compacted sand bedding) 

R2-1 02511 
4-inch diameter PVC SCH. 80 pipe for landscape sleeve by 

LF open-cut 

R2-2 02511 
4-inch diameter PVC SCH. 80 pipe for landscape sleeve by 

LF augering 

R2-3 02511 
6-inch diameter PVC SCH. 80 pipe for landscape sleeve by 

LF open-cut 

R2-4 02511 
6-inch diameter PVC SCH. 80 pipe for landscape sleeve by 

LF augering 

4-inch Decomposed granite sidewalk (including 3/16-inch steel 
R2-S PerDwg edging w/ steel stakes, weed barrier fabric, & 2-inch PVC drain SF 

pipe) 

R2-6 02771 6-inch concrete curb {10-inch height) LF 

R2-7 02751 
6-inch concrete band includlng dowels at median nose (4-inch 

LF height} 

R2-8 02751 
12-inch concrete band at METRO bus boarding pad and bus 

LF 
shelter area (4-inch height) 

R2-9 02741 
Temporary 4-inch Type D HMAC fill in depressed concrete 

SY 
pavement Including forming depressed concrete pavement 

Notes: 

NOT APPLICABLE - $0.00 

Unit Price 

Unit {this column 
Quantity controls} Total in Figures 

289 $ S.00 $ 1,445.00 

·8 $ 140.00 $ (1,120.00) 

-302 $ 2.00 $ (604.00) 

222 $ 60.00 $ 13,320.00 

·302 $ 56.00 $ (16,912.00) 

460 $ 2.00 $ 920.00 

-5,919 $ 5.00 $ (29,595.00) 

2,508 $ 39.00 $ 97,812.00 

196 $ 59.00 $ 11,564.00 

1,386 $ 45.00 $ 62,370.00 

212 $ 65.00 $ 13,780.00 

5,919 $ 22.00 $ 130,218.00 

458 $ 12.00 $ 5,496.00 

224 $ 10.00 $ 2,240.00 

804 $ 12.00 $ 9,648.00 

2,335 $ 110.00 $ 256,850.00 

TOTAL $557,432.00 ___ :...:..::..:..,c.c..:c.=....c_ 

1) This estimate is only for Broadway Street Enhancements from Airport Blvd (STA. 2+00) to Santa Elena Street {STA. 72+00) 

2) Items starting with R2 are new items added per Revision No. 2 

3) Table 2 is prepared for the Hobby Area Management District 

4) Sidewalk credit (100%) = ($29,S95) 

S) Pavement credit (20% City share) = {$1,120 + $604 + $16,912) = ($18,636) 

REVISION No. 2 
00410-61 
2-3-2015 Bidder's Initials[ ___ _ 



TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

10. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER 9) 

CITY OF HOUSTON 
HARRISCOUNTY,TEXAS 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

Hobby Area Management District Board of Directors 

Executive Director 

Agenda Item Materials 

Consider a mobile security camera contract with S.E.A.L. Security. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
{HARRIS COUNlY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER NINE) 

c/o Hawes Hill Calder6n LLP 
P.O. Box 22167 

Houston TX 77227-2167 
713-S95-1200 or FAX 281-888-6314 



S.E.A.L. Security Solutions, LLC 
Surveillance Monitoring Agreement 

DATE OF AGREEMENT: SERVICE START DATE: SERVICE END DATE: 
1/27/15 1/27/15 

·. CLIENT INFORMATION 
. . . . . . . .· . . 

PROPERTY NAME: Hobby Management District POINT OF CONTACT: Josh Hawes 
EMAIL: jhawes@hhcll(!.COm 

PHONE: 713-595-1208 POINT OF CONTACT CELL: 713-724-3862 
FAX: 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 9610 Long Point, Ste. 150 COUNTY: Harris 
Houston, TX 77227 

PROGRAMSELECTION .. 
. . . .. 

D Video Data Storage Only: Our System will store up to lil] Intermittent Monitoring: Scheduled Video monitored during 
2 Weeks of video surveillance, accessible upon your Your most high crime hours defined by crime statistics in your 
Request. area. 

• Record Storage ofup to 2 weeks of video surveiilance, 
accessible upon request. 

• Includes features of Analytic Monitoring 
• SEAL will either dispatch our own officer or contact 

other law enforcement officials in the event there is an 
incident. 

*Either cellular network or a Wireless network with 3mbps 
upload required depending on frequency and duration of 

monitoring* 

D Analytic Monitoring: UtiJizing various image processing D 24 Hour Live Monitoring and Armed Resl!onse: 
algorithms we can detect a wide range of occurrences such 

• 24 Hour Live Monitoring from our 24 Hour Dispatch 
• Breaches into restricted areas Center 

• Theft - Removal of I terns • Record Storage ofup to 2 weeks of video surveillance, 

• Loitering accessible upon request. 

• Crowding or Grouping • Includes features of Analytic Monitoring 

• Vehicles tailgating through secured points • SEAL will either dispatch our own officer or contact 

• And More other law enforcement officials in the event there is an 
incident. 

A detection of the occurrences will trigger an alarm to alert 
*Minimum of a Wireless network with 3mbps upload our 24 Hour Operations Center to view, and address the 

Matter by either dispatching our own officer or contacting required* 

Other law enforcement officials. 

Record storage ofup to 2 weeks of video surveiUance, accessible 
upon request. 

*Minimum of a cellular network required* 



' 

. 
TOTAL INITIAL 

PROGRAM TYPE MONTHLY RATE SETUP FEE INITIAL PAYMENT INVESTME!'ff DETAILS 

Intermittent Monitorinf! 
Two (2) Mobile Camera 

$2,200.00 /Month Waived Waived Waived Svstems 

Plus All Annlicable Taxes Plus All AnnJicable Taxes 

Additional Terms: For each additional camera on the Intermittent Monitoring Plan a charge ofSl,100.00 +Tax per month will be added. 
A Relocation and Reconfiguration Fee ofS800.00 will be charged for each requested move. 

. . 
. CAMERA LOCATIONS . · . 

. . . .... . . .. . . .· ... 
Address 1: Broadway and W/ Belfort Addriss 3: 6322 Telephone 

Address 2: 8181 Airport Address 4: 

. 

. BILLING INFORMATION . __ > " · . 
BILL TO, 

POINT OF CONT ACT: PHONE, 

~ 

OWNER/LEGAL CQRPORATEINFORMATION ·. 

. . . . 

CORPORATE NAME, CORPORA TE ADDRESS, 

I MM,, 

REGISTERED AGENTINFORMATION 

. . 

.. 

Client understands that rated increases due to changes in federal, state, or taxes may be imposed without notice. S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC 
agrees to maintain a current and comprehensive general liability insurance policy, throughout this agreement, for a minimum amount of $1million 
aggregate. This firm is registered under License # Cl5942 of the Texas Dept. of Public Safety, Private Security Bureau. Licensing status is 
verifiable on line at http://www.txdps.state.tx.us/pbs/ or by calling I -512-424-7710. 

CLIENT REPRESENTATIVE S.E.A.L. SECURITY SOLUTIONS 

BY: ____________ _ BY: ____________ _ 

PRINTED: PRINTED: GRANT GOLDIN 

TITLE: TITLE: PRESIDENT 



I. S.E.AL. Security Solutions LLC. Surveillance monitoring service and installation charges vary depending on system configuration, 
equipment and services selected. An amount equal to the first month fee plus applicable taxes will be due prior to the installation of the equipment. 
Offer includes the installation of trailer mounted camera system for a one time installation and configuration fee. An additional fee equal to the price 
of the initial set up will apply for relocation upon the customer's request. Local pennit fees may be required. Additional charges may apply in areas 
that require officer response service for municipal alarm verification. Systems shall remain property ofS.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC. Simulated 
screen images and photos are for illustrative purposes only. 

2. Contingent on selected plan S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC surveillance monitoring services may require access to wireless data 
connection with a minimum of3 rnbps upload. S.E.A.L Security Solutions LLC shall not be liable for overages for your data provider. 

3. Customer is solely responsible for connection to power for camera equipment. S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC is not responsible for lost 
transmission or collection of data due to a loss of power. 

4. Site specific instructions will be issued and agreed upon by the Client and S.E.A.L., outlining services requested. 

5. If provided for above, S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC will offer an armed response to an alert received in the S.E.A.L. Security Solutions 
LLC's control room as specified in the site specific instructions. Client acknowledges and agrees that while S.E.A.L will dispatch an officer upon 
alert and endeavor to arrive at the location as soon as possible thereafter there is no guarantee as to the minimum response time. Officer safety is a 
primary core value of S.E.A.L and the vagrancies of Houston traffic, weather and general conditions may delay arrival. S.E.A.L. will make all 
reasonable efforts to ensure an officer arrives on site within a reasonable time frame after the alert. 

6. S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC services, systems and equipment do not cause and cannot eliminate occurrences of the events they are 
intended to detect or avert. S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC makes no guaranty or warranty, including any implied warranty of merchantability or 
fitness for a particular purpose, that the services, system or equipment supplied will detect or avert such events or the consequences therefrom. 
Accordingly, S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC does not undertake any risk that customer's person or property, or the person or property of others, 
may be subject to injury or loss if such an event occurs. The allocation of such risk remains with customer, not S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC. 

7. Insurance, if any, covering such risk shall be obtained by customer. S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC shall have no liability for loss, 
damage or injury due directly or indirectly to events, or the consequences therefrom, which the system or services are intended to detect or avert. 
Customer shall look exclusively to its insurer and not to S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC to pay customer in the event of any such loss, damage or 
injury. Customer releases and waives for itself and its insurer all subrogation and other rights to recover from S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC 
arising as a result of paying any claim for loss, damage or injury of customer or another person. 

8. The provisions of this section shall apply no matter how the loss, damage or injury or other consequence occurs, even if due to S.E.A.L. 
Security Solutions LLC. 's performance or nonperfonnance of its obligations under this agreement or from negligence, active or otherwise, strict 
liability, violation of any applicable consumer protection law or any other alleged fault on the part of S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC., its agents or 
employees. If any other person, including customer's subrogating insurer, makes any claim or files any lawsuit against S.E.A.L. Security Solutions 
LLC. in any way relating to the services, system or equipment that are the subjects of this agreement, then customer shall indemnify and hold 
S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC hannless from any and all such claims and lawsuits including the payment of all damages, expenses, costs and 
attorneys' fees. No suit or action shall be brought against S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC. or its agents, employees, subsidiaries, affiliates or parents 
(both direct and indirect) more than one year after the incident that resulted in the loss, injury or damage occurred, or the shortest duration permitted 
under applicable law if such period is greater than one year. The provisions of this section shall apply to and benefit S.E.A.L. Security Solutions 
LLC and its agents, employees, contractors, subsidiaries, affiliates, parents (both direct and indirect) and affinity marketers. if this agreement 
provides for a direct connection to a municipal police or fire department or other organization, then that department or other organization may aJso 
invoke the provisions of this section e against any claims due to any failure of such department or organization. 

9. S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC assumes no liability for delays in installation of the equipment or for the consequences therefrom, 
however caused, or for interruptions of service or for the consequences therefrom due to strikes, riots, floods, acts of god or any causes beyond the 
control of S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC. And will not be required to supply service to the customer while interruption of service due to any such 
cause shall continue. 

10. S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC. 's receipt of alarm signals, electronic data, voice data or images from the equipment or system installed in 
customer's premises is dependent upon proper transmission of such alann signals. S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC cannot receive alarm signals 
when the customer's teleco service or other transmission mode is not operating or has been cut, interfered with, or is otherwise damaged, or if the 
alarm system is unable to acquire, transmit or maintain an alarm signal over customer's teleco service or transmission mode for any reason including 
but not limited to network outage or other network problems such as congestion or downtime, routing problems, or instability of signal quality. 
customer W1derstands that signal transmission failure may occur over certain types ofteleco services such as some types of dsl, ads!, voip, digital 
phone, internet protocol based phone or other internet interface-type service or radio service, including cellular, wireless or private radio, or 
customer's proprietary telecommunication network, intranet or ip-pbx, or other third-party equipment or voice/data transmission networks or systems 
owned, maintained or serviced by customer or third parties, if: (1) there is a loss of nonnal electric power to the monitored premises occurs (the 
battery back-up for S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC. 's alarm panel does not power customer's communication facilities or teleco service); or (2) 
electronic components such as modems malfunction or fail. 

Customer understands that S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC will only review the initial compatibility of the alarm system with customer's teleco 
service at the time of initial installation of the alarm system and that changes in the teleco service's data fonnat after S.E.A.L. Security Solutions 



LLC.'s initial review of compatibility could make the teleco service unable to transmit alarm signals to S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC. IfS.E.A.L. 
Security Solutions LLC determines in its sole discretion that customer's teleco service is compatible, S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC will permit 
customer to use its teleco service as the primary method of transmitting alarm signals, although customer understands that S.E.A.L. Security 
Solutions LLC. Recommends that customer also use an additional back-up method of communication to connect customer's alarm system to 
S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC. Regardless of the type ofteleco service used, customer also understands that ifS.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC 
determines in its sole discretion that customer's teleco service is, or later becomes, non-compatible, or if customer changes to another teleco service 
that is not compatible, then S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC will require that customer use an alternate method of communication acceptable to 
S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC as the primary method to connect Customer's alarm system to S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC. Customer also 
understands that if customer's alarm system has a line cut feature, it may not be able to detect alarm signals if the teleco service is interrupted, and 
that S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC may not be able to download system changes remotely or provide certain auxiliary monitoring services through 
a non-approved teleco service. Customer acknowledges that any decision to use a non-approved teleco service as the method for transmitting alarm 
signals is based on customer's own independent business judgment and that any such decision is made without any assistance, involvement, input, 
recommendation. or endorsement on the part of S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC. Customer assumes sole and complete responsibility for 
establishing and maintaining access to and use of the non-approved teleco service for connection to the alarm monitoring equipment. Customer 
further understands that the alami system may be unable to seize the teleco service to transmit an alarm signal if another connection has disabled, is 
interfering with, or blocking the connection. 

J 1. This agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the customer and S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC. In executing this agreement, 
customer is not relying on any advice or advertisement of S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC. Customer agrees that any representation, promise, 
condition, inducement or warranty, express or implied, not included in writing in this agreement shall not be binding upon any party, and that the 
terms and conditions hereof apply as printed without alteration or qualification, except as specifically modified in writing. The terms and conditions 
of this agreement shall govern notwithstanding any inconsistent or additional terms and conditions or any purchase order or other document 
submitted by the customer. 

12. Client and client's agent represents that client is financially solvent. Client and client's agent shall be unconditional guarantors for payment 
for all amounts invoiced by S.E.A.L. hereunder. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, S.E.A.L. may terminate this agreement at any time, 
after 48 hours written notice to the client, due to the clients failure to pay any monies due hereunder, or if at any time during this agreement there 
shall be filed by or against client in any court, pursuant to any statute, a petition of bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, or the appointment of a 
receiver all or a portion of the client's property. 

13. S.E.A.L. billing is on a monthly cycle in advance for monitoring and response services to be performed the following month. Services are 
billed on the first of the month with invoices payable, Net 30 or within 30 days of invoice. Any dispute or claim regarding the amount of an invoice 
must be forwarded in writing by the Client to S.E.A.L. within 5 days from the invoice date, setting forth the nature and details of the dispute, 
including all supporting documentation, or it shall for all purposes be deemed agreeable by the Client. Client agrees to pay a late fee of 0.04 times the 
total invoice plus all collection and attorney fees and costs which may be incurred by S.E.A.L. in the collection of any invoice not paid pursuant to 
the terms of this paragraph. Client shall not be entitled to retain any monies due or owing to S.E.A.L. hereunder as security for the payment of any 
and all claims. 

14. Any and all property, equipment, supplies, and/or materials furnished by S.E.A.L. placed at or on a site shall remain the property ofS.E.A.L. 
Throughout the term of this agreement, S.E.A.L. maintains the sole and exclusive rights to install, maintain, replace, and remove such property at any 
time. In the event of termination or nonpayment ofup to 60 days S.E.A.L. reserves the right the remove said equipment from the customer's property 
without notice. 

15. This agreement shall be in full force and effect, after the start of services, for a period of one year, after which period the Client or S.E.A.L. 
may terminate this agreement by giving 30 days prior written notice by certified mail to the other party involved. Client shall remain liable for all 
amounts due hereunder through the periods stated above. 

16. This agreement supersedes any and all prior and other agreements of its kind, oral and written, between S.E.A.L. and the Client, and represents 
the entire agreement between the parties. No other agreement or representations, oral or written, have been made by S.E.A.L. Any alteration, 
modification, or amendment of this agreement must be in writing containing the signature ofan authorized representative of each party. 

17. It is agreed by and between the Client and S.E.A.L. that if any terms or provision of this agreement shall be determined invalid or illegal, all 
the remaining items and provision shall remain in full force and effect, and enforceable by the laws of the State ofTexas. 

I 8. If signing as agent, I hereby represent that I have full legal authority to sign contracts and enter into commitments on behalf of the above 
owner. 



TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

11. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARrus COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER 9) 

CITY OF HOUSTON 
HARRISCOUNTY,TEXAS 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

Hobby Area Management District Board of Directors 

Executive Director 

Agenda Item Materials 

Consider a FY 2015 annual operation District budget. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
{HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER NINE) 

c/o Hawes Hill Calder6n LLP 
P.O. Box22167 

Houston TX 77227-2167 
713-595-1200 or FAX281-888-6314 



Hobby Area Management District 

Statement of Sources & Uses - Budget vs Actual 
January through December 2014 

FY 2014 FY2015 
Approved FY 2014 Proposed 

Budget Actual Budget 

SOURCES OF FUNDS 

District Assessments 1,300,000 1,350,000 1,475,516 
Penalty & Interest Revenue 24,000 20,000 20,000 
Overpayments 32,000 14,000 14,000 
Assessment Refunds -32,000 -24,000 -24,000 
Street Light Reimbursement 134,678 0 134,678 
Grants and Donations 0 0 25,000 
Interest Revenue 50 298 300 

Total SOURCES OF FUNDS 1,458,728 1,360,298 1,645,494 

TOTAL SOURCES 1,458,728 1,360,298 1,645,494 

USES OF FUNDS 

Public Safety 
Contract Public Safety 202,180 150,370 202,180 
Apartment Life Initiatives 25,000 10,892 25,000 
Mobile Cameras 28,800 0 28,800 
Street Light Outage Survey 2,100 2,100 2,100 
Graffitti Abatement 33,500 28,000 33,500 

Total Public Safety 291,580 191,361 291,580 

Mobility, Environ, Urban Design 
Porter Service 52,500 21,667 52,500 

Total Mobility, Environ, Urban Design 52,500 21,667 52,500 

Business & Economic Development 
Economic Developmt Programs 103,000 15,987 162,000 
Events, Festivals, Comm. Proj. 37,000 20 37,000 
Creative ED Support 46,500 36,897 71,700 
Marketing Mtls & Promo Items 13,500 4,843 28,000 

Total Business & Economic Development 200,000 57,746 298,700 

Administration 
Exec & Board Support Services 

Administration & Management 106,000 106,118 112,485 
Meeting Expense 3,500 4,404 5,000 
Reimbursable Expenses 14,400 7,483 8,000 
Postage 900 90 100 
Office Supplies 1,900 1,103 1,400 
Public Notices, Advertising 800 1,049 1,200 

Page 1 of2 



Hobby Area Management District 

Statement of Sources & Uses - Budget vs Actual 
January through December 2014 

Total Exec & Board Support Services 

Legal Services 
Audit Services 
Bookkeeping 
Assessment Billing 
Assessmt Database Mgmt 
Office Equipment 
Insurance 
Other 

Total Administration 

Community Developemnt Fund 
Hobby Fest 
Other Community Projects 

Total Community Development Fund 

Creation and Start Up 
Capital Projects 

Long Range Plan-Comp Landscape 
Fund Reserve for District Office 
Broadway Blvd. Hardscape 
Livable Centers Grant Match 
CIP/Project Manager 
Broadway Corridor Design Dev. 
Broadway Corridor Engr. Enhmnts 
LED Decorative Street Lights 

Total Capital Projects 

Total USES OF FUNDS 

NET SOURCES VS USES 

Cash on Hand Beginning of Year 
TOTAL PLANNED RESERVES 

..... F .. Y""2""0'"'14-

Approved 
Budget 

127,500 

9,600 
7,500 
7,200 

22,500 
3,600 
3,000 
4,000 
2,500 

187,400 

0 
0 

0 

108,167 

79,500 

0 
0 
0 

92,500 
53,918 

134,678 

360,596 

1,200,243 

258,485 

FY2014 
Actual 

120,246 

27,938 
0 

7,200 
22,500 

0 
0 

1,230 
610 

179,725 

0 
0 

0 

108,167 

88,612 

0 
0 
0 

96,146 
53,918 

134,678 

373,354 

932,020 

428,278 

FY 2015 
Proposed 

Budget 

128,185 

30,000 
3,000 
7,200 

22,500 
3,600 
3,000 
1,500 

700 

199,685 

25,000 
15,000 

40,000 

0 

0 
50,000 

557,432 
53,750 
48,500 

0 
0 
0 

709,682 

1,592,147 

53,347 

428,278 
481,625 

Page 2 of2 



TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

12. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRIS COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER 9) 

CITY OF HOUSTON 
HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

Hobby Area Management District Board of Directors 

Executive Director 

Agenda Item Materials 

Receive the Executive Director's monthly report on actions and initiatives in support of 
the District's Service Plan. 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
(HARRis COUNTY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER NINE) 

c/o Hawes Hill Calder6n LLP 
P.O. Box 22167 

Houston TX 77227-2167 
713-595-1200 or FAX 281-888-6314 



HOBBY AREA DISTRICT 

HOBBY AREA MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

SERVICE PLAN 

MONTHLY REPORT 

JANUARY 8-FEBRUARY 12, 2015 

COMMITTEE ACTIVITY 

STAFF ACTIVITY 



COMMITTEE ACTIVITY 

Business and Economic Development Committee 
The Business and Economic Development Committee was cancelled. 

Environmental Urban Design and Mobility Committee 
The Environmental and Urban Design Committee met on January 29"'. 

Public Safety Committee 
The Public Safety Committee was cancelled. 

STAFF ACTIVITY 

JANUARY 8 - FEBRUARY 12, 2015 

>" Conducted monthly board meetings, public safety, environmental and urban design, and 
business and economic development meetings. 

>" Staff attended a meeting with the Environmental, Urban Design and Mobility committee on 
potential District projects as well as ongoing. 

>" Staff attended the Hobby PIP meeting. 

>" Staff is working on preparations for State of District Luncheon on March 5. The event will 
be held at the Double Tree from 11 :30 to 1 :00. The keynote speaker will be TxDot 
Commissioner, Jeff Moseley. 

>" Staff is working with Council Member Gallegos's staff on planning and set up of the March 
9 Stakeholders meeting to update the community on the various infrasttucture projects in 
the area as well as the Gulfgate TIRZ. The event will be held at the Double Tree from 6:30 
to 8:30 with a 6:00 reception planned to honor former board member Jo Ann Lemon. 

>" Staff attended a giving back to the community event on Saturday, January 31 organized by 
Action Ministries who have been disttusting food and school supplies in the community for 
25 years. Staff covered the report and an article about the event is posted at the District 
website. 

J.> Staff made regular updates to the District website and distributed e-news and e-blasts for 
area partner events. 

J.> The Executive Director and staff met with Scenic Houston to rev1ew agreements for 
Broadway Corridor project. 

J.> The Executive Director has met with the City of Houston, along with Public Works & 
Engineering to review agreements. 

End of Report 



Roy Hill 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Hobby Area Management District 
Friday, January 30, 2015 11:03 AM 
=?utf-8?Q??= 
Hobby Area Management District eNews 

r . . . • .: ,... ,.,. ,. •''" .,! . . • -1 ,.. • • - c ._. • - - , • : , • ' , I • ; • • v·,, ··• . ~ ·~ 

. Visit our website to stay up-to-date on Hobby Area news. View this email ·n 
. · · . . browser . 

' • i • • • : t. . ; ' . , ' . ' ' . ' ' ; 

Chairman Perkins has high hopes for 
funding local infrastructure projects 

On opening day of the State of Texas' 84th 

Legislature, Hobby Area Management District 

(HAMD) Chairman Danny Perkins had an 

experience afforded to very few people. 

Perkins was invited to Austin by Texas Senator 

Sylvia Garcia of District 6, Representative 

Garnet Coleman of District 146, and 

D 

Representative Sylvester Turner of District 139, but it was Turner who 

arranged for him to have access to the floor of the legislative chamber 

on the day new legislators are sworn in .. .. Read more 

1 



City Counc·~ approves airport proposal 
to create raining center 

The training center will be built at an existing 

warehouse at Bush. City and Houston Airport System officials hope 

training offered at the center will help improve the skills workers on 

projects at Bush, Hobby and Ellington Airports. The is estimated at $7.7 

million. 

"Continuing education and training are important in just about every 

professional field but it's especially vital in the area of construction," 

Mayor Annise Parker said. Read more .. . 

Exporting is a great way to 
grow, reach new markets 
and expand your business 

Houston is a great place to export 

from. Houston leads the country as 

America's No.1 city in export value. 

2 



And there are plenty of resources 

for you to join the export game. 

That's why the Port of Houston 

Autho_rity is launching its new trade 

export promotion program, 

Tradelink, through a series of 

workshops in collaboration with 

Read more ... 

Council Member Gagellos 
addressed the Hobby Area 
District Board 

Council Member, Gagellos District I 

addresses the Hobby Area District 

Board to share news and 

information about the Gulfgate 

TIRZ and proposed plans for a 

botanical garden in the area. The 

council member stated that the 

botanical garden was to be 

discussed at the city council 

meeting on January 21. 

Read more .. . 

3 



HPD Team Featured in 
New Documentary 

The Houston Police Department is 

featured in a new documentary 

focusing on how community 

policing is helping homeless 

people in our city. 

The 30-minute film, The 

Shepherds in Blue: How 

Community Policing is Guiding 

People Home, focuses on the 

innovative work being done by 

the HPD's Homeless Outreach 

Team (HOT). Read more 

Who Are We? 

0 0 
Facebook Twitter Website 

Created in 2007, the Hobby Area Management District works to put in place public safety, 
business development, transportation planning and visual improvement initiatives. 

Copyright © 2015 Hobby Area Management District, All rights reserved. 

You are receiving this email because you opted in at our website or at one of our events or 
because of your affiliation with the district. 

Our mailing address is: 
Hobby Area Management District 
PO Box 22167 
Houston, TX 77227-2167 

Add us to your address book 

unsubscribe from this list update subscription preferences 

4 



HO BY A EA D STRICT 


